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DNEEHR
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Financial Highlights
MBRE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Sales increased by approximately 16.1% to HKD3,311,304,000

Operating profit increased by approximately 10.3% to
HKD2,064,051,000

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company increased
by approximately 9.1% to HKD1,750,419,000

Net cash generated from operating activities increased by
approximately 9.5% to HKD1,540,158,000

Proposed final dividends of HK8.88 cents per share which
represents a full year dividend of HK21.86 cents per share and
increased by 44.0% from last year

RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS

Flavours business increased by approximately 10.6%, sustained a
stable growth

Reconstituted tobacco leaves (‘RTL') business recorded rapid
growth, segment sales reached HKD253,072,000. Profitability
elevated noticeably, segment EBIT margin increased from 17.2%
last year to 33.7% this year; segment EBITDA margin increased
from 33.5% last year to 49.2% this year

Established a R&D platform for new cigarette material business,
going to establish a cigarette filter joint enterprise in Korea, a
new attempt by the Group in the development of new cigarette
materials business

AREAS OF DEFICIENCY

Selling, marketing and administrative expenses increased relatively
fast, its proportion to sales revenue elevated significantly

Management’s view: the Group will increase input into staff
and R&D, and will strive to maintain these
expenses at a reasonable level in the future

Inventory total amount increased rapidly, inventory turnover period
increased

Management’s view: with the Group progressing with new
businesses, inventory total amount will
continue to increase, will strive to keep
inventory turnover period to remain stable
in the future

Fragrances business was affected by upstream raw material price
fluctuation and the re-organizing of current business, as a result,
growth pace was slowed and segment operating profit margin
decreased

Management’s view: will conduct business re-organization
and integration as a priority to gradually
increase profitability
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Sales

Gross profit

Gross profit margin

Operating profit

Operating profit margin (EBIT margin)
Selling and marketing expenses to sales

Administration expenses to sales

Profit before income tax

Profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Company

Earnings per share (HK cents)
— Basic
— Diluted

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Net cash*

Total equity

Aggregated dividends per share
for the whole year (HK cents)

Aggregated special dividends per share
for the whole year (HK cents)

Dividend payout ratio

Debt ratio*

Current ratio (times)

Liquidity ratio (times)

Inventory turnover (days)

Trade receivables turnover (days)

Trade payables turnover (days)
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2012
—E-—_—F
HKD’000
BT T

3,311,304
2,335,996
70.5%
2,064,051
62.3%

3.2%
12.8%
2,080,989

1,750,419

55.48
55.31

1,540,158
1,359,077
6,650,249

16.68

5.18
39%
14.7%
2.4
2.0
210
70

122

Change
2011 in percentage
—E——%F B e
HKD'000 %

BETT
2,852,173 +16.1%
2,120,459 +10.2%

74.3%
1,871,706 +10.3%

65.6%

2.8%

10.2%
1,881,114 +10.6%
1,604,400 +9.1%
51.01 +8.8%
50.59 +9.3%
1,406,330 +9.5%

936,410

5,295,863

15.18

Nil

30%

14.8%

2.1

1.8

173

74

133

* Equals to “Cash and cash equivalents” minus “Short-term borrowings”. *

# Equals to “Total borrowings (include current & non-current borrowings”  #

divided by “Total Equity (exclude non-controlling interests)”.
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Company Profile, Corporate Culture and Key Events for the Year
SEEHN -

TEXREFRER

Company profile

Huabao Group is primarily engaged in the R&D, production and sales
of flavours and fragrances and RTL. The Group is a market leader
in China’'s flavours and fragrances industry. The Group has been
the leading producer in terms of sales revenue among competitors,
maintaining a significant position within the flavours and fragrances
industry in China. The Group possesses an integrated core value
chain, established upstream raw material extraction bases in
Shandong, Jiangsu, Yunnan, Hunan, and Botswana, southern Africa,
and production bases in Shanghai, Yunnan, Guangdong, Jiangsu
Jiangxi, Fujian, and Hong Kong etc., and has established a R&D
centre in Holzminden, Germany, a State-recognized technical centre
in Shanghai and R&D departments in Guangdong, Yunnan and
Fujian. The Group takes on leadership roles in a number of industry
associations, including the Deputy Director of CAFFCI, Deputy
Director of China Food Additives & Ingredients Association and
Chairman of Shanghai Food Additive Industry Association.

AN
FESEIZNEETRBMRET IO - £
EMHE - ARERTHEEREHITENESSE
HHEBERTX —ERIINSY  ETFEERER
MZRERMN - AREFFAZL - BIENER
IR TH > TR B RIENEREAR
MEWEAR Ll RAMBHERR L LR B
BERI# 1A RERBEAESHRELER

o EEBEEBRRASRBEBINAZEDL AR
LEBHEAE-FBERREEZMHPL  EER &

M REREMELM  AREEFEBRRERT
FABRTZERERL  BRTEEHNERK
mIEHEEEEE  PERAAMMEATIERESE
BERMEEBTRBANBTERSERS -
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Company Profile, Corporate Culture and Key Events for the Year

SEEN  EEXCEREFASR

The Group is also one of the major manufacturers of RTL in
China, and is a leader in developing new materials for cigarettes.
Guangdong Jinye Group, a subsidiary of the Group, is one of
the RTL R&D bases authorized by the State Tobacco Monopoly
Administration. The Group is currently constructing a 20,000-
ton per annum RTL production line. The target is to construct a
RTL production line that characterized by its technological design
and product quality which will be in line with international leading
standards. In addition, the Group is the initiator of the concept of
new materials for cigarettes. Upon acquisition of Yunnan Zhengbang
last year, the Group established Huabao Bio. Tech. as a new R&D
platform for new materials for cigarettes. In future, RTL and new
materials for cigarettes will become the Group’s major business
areas, which will provide the Group with long-term sustainable
development momentum.

By leveraging on its excellent management model, a team of high-
calibre talents, innovating in operating ideas, and stable growth, the
Group is committed to continuously creating value for the society
and bringing fruitful returns to its Shareholders!

REFWETHREEESTBEER — TEHS
EHMHESRAEELINEE - SETEERSE
SERTEHAREEEZEREEFSHMEEML Y
— o AREBIFAER—IEFE20,00088EE5E 5 &
Ef BEBEREEEREERITENA—KIE
BEATREREENEARBRESKENEER - 1t
S REBERBENMHEBSEEE  BEAFHE
EMEM2E SR TESEYMRISEABE
MR EHMETE KK EEFHRBEN
MBBRASEERREZHRET - AAEERE
EHARHEZRRNEZRE S -

AEERKEBEREEFNEERN  SRENAS
SO BTSSR S AR ER - T AL
FEEBE ARRERTREENDR |
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Company Profile, Corporate Culture and Key Events for the Year

SEEN  EEXCEREFAER

Corporate Structure
EERIEE y
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Company Profile, Corporate Culture and Key Events for the Year

SEEN - EEXEREFAER

Corporate Culture
BEXE

Vision fE= | Spirit B

Striving to be No. 1 Innovative, pragmatic, loyal and cooperative
FE— Bl - BE - AW - BIE

—— ————

Core Value #Z/MEEE

Adhere to the “market driven and client first” philosophy and achieve
mutual growth for both the Group and its staff

U5 REE  BREFPELWRA - BREEME THERKE

—

Strategy A&

Persistent in the development strategy of “multi-pronged, focused growth”

Steadily develop the flavours business, strive to construct an integrated core value chain
Accelerate the development of reconstituted tobacco leaves and new cigarette materials businesses
Expand through organic growth and M&A

To develop into a China-focused leading player in tasty life

B[ROt ] BRERS

s BIBRBBENED TERL —BHEXRE
o MRFERFEEFRH MBERMEES

s RABSBREMHBHRESHNTR

o BRMAZTITEMGNEREEERE

ﬁ
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Company Profile, Corporate Culture and Key Events for the Year

SEEN  EEXCEREFAER

Key Events for the Year
EFRERL

2011 APR 43

2011 August 8 A

10 Huabao International Holdings Limited EBEIFRZERBER AT » 2011-2012 Annual Report F 3k

Signed technical service agreement with
China Tobacco Anhui to jointly construct a
RTL production line, symbolizing yet another
new step forward for the Group’s in the RTL
area

B PhERTRMRB HE - 4 FRRE
EERAER BREASEEEEERE
B XS T #EE R

The Group established Yongzhou Shanxiang in
Hunan province, continuing in establishing an
integrated core production chain, achieving
new development in the area of natural
aromatic flavours

AEBENrRARKMILE  EEEERR
ETH—RIEmERE  ERAFTHELER
BHOER

The Group established “Paper-making
Reconstituted Tobacco Laboratory” with
China Tobacco Guangdong, further
strengthened strategic partnership with its
core customer

SERERPERFREYT EREBE
BEAEERE] £—TNRTEERS
P RBEE A (ERI R

Completed stage one of the comprehensive
technical upgrade for Guangdong linke,
product quality noticeably elevated

TR THEREMONE - H2ERMEE
T EREERBERT

2011 October 107 o

“Huabao Shanghai/U.S. Waters Jointly-
Constructed Key Laboratory” officially
established, with an aim to further elevate the
Group's level of technology and to strengthen
its cooperation with international peers

(2B LS EEASHAABAEHER
=) EXRY - RERTE - SREXERE
AF - MARERAITHOA

Resolution of capital injection of the
Huangguoshu Jinye project was passed
in the shareholders’ meeting, Guangdong
Jinye's holdings increased from 30% to
40%

BERHEEEETHABEERBZNER
g LEE  BREEFRLAINI0% LT
£40%



Company Profile, Corporate Culture and Key Events for the Year

SEEN - EEXEREFAER

2011 JUNE6S e Completed the acquisition of Yunnan 2011 JULY 77
Zhengbang, and it served as a foundation
in establishing Huabao Bio. Tech., as one
of the Group’s important R&D platforms for
new cigarette materials business

o ERHERERNUEE AR K

N TEBEMRREREBEBERMH
REMERMEFE 2 —

A seminar named “Plan for Major Project of
Reconstituted Tobacco Produced by Paper-
making method” for the China tobacco
industry was held by Guangzhou Huafang,
symbolized the Group’s influence in such
area

TREETENEREBERERERE
BRI EERMNESER  BRT
SEEZREATEN

e The Group’s new comprehensive production 2012 Feb 2 A
plant in Yingtan city of Jiangxi province
commenced production

s REEIAEEEMNINERA EEEN
FIR IR E

2012 JUNE6A

The mega-size Yankee Dryer for second
phase of Guangdong Jinye production line
was successfully installed, the production
line entered installation stage

EReE_HAERNBTREREL M
FLEMZE - A EREALTKARARKER

The Group through a joint enterprise going
to set up a cigarette filters manufacturing
enterprise in Korea, it is an innovating
attempt of the Group towards new cigarette
materials by providing the China tobacco
market with personalized products

AEBUNRESTAERESZERBEM B
¥ RTEMEHREIFER  BHEH
EBEHFM R —(ERFHER

During the year, the Group’s subsidiaries earned several national invention patents, achieved outstanding R&D results.

FR - KETEBRREEZEBRENER - ERHETEKERD -
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

CHU Lam Yiu
Chairman

R
E

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group’s sales revenue
reached approximately HKD3,311 million, representing an increase
of approximately 16.1% over last year, while profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company was approximately HKD1,750 million,
representing an increase of approximately 9.1% over last year. The
management and | are pleased with the above remarkable results
achieved despite various unfavourable external and macroeconomic
conditions. Meanwhile, the Company declared a final dividend of
HK8.88 cents per Share, bringing the total accumulated dividends
distributed by the Group since be listing of its flavour and fragrance
business to over HKD2.6 billion. Through dividend payments, the
Group has brought favorable returns to its Shareholders.

Persistent in the development strategy of “multi-
pronged, focus growth”, the Company sees healthy
growth

After years of development, the Group has become a leading player
in China’s flavours and fragrances industry. Today, the Group has also
made remarkable achievements in the businesses of RTL and new
cigarette materials, thereby paving the way for further development
of the Group. Looking back on our successful development in the
past years, we can attribute such achievements to the management’s
persistence in the development strategy of “multi-pronged, focus
growth”, which constantly creates greater value for our customers
and users by taking the market-oriented approach, concentrating
on research and development and stepping up efforts in exploration
and innovation. In 2006, the Group's flavours and fragrances
business was successfully listed in Hong Kong. With strong support
from all Shareholders, the Group has opened a new chapter in its
development. The Group has recruited a great number of overseas
and domestic high-calibre talents and significantly improved its
management efficiency, thus the Group was guided into the right
path for healthy development.

Dear Shareholders, on behalf of the
Board of Directors, | am pleased to
present to all Shareholders that,

BURR  RERRESEMAOEZRE
REREM

HE-_Z——F=ZA=Z+—HLFE A£EH
SHEWAER THBEIBINELT BLEFEREY
16.1%; RNAGIEDEE ARIGEFIELEE17.50
BT MEFIBRELHI1% o £ — EZHETFIINBLA
REBEEGETERE FMEBERE  RNERE
BEHE - R - AR SRS 8SHENARIR
B BERERERLTMUKEECD ZtAmEE
KRB 261BITHARE - BIEERARER o

MRBREBIELNZ T RREK - OF
RERER

EECRETZFNERRRTEBERERITEN
BELE  BESEXEREEFR RBERHE
BRI EER  REET - INERITAEAD
Zf - OBRELFHRINER  BRIEREEE
BRRESIR A I — B S [0 2 T b ] M B R BIAS -
ATIZ RBETE - ERMAT - THEETHRRMAIF
REFPHMAFPAEEANEE - —TTRF  &EF
MEBBEMEBERDERBLT  EXURROS
AXFET  FENBEREATH R - SERES
HEBRBIANTERAS - BEBMEKRNERS - SEHE
ATRE  REMERNE -
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®mE

Challenging industry and operating environment,
more cautious about future outlook

Currently, the domestic and international environments are not
looking optimistic. Among others, the European debt crisis, the
distanced US economy recovery, and the Chinese economy showing
signs of slowing down. Since last year, a series of serious food safety
problems once again placed the food and food additives industry
into scrutiny. As a result, the food additives and flavours industry
entered into a structural adjustment period. Recently, the Chinese
government started to implement limitations to the government’s
spending on cigarette, alcohol and premium cigarette, which added
uncertainties to the development of China tobacco industry. | am
satisfied with the stable growth achieved by the management,
though in the mean time | also became more cautious about future
outlook.

New business and new thinking, Huabao’s business
transformation has commenced

Luckily, with a foresight, | led with the management to enter into RTL
and new cigarette materials industries, Huabao has therefore entered
into an area of new growth. Since 2010, the Group made substantial
progress in developing the businesses of RTL through the acquisition
of a RTL enterprise. The Group clearly defined its positioning in the
industry and took relevant development initiatives, which further
reinforced the development strategy of “multi-pronged, focus
growth”. In addition, the Group formulated a new development
concept of using the end market consumers as the pivot point, to
effectively help customers to understand end users’ needs. To fully
utilize Huabao’s tobacco chemistry technology, cigarette flavouring
technology, and technological advantages in RTL and new cigarette
materials, the Group will capitalize on the perfect integration of
its businesses of flavours and fragrances, RTL and new materials
for cigarettes to develop products with strong market potential.
As a result, the Group will be able to create greater value for
customers and achieve a win-win situation and mutual development.
Currently, our new businesses including RTL and new materials for
cigarettes have seen strong development momentum. The Group has
established joint-major laboratories with a number of large tobacco
groups. The Group will then proceed to establish brand laboratories
with major tobacco customers. The Group has kicked off its business
transformation to develop itself from a simplistic flavours and
fragrances company into one with multiple growth drivers. For this,
the Group will perform streamlining and adjustment to its existing
business segments and structure. | have full confidence in and remain
highly optimistic about the long-term development of the Group!

ITERKEREARK  RNREFER

BRI BRBESNEEINRLE  BERBKIZE X
B EESFEERDY M REEER IR &
R EFUR —RINBENRBLEERE
R RMERBANMETREIRDRR - RaA
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B PEBRARGHEBANETEERREETEER
HeMR &I - TR R B E TS A BRI N T NHEE
e REEEBRAMITERERRINE - ER
R IR R ORR BB ANAEIR o

MEBHIE FEENEBERCEMSK

AENR RTREEEAEAMMNEATEES
B RBEFRMHES  SEENBRRFALTHNE
e —E—TFUR KEREETARCXEL
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HRMEF - RROZTCBBIERTHOAR - X
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BEILEPEF THEREFPN®R RO BEESE
EEEBRM - BERATRM - ZEFR ARE
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Fth  BRE-—WNERENRARAERKRZSIEE
RORTF - Bt RAEHHRAREHETRERE
EITIHENAE - RAAHEENRERRIFEE
o AWFEWED |
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Chairman’s Statement

EEHRE

Responded to crisis solemnly, protecting shareholders’
interests

Ever since last year, the Company had suffered from a series
of groundless accusations and condemnations, resulting in
wild fluctuation in the share price and both the Company and
its Shareholders suffered severe loss. The management was in
unity to rebut the relevant criticism in a prudent and detailed
manner. In addition, | have notified the Company in writing, my
intention to increase my shareholding as soon as practicable and
in full accordance with the relevant regulatory requirements. The
management and | are confident that we are able to overcome this
crisis, and we strongly believe that, as long as the Company keeps on
bringing returns for its Shareholders, the true value of the Company
will ultimately be reflected in the market.

Further elevate corporate governance and transparency

Huabao aim to further elevate its corporate governance and
transparency in the future, in order to increase shareholders’ and
investors’ confidence. The Company will once again appoint an
independent risk assessment consultant, to closely assess the
Company’s internal control checkpoints. Further, as the Company’s
Chairman and Executive Director, | will lead the management team to
step up in communication with the capital market in the future, so
as to further improve the Company’s transparency.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to our
loyal Shareholders, customers, suppliers and principal bankers, etc.,
for their continuous shepherd and support. | truly wish to express my
appreciation to the Directors, the management and all staff members
of the Group for their diligent hard-work in the past year. Together
with the management and the staff, we will uphold the spirit of
Huabao: “innovative, pragmatic, loyal and cooperative”, to strive for
the best of Huabao and to deliver more prosperous returns for all
Shareholders!

CHU Lam Yiu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
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CEQO’s Statement

LAU Chi Tak
CEO
gE®

B

M

The financial year of 2012 was an important one for Huabao. The
year witnessed the vigorous development of its RTL business after
strengthening its foundation of flavours and fragrances business.
Against the backdrop of tough global economic situation and
unfavorable macro environment which saw Chinese economic
growth slowing down, and the China food additives and flavours
and fragrances industries being affected by food safety incidents,
the Group nonetheless achieved favorable operating results once
again. On behalf of the management, | am pleased to report to the
Board of Directors and all Shareholders that, for the year ended 31
March 2012, sales revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
HKD3,311 million, representing an increase of 16.1% compared
with last year; profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
amounted to approximately HKD1,750 million, representing an
increase of 9.1% compared with last year. The management is
satisfied with the Group that it was able to achieve stable growth in
tough environments.

Operating environment review

In 2011, operating environments at home and abroad were fairly
tough, while the market and all industry peers struggled with
various difficulties. Although China’s gross domestic product growth
still maintained a relatively fast pace in the past year, however,
facing uncertainty surrounding the future global economy, Chinese
government still lowered its target for future economic growth
moderately. As far as the industry is concerned, the food and
beverage sector and food addictives sector have been severely hit
by the impact of a series of food safety incidents. In the past year,
apart from the challenges posted by harsh operating environment,
the domestic and international capital markets also experienced

On behalf of the Board of Directors,
I am pleased to present to the
Shareholders the annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31
March 2012.
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CEOQO’s Statement

turmoil and turbulence. In particular, some offshore-listed Chinese
domestic companies became popular targets attacked by individual
research companies and short-selling funds, which the Group had
sustained its share of groundless accusations. In response to this, |,
together with the management, resolutely rejected these groundless
accusations, firmly defended our Shareholders’ value and restored
market's confidence. Under such adverse circumstances, the Board
and the management tackled the challenges prudently, and continue
in realizing stable growth. For this, the management and | are
satisfied.

Adhering to ‘multi-pronged, focus growth’,
building an integrated core value chain and
achieving good results

For the year ended 31 March 2012, sales revenue of the Group
increased by approximately 16.1% to approximately HKD3,311
million. Gross profit margin reached approximately 70.5%, which
is stable compared with approximately 70.6% in the first half
this reporting year. EBIT margin reached approximately 62.3%,
representing an increase of approximately 1.4 percentage points
from approximately 60.9% in the first half this reporting year. Profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company was approximately
HKD1,750 million, representing an increase of approximately 9.1%
year-on-year; and basic earnings per share was HK55.48 cents,
representing an increase of about 8.8% year-on-year.

In terms of flavours business, sales revenue of the segment
reached approximately HKD2,880 million, representing an
increase of approximately 10.6% from the corresponding period
last year. Operating profit reached approximately HKD1,981
million, representing an increase of approximately 7.8% from the
corresponding period last year. In 2011, a series of food safety
incidents centering plasticizer dealt relatively more damages to
the food additives, food ingredients and flavours and fragrances
industries, where certain segment industries witnessed lowering
in demand. In the mean time, after experiencing years of rapid
consolidation, the China tobacco industry has entered into a stage
of solidifying and digesting, thus industry consolidation has not
made much progress. Under such negative industry measures, as a
leading enterprise in China’s flavours industry, the Group, along with
its staff’s endeavors and its stable operating foundation, overcame a
series of negative industry factors in the past year and realized stable
growth, which once again demonstrated the Group’s ability to resist
risks and management’s execution abilities.
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REWE

In terms of fragrances business, while being affected by the
European debt crisis and plasticizer incidents in 2011, the export
of China’s daily chemical product industry and daily personal care
product were given a blow. Mosquito coils and sprayed pesticide
markets were seen decreased due to trade-up behaviour and safety
issues. The fragrances industry was not favourable. Further, while
last year Xiamen Amber was under a period of streamlining and
adjustment due to its overly rapid growth in the past, these external
and internal issues were detrimental to Xiamen Amber’s business.
Though the 2010-acquired Yunnan Huaxiangyuan still achieved rapid
growth, the segment’s overall revenue grew by 11.0%. But since
Yunnan Huaxiangyuan was hit by the fluctuation in prices of raw
materials, operating profits of the segment decreased significantly.
The management will speed up the pace of business streamlining
and the integration of Yunnan Huaxiangyuan, and is confident in
gradually recover fragrances segment’s profitability.

In terms of RTL business, after acquiring Guangdong Jinye Group in
2010 which marked a strategic entry into the RTL industry, the Group
promoted a comprehensive integration which resulted in significant
improvement in product quality, optimization of its customer
resources and increase in average selling prices of its products.
For the year ended 31 March 2012, sales revenue of Guangdong
Jinye Group amounted to approximately HKD253 million, with EBIT
margin reached approximately 33.7%, and EBITDA margin reached
approximately 49.2%, which were significantly improved from last
year. At the same time, the second phase of the RTL construction
project, which the Group has put much efforts in, is currently
under intensive installation. The management is confident in this
production line’s future operations. During the reporting period, the
Group completed capital injection with intangible assets to Guizhou
Huangguoshu Jinye Technology Co., Ltd. (‘Huangguoshu lJinye')
10,000-ton RTL production line. After the injection, the Group's
equity holdings in Huangguoshu Jinye increased from 30% to 40%.
Meanwhile, the designing work of the Huangguoshu Jinye project
has commenced. The Group’s RTL business development is in full

play.
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In terms of the integrated core value chain, the Group injected
capital to Yongzhou Shanxiang in April 2011, which marked a new
development in the area of natural flavours, a leap forward for the
Group's strategy of vertical integration and improved the Group’s
overall competitiveness. In terms of new materials for cigarettes,
in June 2011, the Group acquired Yunnan Zhengbang, a company
that has its own professional team specializing in the R&D of new
materials for cigarettes since 2008. With its own professional R&D
team, the joining of Yunnan Zhengbang into the Group is a good
complementation to the construction of the Group’s existing R&D
team. After the acquisition, the Group established Huabao Bio.
Tech. as a R&D platform for new cigarette materials based on the
foundation of Yunnan Zhengbang. In June this year, the Group
through a joint enterprise to setup a dedicated cigarette filter
manufacturing enterprise in Korea, to provide the China market with
premium quality and personalized products, which marked the first
step towards the development in new cigarette materials.

Rewarding Shareholders and continuously creating
value for Shareholders

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group’s net cash generated
from operating activities amounted to approximately HKD1,540
million, representing an increase of approximately 9.5% as compared
with last year. Net cash balance amounted to approximately
HKD1,359 million, indicating that the Group is in a sound financial
position. After taking into account the Group’s stable operating
results and sound cash flows, the Board recommended the payment
of a final dividend for the year of HK8.88 cents (2011: HK7.98 cents)
per share or a total of dividend of HK21.86 cents per share paid for
the full year including special dividend, with dividend payout ratio
exceeded 39%. Since listing of its flavours and fragrances business,
the Group has been continuously rewarding Shareholders by way
of dividends and special dividends. Over the years, the Group has
declared total accumulated dividends of more than HKD2.6 billion,
thus practically fulfilling its commitment to share fruitful operating
results with shareholders.
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PLANS

At present, the global economic conditions are highly challenging,
plagued with changing political factors of countries across the
world, the lingering European debt crisis, and the admitted
moderate slowdown of China’s economy which has become a major
concern of the world. As China’s food and beverage and additives
industries are still in the course of recovery after a series of reported
safety incidents, a series of regulation on the tobacco industry
recently implemented by the PRC Government have also increased
uncertainties for the development of the China tobacco industry.
Coupled with the complicated external and macro environment, it is
important for the Group to adhere to the development strategy of
‘multi-pronged, focus growth’ and further refine its integrated core
value chain. Based on its solid foundation built after years of efforts,
the Group will continue to capitalize on its excellent company
culture, continue to tap new business growth areas and continue to
enhance the Group’s overall capabilities in resisting risks, in order to
achieve stable growth!

In the tobacco business segment, the Group will continue to pursue
the business development strategy of ‘Big customers, Big brands’,
and has brought forward a new path to development, i.e. using
the end market consumers as the pivot point, to effectively help
customers to understand end users’ needs. Meanwhile, the Group
will optimize the integration of existing flavours and fragrances,
RTL and new cigarette materials, strive to develop products with
market competitiveness and create higher value for our customers,
so as to achieve win-win results and mutual development. Given
that the second phase of the construction project of Guangdong
Jinye has entered into installation stage, and in view of the full-scale
development of Huabao Bio. Tech., the management believes that
there is enormous room for the Group to grow in this segment, and
the Group is about to enter into a comprehensive development stage.
In the mean time, due to regulations, the pace of the China tobacco
industry consolidation has slowed down. And recently the Chinese
government has implemented regulations on premium tobacco and
alcohol and corporate spending on tobacco and alcohol products
may gradually affect the industry and consumption. The management
will closely monitor such matters, and to respond prudently to these
new changes in the industry.
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In the food ingredients and flavours and fragrances segments, the
Chinese food additives and flavours and fragrances industries are
still in a stage of recovery after a series of food safety incidents.
The industry growth is slowed, and certain segment markets may
continue to see lower in usage demand. Leveraging on the solid
business foundation established by the Group over the years, the
increased investments in production quality control facilities and the
competent research and development team of market standards,
the Group will strive to develop under adverse circumstances and
continue to maintain stable growth. In the future, the food segment
will seek stable growth based on a sound foundation.

In the fragrances and aromatic raw materials segments, the export
of fragrances was slowed, while product safety was also detrimental
to the fragrances industry. The management will finish the
business’s streamlining and adjustment, concentrate on fragrances
business such as sanitizing and pesticide, increasing quality control
of products, optimising products and customers structure, and
developing new natural and plant extraction-based products, in order
to seek market exploration opportunities. In the mean time, the
Group will also speed up the integration of Yunnan Huaxiangyuan,
timely adjust product and market strategies, so as to gradually revive
the profitability in this segment.

As regards the use of cash, the Group has upheld its prudent
practice, that is to fully utilize its ample cash flow generated from
operations to perform expansion, increase production capacity and
distributed dividend with no less than 30% payout ratio and special
dividend. This year, considering the capital market's landscape, a
share repurchase program was also brought to the Group’s agenda.
In the future, with different developments from the RTL and new
cigarette materials sectors on hand, investment in the said areas will
be further elevated, which the Group anticipated in the next year
there will be approximately HKD700-900 million of investment mainly
on developments such as RTL (including capital commitment but
excluding major acquisitions). The management believes that these
investments will provide the Group with new growth momentum,
and that it will create larger values for Shareholders.
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As regards the capital market, the past few months had been the
most difficult time for Huabao ever since its listing of flavours and
fragrances business. Waves by waves of groundless negative reports
from the market dragged the Company into an unprecedented
capital market crisis, leading to unusual drop in its share price
and severe adverse impact on the Company’s reputation, as such,
Shareholders’ value suffered huge losses. The management made
decisive reactions to respond to the related criticism in a united,
prudent and detailed manner. We concerted our efforts to defend
groundless accusations by producing adequate evidence in the most
practical manner, striving to safeguard Shareholders’ interest to
the greatest extent. | am personally outraged by such groundless
accusations. In the six years since Huabao’s flavours and fragrances
business publicly listed in Hong Kong, Huabao has spared no efforts
in monitoring and maintaining control over its internal business
and corporate governance. | have confidence in, together with the
management, leading Huabao out of such crisis, and to safeguard
shareholders’ value through best endeavors!

Over the years, the Group has been consistently pursuing its ‘multi-
pronged, focus growth’ development strategy, using its core flavours
and fragrances business, constructing an integrated core value
chain, developing into an influential enterprise in the industry.
Although this success only represented our achievement in the
past, the management strongly believes that, as long as the Group
adheres to our development strategy, keeps abreast of the latest
developments trend of the domestic consumer products market
and constantly brings forth innovation, Huabao is able to grasp
business opportunities arising in China’s consumer products market.
Huabao has entered into a business transformation period, which the
Group will next develop itself from a simple flavours and fragrances
company into a company with multiple growth drivers. For this,
the Group will perform streamlining and adjustment to its existing
business segments and structure. The management believes that its
rapid growth momentum will gradually recover in the coming years,
thereby bringing higher value and greater rewards to Shareholders.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude
to our working partners and friends, for your long-term caring and
support. The management and |, together will the entire staff, will
keep on facing challenges and uphold our determinations, through
our relentless endeavors, to overcome various obstacles ahead, to
maintain Huabao's healthy business growth!

LAU Chi Tak
CEO

Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Production capacity of flavours and fragrances of major subsidiaries
as at 31 March 2012
RIE—ZF=A=1+—HBFEZ BRAAERBENNER

(tons &)
Shanghai i
Huabao Kongque EEILE 4,500
Huabao Shanghai EE LY 3,000
Huashun Shanghai EE LG 1,300
Shanghai Yinghua EgnE 1,500
Jiangsu STE
Taicang Wenhua RNE X 800
Wuxi Fuhua IR 1,500
Wuxi Jiahua mH R 1,200
Wuxi Huaxin fmER 600
Wuxi Huahai mIREE 500
Guangdong BR
Feijia Chuangye S ES 500
Guangdong Zhaogqing BRERE 1,000
Guangzhou Huabao BEINEE 4,000
Guangzhou Huafang/Owada BMNES REE 2,000
Others Hity
F&G F&G 150
Huabao Hong Kong EEEE 300
Qingdao Huabao EEEE 1,000
Qingdao Qingda FE5EKX 650
Xiamen Amber =gbiisis 800
Yingtan Huabao EEEE 7,000
Yongzhou Shanxiang AINLE 1,000
Yunnan Huaxiangyuan EMERR 1,000
Yunnan Tianhong EERE 2,500
Approximately
Total production capacity BERE 36,800

Production capacity of RTL of major subsidiaries, joint ventures and technical cooperation
as at 31 March 2012
RZE—ZHF=-A=1+—HBFXxZBRF  BEQRLEMAFEEMNEE S EL

(tons &)
Guangdong Jinke — 55% ownership EBERE&R —#B55% 10,000
Guangdong Jinye (under construction) — 100% ownership BREE (BEF) —HE8100% 20,000
Huangguoshu Jinye (under construction) — 40% ownership ERBEE (BEF) —FEH40% 10,000
Hunan Jinye - 10% ownership WEeE —FH10% 10,000
Shanghai Tobacco Taichuang — 6.96% ownership FERE — #56.96% 10,000
China Tobacco Anhui (under construction) — technical cooperation ZEHPE (Egh) —  iliaE 10,000

Approximately

Total production capacity HBERE 70,000
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RECENT ACQUISITIONS AND COOPERATIONS

The Group remains committed to its development strategy by
combining organic growth plus M&A in carrying out consolidation
in the China's flavours and fragrances industry and upstream
businesses, which we believe, has reaped satisfactory results. During
the reporting period, the Group completed the establishment of
Yongzhou Shanxiang and the acquisition of Yunnan Zhengbang,
making dynamic progress in implementing the strategic plan of
constructing an integrated core value chain. As a result, the Group's
overall competitiveness has been further enhanced.

Establishment of Yongzhou Shanxiang

In April 2011, the Group through its subsidiary entered into a capital
injection agreement to Yongzhou Shanxiang with an independent
third party, which the Group injected approximately HKD27,594,000
and holds 67.1% of equity interest after the injection. Yongzhou,
located in the southwest of Hunan Province, is very suitable for
the growth of litsea cubeba, a natural aromatic raw material, and
is one of the main producing areas of litsea cubeba oil, where its
output accounts for a leading position globally. In 2010, the General
Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine
of the PRC implemented the geographical indications protection on
litsea cubeba oil in Yongzhou, further strengthened the advantageous
position of litsea cubeba industry in Yongzhou.

Yongzhou Shanxiang's management team has extensive experience
in the industry and its targeted end users include globally leading
food and beverage enterprises. Capital injection into Yongzhou
Shanxiang is another strategic deployment of the Group in building
an integrated core value chain. Yongzhou Shanxiang will rely on the
resources of Yongzhou, fully capitalize our existing advantages in
capital, technology, market and brand, and gradually increase the
efforts in purchasing litsea cubeba oil; committed to technology
development and products upgrade, and focus on fine and further
processing technology. It will also actively penetrate existing key
international customers. By utilizing the geographic advantages of
Yongzhou, it will further enhance the advantages of natural aromatic
raw materials business in the district and become a natural flavours
enterprise with resources advantages and characteristics.
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Acquisition of Yunnan Zhengbang

In June 2011, the Group through its subsidiary acquired 100% equity
interest in Yunnan Zhengbang from an independent third party at a
consideration of approximately HKD6,926,000, which was satisfied by
the Group’s internal funds. Established in 2008, Yunnan Zhengbang
is an enterprise specializing in innovation, application and production
of new cigarette materials in the PRC. Currently, its products are
mainly used in cigarette paper and filters to lower tar and harmful
content, improve smoke taste, enhance flavours and retain moisture,
etc. Yunnan Zhengbang houses a professional technology R&D team
with various patents of invention, and it is one of the few enterprises
specializing in the R&D of new cigarette materials in China.

The Group is now performing integration to Yunnan Zhengbang
and based on its foundation, the Group then established Shanghai
Huabao Bio. Tech., a new R&D platform for new cigarette materials,
for the purpose of integrating new cigarette materials technology
and cigarette perfumery technology, and collaborating technological
cooperation with various science and technology institutions
including Yunnan Academy of Tobacco Science and Kunming
Institute of Botany under the Chinese Academy of Science in
order to aggressively develop its new cigarette materials business.
The acquisition of Yunnan Zhengbang is in line with the Group’s
development strategy of “multi-pronged, focus growth”, and will
effectively expedite the Group’s research of new cigarette materials
and development of relevant products. In the future, the Group will
provide tobacco enterprises with more comprehensive services by
capitalizing on the combined strength of the existing personnel and
foundation of Yunnan Zhengbang and Huabao’s solid customer base,
flavours and fragrances products and technology.

Establishment of cigarette filter joint enterprise

In June 2012, the Group is going to set up a subsidiary to engage
mainly in cigarette filter manufacturing jointly with independent third
parties in Korea. The investment of such joint enterprise is planned
to be 11.1 billion Korean Won (equivalent to approximately HKD70
million), which the Group will hold 60% equity holdings. The joint
enterprise is with an aim to produce personalized products for the
China market, as a new attempt by the Group in the development of
new cigarette materials business.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of Flavours Business

1.

Review of operating results

For the year ended 31 March 2012, sales revenue
of the flavours business of the group amounted to
HKD2,880,286,000, representing an increase of about 10.6%
from the corresponding period last year. The EBIT ratio of the
flavours segment was approximately 68.8%, representing a
decrease of approximately 1.7 percentage points as compared
to approximately 70.5% for the corresponding period last year;
The EBITDA ratio was approximately 71.1%, representing a
decrease of approximately 1.8 percentage points as compared
to approximately 72.9% for the corresponding period last year.
The growth rate in the flavours business has slowed compared
with last year’s, this was mainly attributable to certain negative
effects of the China food and beverage industry and the food
additives industry, as well as the slow-down in the pace of
consolidation of the tobacco sector in the PRC. Such decline
in both the EBIT and EBITDA margins of the segment was
mainly due to factors such as enhanced efforts on research
and development and an increase in staff’'s wages and welfare
benefits.

In respect of the tobacco business, as the tobacco industry
entered into the post-consolidation era, cross-provincial
consolidation was slowed. The China tobacco industry has
entered into a solidifying and digesting period following a rapid
consolidation. Adhering to the strategy of “Big Customers,
Big Brands”, through a number of major laboratories, coupled
with the trend of product reducing tar and harmful content,
to explore business growth points, the Group once again
has achieved a stable growth. For the year ended 31 March
2012, sales revenue from the Group’s largest customer, i.e.
China Tobacco Yunnan Materials Group Co., Ltd, increased by
approximately 16.9% from last year, while sales revenue from
the Group’s top 5 customers also increased by approximately
16.9% from last year.
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F&G production base
FRGHEEE M

Since April this year, the Group’s F&G production base, which is
based in the Republic of Botswana, gradually entered its peak
season. The daily operations remained smooth. During the
reporting period, F&G was invited to the local government’s
annual dinner and delivered a speech, which further elevated
the image of Chinese-enterprises and Chinese citizens in the
local area.

In respect of the food and beverage business, the Group
adhered to the development of natural and healthy products
that fitted local tastes, and provided product quality and taste
solutions for local major customers. After several years of
rapid development, the Group has become one of the largest
local flavours and fragrances providers in China. Last year, the
operating environment in the industry was full of challenges,
as a series of food safety incidents centering plasticizer have
relatively affected more on the food flavours and food additives
industries. However, thanks to the solid business foundation
established by the Group over the years, the increased
investments in production facilities and our competent research
and development team which are of international standard,
the Group kept its record of no material incidents on food
safety, which further boosted its industry reputation. In terms
of operations, the Group's direct sales and distribution sales
businesses were affected considerably. However, the business
with some of the reputable end customers such as Wahaha
Group continued to achieve growth, the food business
achieved relatively fast growth. The management is satisfied
with the fact that the flavours segment realized growth having
overcome a series of unfavorable industry matters.
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Last year, the Group's subsidiaries achieved sound operating
results. On the R&D side, the subsidiaries including Wuxi
Huahai, Wuxi Fuhua and Yunnan Tianhong have received a
total of 8 national patents. Guangzhou Huafang participated
in various major campaigns in the PRC tobacco sector last year.
Moreover, in August 2011, the Group established the “Joint
Laboratory of Reconstituted Tobacco Leaves produced with
Paper-making Method” in cooperation with China Tobacco
Guangdong, the Group’s core client. The establishment of such
laboratory has further strengthened the strategic cooperation
between the Group and China Tobacco Guangdong, and
represented a landmark move in enhancing the comprehensive
resources advantage in different areas. In regards to product
innovation, the sweetened pear flavours produced by Huabao
Kongque was widely welcomed by the market. Guangdong
Zhaoging achieved growth from sizeable customers such as
Wahaha Group. Meanwhile, construction of a comprehensive
production base initiated by the Group last year was generally
completed. The production base is located in a provincial
science and technology development zone in Yingtan city
of Jiangxi province. Since its trail production commenced in
November 2011, in March 2012 Yingtan Huabao was awarded
“2011 Industrial Development Enterprise Improvement Award”
issued by the government of Yingtan city.

In the aromatic raw materials sector, Qingdao Qingda, through
developing premium products, was able to optimize its product
base and achieved rapid growth, with its source of growth
mainly from customers in Europe and India. Its top products,
paprika coloring and paprika resin were well received by
domestic and international customers. Yongzhou Shanxiang
continuously improved its lemon citrus extraction technology.
Currently, Yongzhou Shanxiang’s second phase lemon citrus
extraction production line is generally completed and has
entered trail production. Through such technology upgrade,
the Group aim to improve its refining technology and elevate
product value.
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Yingtan Huabao production base

BREEELELM

In addition, Huabao Shanghai received a number of awards in
the industry. During the reporting period, Huabao Shanghai
was awarded “Top 10 Enterprises of Perfume and Essence in
China Light Industries 2010” announced by China National
Light Industry Council, reinforcing its leading position in the
industry; Huabao Shanghai was granted “Silver Award for
Comprehensive Strength in Jiading Industrial Zone 2011";
and the General Manager of Huabao Shanghai also received
“Excellent Entrepreneur of Advanced Manufacturing Industry
in Jiading Industrial Zone 2011", which acknowledged the
Company'’s influence in the local economy development.

Major financial indicators of flavours
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1,980,782 1,837,579

68.8% 70.5%
2,048,121 1,899,273
71.1% 72.9%

Recent developments and prospects of the downstream
sectors

a. Recent developments in the tobacco industry

We note that China is the world’s largest cigarette
consuming country, accounting for approximately one-
third of the total annual consumption in the world. China
has over 300 million smokers, consuming over 2 trillion
sticks of cigarettes each year. In recent years, China’s
tobacco industry has been growing steadily and reflected
several characteristics:

THTENRFRANREE

a. BETRHRIIER

TEEERE-ANBERER - 15
HARFEEBEN=D2z— TEHEBE
MENERBFHEARFBEE2ERXE
B o TAER > PRIEETE-HER
PR - MIHRIVEERRE -

Huabao International Holdings Limited EBEEIFRZERBER AT » 2011-2012 Annual Report F 3k



Management Discussion and Analysis

Firstly, Chinese style cigarettes made up a substantial
proportion of the total consumption, while imported
cigarettes only accounted for approximately 0.1% of the
market share in the PRC over the previous years (Source:
Euromonitor);

Secondly, the tobacco industry continues to play a
significant role in the Chinese economy, contributing
industrial and commercial profit tax of approximately
RMB752.9 billion in 2011, representing an increase of
approximately 22.5% (Source: TobaccoChina Online); and

Thirdly, with the steady improvement in the living
standards of Chinese residents, the demand for high-end
consumer products has been growing gradually.

Tobacco industry has entered into the post-consolidation
era, consolidation slowed down

The Chinese tobacco industry has entered into the era
of consolidation since 2005. In 2008, the consolidation
evolved into a new stage in which cross-provincial and
large scale industrial restructuring took place and brand
concentration enhanced substantially. The market share
of the top ten brands in terms of sales volume has
increased by more than 50% over the course of the
Eleventh Five-Year Plan, and the top ten brands in terms
of sales revenue have posted a rapid double-digit growth
in CAGR.

In 2010, the STMA has proposed that the quality of
cigarettes must attain a higher standard and that key
brands will be further cultivated. The “532" and “461"
targets were set as the direction of development for
tobacco brands under the next five-year plan. But looking
back to 2011, as far as the Group is aware there has not
been a case of cross-provincial consolidation. The Group
believes that China’s tobacco industry has entered into
a stage of solidifying and digesting after a rapid pace of
consolidation. In the future, the industry will continuously
give rise to higher degrees of concentration and trading
up of brand, while the pace of consolidation will further
be slowed.
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The Chinese government strengthened the regulation
of the tobacco industry, which increased industry
development uncertainties

The management noticed that the Chinese government
introduced a series of new smoking control measures,
including the control of smoking areas, boosting tar
and harmful content reduction, and implemented new
standards including maximum tar content. According to
the Twelfth Five-Year Plan for the tobacco industry, in the
next few years, regulation on the new tar content will
continue to be the major trend in the tobacco industry.
In view of experience from international economically-
developed countries, smoking control may pose its effect
on spending behaviour in a long run. Meanwhile, the
Chinese government started to implement limitations to
the government’s consumption in cigarettes, alcohol and
premium tobacco since last year. These administrative
measures may cause certain effects on the tobacco
industry development and cigarette consumption.
The Group has established a sound reputation in the
domestic tobacco industry and has been paying close
attention to related regulatory matters, and proactively
complementing the government’s policy with respect to
the direction of the regulations going forward. During
the year, the Group hosted a series of industry-related
seminars; in the future, the management will continue
to pay close attention on the latest developments in this
area and respond with full preparation.

The food and beverage industry enters consolidation and
adjustment stage

Since last year, the food and beverage industry is shocked
by its numerous safety incidents and problems, which
have caused great concern from society as well as the
regulating bodies and sparked another round of industry
integration. Some small and medium food and beverage
enterprises are forced to withdraw from the market,
imposing negative impact on related industry chains.
On the other hand, during this disturbance, the food
additives industry has taken a toll to a certain extent.
As a result, growth in flavours and fragrances industry
has slowed down. The management considered that
such phenomenon, in near future, will linger and will
also cast negative impact on the Group. However, in
the longer perspective, this is a stage to endure before
the whole industry becomes more centralized and more
sophisticated. As such, it will not affect management'’s
optimistic view about the PRC food and beverage
industry in the long run.
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3. Development strategy for the flavours business

a.

Tobacco sector

To continuously pursue the “Big Customers, Big
Brands” development strategy;

To fully utilize joint laboratories setup with major
customers, to step up in comprehensive and
technological cooperation with leading players in
the tobacco industry, and to continuously discover
new growth points;

To explore and realize the trend of China cigarette
market, to cope with the Group’s RTL and new
cigarette materials business, to use the end market
consumers as the pivot point, to effectively help
customers to understand end users' needs; and

To speed up the construction of the comprehensive
production base of Yingtan Huabao, to further
elevate operation efficiency.

Food and beverage sector

Using “Big Customers, Big Brands” as a strategic
direction, to continue to expand into natural
aromatic raw material business in order to construct
an integrated core value chain;

Using personalized food ingredients and food
ingredients and additives based on natural extracts
as a catalyst in future development, to explore for
new growth opportunities;

To step up efforts in food safety to ensure food
safety, and to eradicate major food safety incidents;
and

To increase spending on R&D and bring in
exceptional R&D personnel to continuously upgrade
the R&D standards of our products.
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Review of Fragrances Business

1.

32

Review of operating results

For the year ended 31 March 2012, sales revenue of
the fragrances business of the Group amounted to
HKD177,946,000, representing an increase of approximately
11.0% from the previous year. Operating profit amounted
to HKD8,016,000, decreased by HKD22,616,000 from
HKD30,632,000 in the previous year. EBIT margin reached
approximately 4.5%, representing a significant decrease
compared to 19.1% of last year. The increase in sales revenue
of the fragrances business was mainly contributed by the
acquisition of Yunnan Huaxiangyuan; while the sharp decline
in operating margin of the sector was mainly due to the fact
that revenue of Yunnan Huaxiangyuan with low gross margin
accounted for a higher percentage of total revenue of the
sector, and that gross margin of Yunnan Huaxiangyuan has
shrunk in view of the fluctuation in prices of raw materials.

Looking back to 2011, the China fragrances industry was
not pleasant and full of challenges. On one hand, the China
fragrances export was affected to a certain extent by the
European debt crisis and exchange rate fluctuation; on the
other hand, the plasticizer incidents were relatively more
detrimental to the domestic fragrances industry, especially
the daily personal care industry. Mosquito coils and sprayed
pesticides were seen decreased in demand due to trade-up
behaviour and safety issues, etc. These negative reasons have
posted challenges to business of Xiamen Amber. In the mean
time, Xiamen Amber was also in the process of streamlining
and adjusting its overly grown business in the earlier stage.
These caused Xiamen Amber’s sales revenue dropped, but
thanks to the rapid growth from the acquired Yunnan
Huaxiangyuan, the fragrances business realized 11.0% growth.
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During the reporting period, Yunnan Huaxiangyuan's
primary products, namely eucalyptus oil and citronella oil,
achieved rapid growth. But the price of eucalyptus oil in the
international market was declined sharply due to the European
debt crisis, thus affected its gross profit margin; in the mean
time, two new pinene products were introduced, especially
the B -pinene which contributed relatively higher profit due
to its higher profitability. Since the completion of acquisition,
Yunnan Huaxiangyuan had its management flow optimized
and operation efficiency elevated. Furthermore, Xiamen
Amber won the title of “The Most Potential SME” in Xiamen
City for the third straight year; while Yunnan Huaxiangyuan
was also one of the first enterprises awarded the title of
“Leading Enterprise” of forest industry in Chuxiong city of
Yunnan Province, in recognition of its excellent capabilities
in business operation and technology innovation. Xiamen
Amber has made much efforts to promote its brand, such as
participating in the 6th China Xiamen International Buddhist
Items & Crafts Fair, the 2011 Annual Meeting and Exhibition of
Household Sanitation and Insects-killing Products Committee
in the second half of 2011, and among all, the 2011 Annual
Meeting of China Sundry Articles Industry Association Incense
Manufacture Branch was held by Xiamen Amber. In December,
after assessment and evaluation by the experts from the
National Science and Technology Board, Xiamen Amber was
approved to set up the Xiamen Flavors Key R&D Laboratory.
The approval was attributed to the fact that it has in place
advanced equipment and facilities of the industry and high-
end R&D talents, and also its continuous cooperation with
research institutions. The establishment of this key laboratory
will significantly improve the research power of Xiamen Amber
and helps to enhance the technology level of the industry as a
whole.

Major financial indicators of fragrances

HRABRBERZEIENKEE

HKD thousand BT
Sales revenue SHEWA
EBIT EBIT

EBIT margin EBITE
EBITDA EBITDA
EBITDA margin EBITDAZ

BEEENWR DT

RARERE - ZHESRNEZERRER
LREZHESSHEER  ERBESEERE
M5 FRERERAE TEMEEEERNE
FEIRNEMEREEESR  HP L KEEFE
B HAMEEEA - TRIREER - BBYE
HESRNEERRBETTEL R TES
WMo BYN . EFRIHEES - FEZEEM
mIEEKREFRNEE], MEEESRITU
BRMNEELE REMAF SR NES TER
ERMNHEEES I [BEEME R -
ERREE L ERERGEEHE  £-F
——FT4a - PRI T E/NEFBEEP R
HEAREES 200NEFREHEBAES
FXZEEFER MEF201MFEFBEAA
HRIXWesErsefeESmEMRHAE
Wen—T——F+—"F EMENERNEAS
TERARENERSBRIIHNHEAT -
WA NE BRI R EGEA - CBEREH
BEBEREZMNIERER  BitERE
FIMERARERERE] - LEHEREN
HE - BAKESEMRANESMHE - TR
15 7R 3 BB 1T 3 R AT KCE M IR FHAE BIFE AR (E
)EH o

Yunnan Huaxiangyuan production base

EHEBREEEM
2012 2011
177,946 160,352
8,016 30,632
4.5% 19.1%
11,180 33,173
6.3% 20.7%
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Development strategy for the fragrances business

- To fully utilize Xiamen Amber as a platform and the
robust composite R&D capability of the Group’s State-
recognized technology centre and overseas R&D centre,
to concentrate on sanitizing, pesticide and aromatic
products;

- To establish working partner relationships with market
segment leaders;

- To capitalize on the upstream advantages of Yunnan
Huaxiangyuan, to further explore the market with
comprehensive quality solutions using premium natural
aromatic raw materials complemented by personalized
flavours products; and

- To seek opportunities for corporations and M&As and
identify the right opportunity with those enterprises
whose products and markets are complementary with
the Group, to further explore and increase development
in the upstream aromatic raw materials business and
premium fragrances products.

Review of RTL Business

1.

34

Review of operating results

As of 31 March 2012, the Group's sales revenue of the RTL
amounted to HKD253,072,000, representing an increase of
approximately 191.7% as compared with HKD86,759,000
last year, and accounted for 7.6% of the Group’'s sales
revenue as compared with 3.0% last year. Operating profit
reached HKD85,316,000, representing an increase of
approximately 472.4% as compared with HKD14,905,000
last year. The significant increase in sales revenue of RTL is
mainly attributable to the fact that the operating period was
approximately 11 months this year and there had been 1
month without operation due to implementation of technical
upgrade during the year while there was only 5 months period
last year following acquisition to consolidation of accounts,
and the average selling price was increased through such
technical upgrade implemented during the year. EBIT margin
reached approximately 33.7%, representing a noticeable
increase as compared to approximately 17.2% from last year;
EBITDA margin reached approximately 49.2%, which was also
noticeably increased from 33.5% of last year. The noticeable
increase in EBIT and EBITDA margins are attributable to the
increase in average selling price and improvement in production
workmanship that led to an increase in gross profit margin.
Since the acquisition of Guangdong Jinye Group in November
2010, the management was satisfied with the results of the
related business consolidation and development.
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During the reporting period, the Group carried out a technical
upgrade for 10,000-ton production line of Guangdong lJinke,
which has noticeably improved its product quality, average
selling price and customer structure. The technical upgrade
was intended to enhance the coating condition, stabilize
the product quality and improve the sensory quality of the
products. By introducing internationally advanced technology,
optimizing process parameters and enhancing the control
system, the major processes, namely extraction, condensation,
pulping, fluid flowing and controlling were renovated and
upgraded, which significantly enhanced the taste and odour
as well as the in-process endurance of products, stabilized
the product quality between different batches and enhanced
the stability of products within the same batch. After the
technological upgrade, the quality of Guangdong Jinke's RTL
has reached a leading position in China’s tobacco industry
and helped it penetrate into the mid and high-end cigarette
products. The clients were impressed by its product quality, and
the management was also satisfied with what being achieved
since entering into the RTL sector.

Currently, the second phase of Guangdong Jinye Project, i.e.
the 20,000-ton RTL production line, which the Group has put
much effort to establish, is under installation. The management
is confident of the successful delivery of the second phase of
Guangdong lJinye Project. During the reporting period, the
Group completed capital injection with intangible assets to
Huangguoshu Jinye with 10,000-ton RTL production line. After
the injection, the Group's equity holdings in Huangguoshu
Jinye increased from 30% to 40%. Meanwhile, the designing
work of such production line has commenced. The Group’s RTL
business development is in full play.

During the reporting period, Guangdong Jinye's R&D team
was granted a number of patents and honours, including
national patents for “A Method to Lower Pectin in the
Extract of Reconstituted Tobacco Made Through Paper-
making Process” and “A Method to Recycling of Waste Water
during the Production of Reconstituted Tobacco”, etc.. These
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Second phase of Guangdong Jinye
production line, mega-size Yankee Dryer
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patents have not only displayed their constantly-enhanced
capability of research & development and innovation, but
also further consolidated the leading position of the Group in
China’s reconstituted tobacco industry. Since January 2012,
the General Manager of Guangdong Jinye was honourably
elected as a member of the 13th session of the People’s
Congress of Shantou City, the Vice Chairman of Federation
of Industry and Commerce of Shantou City of Chaoyang
District, and a committee member of The Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Shantou City of Chaoyang
District, which was not only of great significance in elevating
its corporate image and reputation, but also showcased
their contribution to the society by driving local economic
development.

In April 2012, the STMA again confirmed it would lower the
maximum tar content allowed in each cigarette as a support to
the campaign of reducing tar and harmful content of cigarettes.
The relevant notice stated that from 1 January 2013, cigarettes
containing 11 mg or more of tar each cannot be sold in China;
meanwhile, cigarettes do not comply with the same tar content
requirement cannot be imported into China. This measure is
another definitive timetable set by the STMA following back
in 2010 that from 1 January 2015, the tar content in each
cigarette must not exceed 10 mg. This indicates that the
government is steadily stepping up its efforts in lowering tar
and harmful content for the long term, and for that reason,
the outlook of RTL is positive. (Source: TobaccoChina Online)

Development strategy for the RTL business

- To implement the new development direction of using
the end market consumers as the pivot point, to fully
integrate the Group's overall competitiveness in tobacco
chemistry technology, tobacco flavours technology and
new cigarette materials, to assist customers to develop
products with market competitiveness, to develop into
the Group’s new growth engines;

- To ensure the Guangdong lJinye second phase 20,000-
ton production line can be completed in high quality and
production in place;

- To finalize customer optimization process, laying a solid
foundation for second phase production line's future
target customers;

- To strive for the Huangguoshu Jinye and China Tobacco
Anhui RTL projects; and

- To continue in improving cooperation with domestic
tobacco and RTL enterprises, further elevate its influence
in the industry.
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Major financial indicators of RTL

EEEHR 2 TEHMBES

HKD thousand BET T 2012 2011
Sales revenue SHEIA 253,072 86,759
EBIT EBIT 85,316 14,905
EBIT margin EBITX 33.7% 17.2%
EBITDA EBITDA 124,516 29,062
EBITDA margin EBITDA 49.2% 33.5%
Introduction of new cigarette materials BEFMEN A

New cigarette materials refer to a range of new auxiliary materials BEFMMEREEBETIEAEFRAN— R
used in the production of cigarettes, which will affect the AWML AMFELEREE  FAHERIER
characteristics of tobacco smell, adjust its odour style, lowering of tar & * JREEE - EBFINE L2 FHORERT H K
and other harmful content. Its unique appearance and whole-new IRERENBETAFEAERE 2 N —PHBE
smoking experience have an increasingly obvious effect on end user WEEMPEHFHNEEFEZ—  FAMTH
consumption behaviour. The application of these materials is one of KB EMEZFMEFEANERE - BERENE K - M3
the crucial measures to enhance the competitive strength of tobacco ~ HHIIBIEAR « B4 - ALK FURM B EF MR
enterprises. New and customized cigarette materials have been HIHFREZHE -

emerging with huge development potentials. New cigarette paper,

connecting paper, shaping paper and filtering materials are among

the major items of new cigarette materials.
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After several years of research & development and preparation,
the Group acquired Yunnan Zhengbang in June 2011 and soon
established Huabao Bio. Tech. after optimization and integration
was done, so as to combine the Group’s existing tobacco chemical
technology with the new cigarette materials technology of Yunnan
Zhengbang and form a new platform for the development of new
cigarette materials. In June 2012, the Group is going to set up a
subsidiary to engage in cigarette filter manufacturing jointly with
independent third parties in Korea to provide the China market
with personalized products, so as to take the first step towards the
development of new cigarette materials. Next, the Group intends to
establish a complete and reliable supply chain management system
by integrating and coordinating the cigarette materials manufacturers
all over the world, and adopt a customer focused, market demand
driven approach, so as to use the end market consumers as the pivot
point, to effectively help customers to understand end users' needs,
to enhance their brands' competitive strength, and to achieve mutual
growth and win-win scenarios.

Review on R&D

The R&D capability of a flavours and fragrances company reflects
its overall strength. After continuous investment, the Group has
set up its leading R&D team which is leading in China and up to
international standards. The State-recognized technology centre,
the overseas R&D centre in Germany and the professional R&D
departments in Yunnan, Guangdong and Fujian together formed
a vertically integrated platform for R&D in areas ranging from
fundamental researches to applications. The R&D strategy of the
Group is market-driven so as to closely follow the latest global
industry trends and to accelerate the mastering of technologies
in key raw materials. With such strengths, the Group is able to
develop products and technologies that meet market demands,
deliver comprehensive technical services to customers and remain
dedicated to maximizing value for clients, while the Group’s overall
competitiveness is greatly elevated.

Second phase of Guangdong Jinye production line
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During the reporting period, subsidiaries of the Group obtained
a number of invention patents. In April last year, Wuxi Huahai
received its patent from the State Intellectual Property Office for its
invention named “Extraction Method of a kind of Natural Herbal
Fragrance Component and the Application of the Extract”. In May,
two technological projects of Yunnan Tianhong, i.e. “Research on
Recycling of Tobacco Leaf Waste and Application Technology” and
"Research, Development and Application of Natural Cigarette Flavors
and Fragrances” have both been identified to fall within the “State-
supported High-Tech Fields”. In November, three inventions of
Yunnan Tianhong, i.e. “Methodology of Producing Tobacco Flavors
with Scrapped Tobacco Leaf”, “Preparation of a y — Valerolactone
Fragrance and its Application in Cigarette Manufacturing” and
"A Chinese Herbal Medicine Additive used in Cigarette and its
Preparation and Application” obtained patented invention certificates
from the State Intellectual Property Office.

Other than R&D, the Group also took part in various events and
activities for the PRC tobacco industry during the year. In particular,
Guangzhou Huafang, being the training centre of cigarette flavourists
for STMA, has spearheaded to organize a number of activities. In July
last year, the Group held the 2nd Senior Cigarette Flavorists Entrance
Examination of the Tobacco Industry organized by the Science &
Technology Department, which was attended by 30 core cigarette
flavourists from 17 PRC tobacco companies. In the same month,
the forum named “Plan for Major Project of Reconstituted Tobacco
Produced with Paper-making Method” also organized by the Science
& Technology Department was held in Guangzhou Huafang. It was
attended by a number of experts from 11 organizations including
industry R&D and manufacturers of RTL bases, Yunnan Tobacco
Research Institute and some tobacco companies. The experts have
discussed the plan for major project of reconstituted tobacco leaves
produced with paper-making method, and made suggestions for
revision expressed their opinions. In August, the Group held the 3rd
Session of Training on Flavor Sensory Evaluation of Chinese-style
Cigarettes, which has taken flavor sensory evaluation of cigarettes as
the entry point and established the relevant evaluation methods with
systematic representation. This is of great importance to the design
and R&D of Chinese-style cigarette products. In November, the “2nd
Training Course for Senior Cigarette Flavorists” was successfully held
in Guangzhou Huafang. This was beneficial for training core cigarette
flavourists who can promote the development of the well-known
Chinese-style cigarette brands with prominent execution ability and
creativity.
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In May 2011, Huabao Shanghai/U.S. Waters Jointly-Constructed
Key Laboratory, established through cooperation between Huabao
Shanghai and U.S. Waters, was officially inaugurated. As one of
the largest professional manufacturers of liquid chromatography,
mass spectrometry and related products in the world, U.S. Waters
possesses powerful research institutions and a leading production
plant of chromatographic column around the globe, it is of the few
professional manufacturers who has the capacity to produce three
liquid chromatography elements as liquid chromatographs, chemicals
and data processing system simultaneously. The establishment of this
Jointly-Constructed Key Laboratory has strengthened the Group's
technical cooperation with international standards, which further
elevated the Group’s capabilities in the areas of analyzing and control
and helped laid a sound foundation for the Group’s future stable
development.

Increase input to build an internationalized R&D team

The Group has been continuously increasing input into R&D in order
to achieve a top-notch R&D team in the industry and to sustain a
long-term R&D advantage. This year the Group’s R&D cost amounted
to HKD186,382,000, representing approximately 5.6% of sales
revenue, compared with approximately 4.3% of corresponding
period last year. During the year, the Group invested in a batch
of high-precision equipment and tools, securing the Group’s next
stage of development. Furthermore, Huabao has emphasized on
the internationalization of its talented staff. Over the years, Huabao
has embarked on setting up an internationalized R&D team, whose
R&D capability is directly in line with advanced international levels.
Further, the Group will also consider in establishing new R&D
facilities overseas at the right timing. Currently, the Group employs a
total of more than 400 R&D personnel in various aspects, assembling
a respectable team with strong R&D capabilities.

Internationalized R&D team
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Foreign experts INMEER 12*
Senior experts with over 20 years of experience BREBIE20FNERER 18
Tobacco flavours technicians EREBRMAE 80
Food flavours technicians RABBRIMAE 76
Fragrances technicians HABRBEIITAR 8
Biological technology technicians HEERIEEMAE 15
Fragrances developing technicians BERHFEREMAER 77
Analysis, tests and quality control professionals S ATIORIHN fn 2 127
Total “ag 413
* Including 5 are also senior experts with over 20 years of experience * HAPSANMARREBB20FHERER
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Human Resources and Corporate Culture
construction

The Group remained committed to corporate culture construction
and established a clear vision, as well as a common goal for all
employees, of combining corporate development and individual
growth to achieve common development of the Company and its
employees. Adhering to its core value of “client first” for years to
maximize client values, the Group also constituted a code of conduct
for each employee on the basis of this concept. The Group organized
corporate culture promotion activities, including articles and speeches
delivered by the management, publication of Huabao Monthly and
essay competitions. The Group enriched employees’ leisure time
through various recreational and sports activities including sports
contests and outward bound training to reinforce cohesion of
Huabao people and their sense of identity.

The Group placed substantial emphasis on talent training. The
Group stepped up its efforts in creating a scientific and flexible
management environment and institutional mechanism in terms of
policy, system and culture development, empowering each employee
to make full use of his expertise and specialties and maintaining a
joint force in its staff to create more value for the Group. The Group
established a sound training scheme for its reserve talents on the
basis of external recruitment. The selection procedures applied to
reserve talents include five stages, namely internal nomination and
selection, work units review, verification by headquarter, approval
and result announcement. Reserve talents management mainly
comprises regular inspection, dynamic adjustment, training and
profile management. Through its annual examination and assessment
on reserve talents, the result of which is to be recorded into personal
profile, the Group will promote those with excellent appraisal
performance and eliminate those with unsatisfactory results.
During inspection period, reserve talents are under direct coaching
and supervision of mentors. The Group organizes reserve talents
selection and review every year to guarantee healthy and orderly
development of reserve talents. The continuous construction of our
talent team guarantees new momentum for corporate expansion and
development.

The Group established a multi-level comprehensive staff training
system, comprising special training program for middle to high level
employees, intensive training for reserve talents, as well as business
skills and industrial know-how coaching for front-line staff. External
experts, internal management and professionals were invited to act
as program trainers. Through these successive training programs,
the initiatives of employees were mobilized while their professional
knowledge and technical competency were enhanced.
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In regards to employee salary and incentive system, the Group has
implemented a new remuneration system referenced to the market,
to attract stable and exceptional talents, so as to cope with the
Group's long term development needs. As at 31 March 2012, the
Group employed a total of 2,236 employees in the PRC, Hong
Kong, Germany and Botswana, representing an increase of 367
employees from 1,869 employees of last year. The labour costs of
the year (including pension costs) amounted to HKD192,208,000,
representing a increase of HKD43,126,000 from HKD149,082,000
for the previous year. For details, please refer to Note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements headed under “Employment Benefit
Expenses”. The increase in the labour costs was primarily attributable
to the increase in the number of employees, hike of product and
living standards in China and the Group’s input in human resources.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Analysis of annual results for the year ended 31
March 2012

Sales revenue

The Group’s sales revenue amounted to HKD3,311,304,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2012, representing an increase of about 16.1%
as compared with HKD2,852,173,000 for the corresponding period
last year. The rapid growth in sales revenue was mainly attributable
to a substantial increase in the sales of flavours and RTL. For the
year ended 31 March 2012, sales revenue from flavours increased to
HKD2,880,286,000, contributing about 87.0% of total sales revenue;
sales revenue from fragrances increased to HKD177,946,000,
contributing about 5.4% of total sales revenue; while sales revenue
from RTL increased to HKD253,072,000, contributing about 7.6% of
total sales revenue.

Cost of goods sold

The Group’s cost of goods sold amounted to HKD975,308,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2012, representing an increase of about
33.3% as compared with HKD731,714,000 for the corresponding
period last year. The increase in cost of goods sold being higher than
the increase in sales revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease
in gross profit margin.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit of the Group increased from HKD2,120,459,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2011 to HKD2,335,996,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2012, representing an increase of about 10.2%;
gross profit margin reached 70.5%, representing a decrease from
74.3% of the last financial year. The decrease in gross profit margin
was mainly attributable to the change of the sectors’ revenue mix,
with sales revenue of Fragrances and RTL (whose gross profit margins
are relatively lower) to overall sales revenue ratio increased from
approximately 8.7% last year to approximately 13.0% this year.
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Other income

Other income of the Group was HKD258,551,000 for the year ended
31 March 2012, representing an increase of HKD135,876,000 as
compared with HKD122,675,000 for the year ended 31 March 2011.
The increase in other income was mainly attributable to the increase
in local government grants and gains realized from intangibles assets.

Selling and marketing expenses

The selling and marketing expenses of the Group mainly comprised
of travelling expenses, transportation costs,
expenses. The selling and marketing expenses of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2012 were HKD105,807,000, representing
an increase of about 30.6% as compared with HKD81,040,000 for
the corresponding period last year. Selling and marketing expenses
to total sales revenue for the year ended 31 March 2012 and 2011
amounted to approximately 3.2 % and 2.8% respectively. The
increase in the ratio of selling and marketing expenses to sales
revenue was mainly attributable to increase in price levels and selling

salaries and office

efforts by the Group.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses amounted to HKD424,689,000
for the year ended 31 March 2012, representing an increase of
approximately 46.2% as compared with HKD290,388,000 for the
corresponding period last year. Administrative expenses to total sales
revenue during the current financial year amounted to approximately
12.8%, representing an increase of approximately 2.6 percentage
points as compared with 10.2% for the corresponding period last
year. Among the total sales revenue during the current financial
year, R&D expenses amounted to approximately 5.6%, an increase
of approximately 1.3 percentage points compared with last year.
Meanwhile, auditor’s remuneration for the current reporting year
included HKD3,018,000 (2011: nil) additional audit services fee for
conducting procedures in response to allegations as referred to in a
report in the market. The increase in ratio of administrative expenses
to total sales revenue was mainly attributable to the increase in R&D,
depreciation and amortization expenses, number of labour and price
levels.

Operating profit

Operating profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012
was HKD2,064,051,000, representing an increase of approximately
10.3% as compared with HKD1,871,706,000 for the corresponding
period last year, while the operating profit margin reached 62.3%,
decreased by 3.3 percentage points compared with last year. The
decrease in operating profit margin is mainly attributable to the
decrease in gross profit margin and increase in ratio of selling and
marketing and administrative expenses to sales revenue of the
reporting period.
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Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2012 was HKD314,250,000, which was increased substantially
as compared with HKD249,256,000 for the corresponding period
last year, with the income tax rates approximately 15.1% and
approximately 13.3% respectively. The increase in the income tax
expenses was mainly attributable to the increase in income tax rate
of certain PRC subsidiaries due to the expiration of their preferential
tax periods (two-year exemption and three-year half rate). Currently,
certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group are in the process of applying
or reviewing qualifications of high-tech enterprises to entitle for
15% preferential corporate income tax rate. The management aim to
have approvals granted within the year of 2012 in order to meet the
Group's internal estimation of the overall tax rates at about 17%.

Net current asset value and financial resources

As at 31 March 2012, the net current asset value of the Group was
HKD2,254,535,000 (2011: HKD1,649,351,000). The Group generates
its working capital mainly through its operating activities to maintain
a sound financial position. The Group's cash and cash equivalents
amounted to HKD2,286,577,000 (2011: HKD1,676,410,000), over
95% of which was held in RMB. The Group neither held any forex
hedging products nor structured investment products or financial
derivatives.

Bank borrowings and gearing ratio

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had short term bank borrowings
of HKD927,500,000 (2011: HKD740,000,000), which is entirely a
clean loan with interest calculated based on HK dollars inter-banks
borrowings rate. For the year ended 31 March 2012, the average
annual interest rate was 2.13% (2011: 2.08%). All bank borrowings
are due within 1 year and the gearing ratio (total borrowings, include
current and non-current borrowings, divided by total equity (excludes
non-controlling interests)) was about 14.7% (2011: 14.8%).

Investing activities

The Group's investing activities were mainly incurred for the purchase
of fixed assets and the strategically development strategies for
M&As. For the year ended 31 March 2012, the net cash used in
investing activities amounted to HKD605,430,000, mainly incurred
for procurement of properties, machineries and equipment. For the
year ended 31 March 2011, the net cash used in investing activities
amounted to HKD1,134,580,000.

Financing activities

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the net cash used in financing
activities amounted to HKD411,962,000, mainly used for dividend
distribution to shareholders. For the year ended 31 March 2011, the
net cash used in financing activities amounted to HKD361,183,000.
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Debtors’ turnover period

Debtors’ turnover period is calculated on the basis of the average
amount of trade receivables as at the beginning and end of a
relevant financial year divided by the total sales revenue for the
corresponding period and multiplied by 360 days. The Group
generally offers its customers a credit period of approximately
0-180 days, depending on the business volume of, and the length
of business relationship with, the customers. For the year ended 31
March 2012, the Group’s average debtors’ turnover period was 70
days, representing a decrease of 4 days as compared with 74 days
for the last financial year ended 31 March 2011, mainly as a result of
better debtors’ turnover management.

Creditors’ turnover period

Creditors’ turnover period is calculated on the basis of the average
amount of trade payables as at the beginning and the end of a
relevant financial year divided by the cost of goods sold for the
corresponding period and multiplied by 360 days. Credit periods
granted by suppliers to the Group ranged from 0-180 days. For the
year ended 31 March 2012, the Group's average creditors’ turnover
period was 122 days, representing a decrease of 11 days as compared
with 133 days for the last financial year ended 31 March 2011. The
decrease in creditors’ turnover period was mainly attributable to
the increase in natural aromatic raw materials procurement amount
along with a shorter creditors’ turnover period.

Inventory and inventory turnover period

As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s inventory balance amounted to
HKD667,871,000 (2011: HKD467,961,000). For the year ended 31
March 2012, the inventory turnover period (calculated on the basis
of the average amount of inventory balances as at the beginning
and end of a relevant financial year divided by the total cost of
goods sold for the corresponding period and multiplied by 360 days)
was 210 days, representing an increase of 37 days as compared
with 173 days for the last financial year. The increase in inventory
and longer inventory turnover period for the year was due to the
continuous increase of the Group's inventory amount. As the scale
of business expands, the Group has increased the level of its safety
stock, and subsidiaries such as Yongzhou Shanxiang concentrated its
procurement in natural aromatic raw materials had caused the level
of inventory increased.
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Foreign exchange and exchange rate risk

The principal businesses of the Group are located in Mainland
China and the majority of the sales revenue is denominated in RMB,
only a certain amount of imported raw materials and equipment
are calculated in foreign currency such as USD or EUR. There is
insignificant pressure for the depreciation of RMB and thus the
Group's exposure to exchange rate risk is relatively low.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 March 2012, the Group did not have any secured bank
loan.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had capital commitments in respect
of the purchase of property, plant, equipment, and investment
in an associate, contracted for but not provided in the financial
statements amounting to approximately HKD385,586,000 (2011:
HKD74,716,000), mainly including HKD135,203,000 of capital
injection to Huangguoshu Jinye and HKD 184,446,000 of addition in
property, plant and equipment for Guangdong Jinye Group.

Contingent liabilities

According to the information available to the Board, the Group had
no contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2012.

FUTURE BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PLANS

At present, the global economic conditions are highly challenging,
plagued with changing political factors of countries across the
world, the lingering European debt crisis, and the admitted
moderate slowdown of China’s economy which has become a major
concern of the world. As China’s food and beverage and additives
industries are still in the course of recovery after a series of reported
safety incidents, a series of regulation on the tobacco industry
recently implemented by the PRC Government have also increased
uncertainties for the development of the China tobacco industry.
Coupled with the complicated external and macro environment, it is
important for the Group to adhere to the development strategy of
“multi-pronged, focus growth” and further refine its integrated core
value chain. Based on its solid foundation built after years of efforts,
the Group will continue to capitalize on its excellent company
culture, continue to tap new business growth areas and continue to
enhance the Group’s overall capabilities in resisting risks, in order to
achieve stable growth.
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In the tobacco business segment, the Group will continue to pursue
the business development strategy of “Big customers, Big brands”,
and has brought forward a new path to development, i.e. using
the end market consumers as the pivot point, to effectively help
customers to understand end users’ needs. Meanwhile, the Group
will optimize the integration of existing flavours and fragrances,
RTL and new cigarette materials, strive to develop products with
market competitiveness and create higher value for our customers,
so as to achieve win-win results and mutual development. Given
that the second phase of the construction project of Guangdong
Jinye has entered into installation stage, and in view of the full-scale
development of Huabao Bio. Tech., the management believes that
there is enormous room for the Group to grow in this segment, and
the Group is about to enter into a comprehensive development stage.
In the mean time, due to regulations, the pace of the China tobacco
industry consolidation has slowed down. And recently the Chinese
government has implemented regulations on premium tobacco and
alcohol and corporate spending on tobacco and alcohol products
may gradually affect the industry and consumption. The management
will closely monitor such matters, and to respond prudently to these
new changes in the industry.

In the food ingredients and flavours and fragrances segments, the
Chinese food additives and flavours and fragrances industries are
still in a stage of recovery after a series of food safety incidents.
The industry growth is slowed, and certain segment markets may
continue to see lower in usage demand. Leveraging on the solid
business foundation established by the Group over the years, the
increased investments in production quality control facilities and the
competent research and development team of market standards,
the Group will strive to develop under adverse circumstances and
continue to maintain stable growth. In the future, the food segment
will seek stable growth based on a sound foundation.

In the fragrances and aromatic raw materials segments, the export
of fragrances was slowed, while product safety was also detrimental
to the fragrances industry. The management will finish the
business’s streamlining and adjustment, concentrate on fragrances
business such as sanitizing and pesticide, increasing quality control
of products, optimising products and customers structure, and
developing new natural and plant extraction-based products, in order
to seek market exploration opportunities. In the mean time, the
Group will also speed up the integration of Yunnan Huaxiangyuan,
timely adjust product and market strategies, so as to gradually revive
the profitability in this segment.
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As regards the use of cash, the Group has upheld its prudent
principal, that is to fully utilize its ample cash flow generated from
operations to perform expansion, increase production capacity and
distribute dividend with no less than 30% dividend payout ratio and
special dividend. This year, considering the capital market's landscape,
a share repurchase program has also been brought to the Group’s
agenda. In the future, with different developments from the RTL and
new cigarette materials sectors on hand, investment in the said areas
will be further elevated, which the Group anticipate in next year
there will be approximately HKD700-900 million of investment mainly
on developments such as RTL business (including capital expenditure
but excluding major acquisitions). The management believes
that these investments will provide the Group with new growth
momentum, and that it will create larger values for Shareholders.

Over the years, the Group has been consistently pursuing its “multi-
pronged, focus growth” development strategy, using its core flavours
and fragrances business, constructing an integrated core value chain,
developing into an influential enterprise in the industry. Although this
success only represented achievement in the past, the management
strongly believes that, as long as the Group adheres to its
development strategy, keeps abreast of the latest development trend
of the domestic consumer products market and constantly bring
forth innovation, Huabao is able to grasp business opportunities
in China’s consumer products market. Huabao has entered into a
business transformation period, which the Group will next develop
itself from a simple flavours and fragrances company into a company
with multiple growth drivers. For this, the Group will perform
streamlining and adjustment to its existing business segments and
structure. The management believes that its rapid growth momentum
will gradually recover in the coming years, thereby bringing higher
value and greater rewards to Shareholders!
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Executive Directors H{T==

Ms. CHU Lam Yiu, aged 42, the Chairman, Executive Director and the Chairman of
Nomination Committee of the Company. Ms. Chu is also a director of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries marked with “C1” and the legal representative of those
companies marked with “C2” as set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements. Ms. Chu is experienced in formulating strategies and making executive
decisions on business operation, investments and market development. Ms. Chu is
currently a member of the Fifth Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
Committee (Shenzhen, Guangdong province). Ms. Chu, through the corporations
controlled by her, is the beneficial owner of Shares of the Company as set out in page
83 headed under Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures.
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Mr. LAU Chi Tak, aged 55, the CEO and Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Lau is
also a director of the Company’s principal subsidiaries marked with “L1" and the legal
representative of those marked with “L2" as set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor’s degree in Chemistry and has over
20 years’ experience in the international flavours and fragrances industry. He held a
managerial position in a leading international flavour and fragrance company before
joining the Company. He possesses in-depth knowledge of the Asian market and is
particularly experienced in the business development in the greater China area.
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Mr. POON Chiu Kwok, aged 49, an Executive Director and the Company Secretary
of the Company. Mr. Poon was awarded the postgraduate diploma in laws by the
University of London. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in laws and a Bachelor’s degree in
business studies and a Master’s degree in international accounting. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Securities Institute and its Professional Education Committee, a fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Poon worked as a regulator and investment banker and
has experience in finance and securities regulations. From May 2003 to June 2009, Mr.
Poon served as an independent non-executive director of CATIC Shenzhen Holdings
Limited, an independent non-executive director of Tsingtao Brewery Company Limited
from June 2005 to June 2011. He now serves as an independent non-executive director
of Guangzhou Shipyard International Company Limited (listed on both SEHK and
Shanghai Stock Exchange (“SSE”)), and of Ningbo Port Company Limited (listed on
the SSE), SUNAC China Holdings Limited, Yuanda China Holdings Limited, Changan
Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd. and China Tianrui Group Cement Company Limited
(the latter four companies are listed on SEHK).
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Mr. WANG Guang Yu, aged 48, an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Wang is
also the director of the Company’s principal subsidiaries marked with “W1" and the
legal representative of those companies marked with “W2" as set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements. Mr. Wang holds a Master's degree in chemical
analysis and has a qualification of senior engineer. Mr. Wang was an expert with special
allowance provided by the State Council of the PRC government in recognition of his
outstanding contribution to the engineering technology sector of China. Mr. Wang
previously worked in management positions of large-scale chemical company in China.
He has nearly 15 years of R&D and management experiences in the chemical industry.
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Mr. XIA Li Qun, aged 45, an Executive Director, Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Member of Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Xia is also a director
of the Company’s principal subsidiaries marked with “X1” and the legal representative
of those companies marked with “X2” as set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements. Mr. Xia holds a Bachelor's degree in economics and is a certified
accountant, certified tax specialist and certified appraiser in China. Mr. Xia has around
20 years of financial and corporate management experience. He previously worked in
domestic accounting firms in China and was a senior management member of a foreign
invested enterprise in China. He is currently the Honorary Chairman of the Shanghai
Food Additive Association.
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Mr. XIONG Qing, aged 35, an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Xiong majored
in international accounting from Tsinghua University School of Economics and
Management, and graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in economics and he is also an
EMBA degree holder of INSEAD in France. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xiong worked
in several international investment banks for years. He has extensive experiences with
Chinese enterprises and international capital market.
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Dr. JIN Lizuo, aged 54, an Independent Non-executive Director, Member of Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr. Jin graduated from
Peking University and Oxford University and holds a Bachelor’'s degree in political
economics and a Doctorate’s degree in economics respectively. Dr. Jin had worked for
university, the PRC government, international investment banks and consultancy firm,
accumulated experiences in civil sectors and business consultancy. Dr. Jin also has
experience in serving as an independent director of listed companies. Dr. Jin retired as
an independent non-executive director of Cosco Shipping Co., Ltd. (listed in Shanghai)
upon expiry of term in March 2012. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Beijing Development (Hong Kong) Limited (listed on SEHK).
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Mr. LEE Luk Shiu, aged 54, an Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee and Member of Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of ACCA and an associate member of
HKICPA. Mr. Lee is the senior consultant of an investment bank. Mr. Lee has about 25
years of ample experience in commercial accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Lee has
principally engaged in corporate finance and regulatory aspects in the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Lee was an Assistant Vice President of the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange,
and his duties included regulating and monitoring the Hong Kong listed companies
in relation to their compliance with the Listing Rules and processing new listing
applications.
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Ms. MA Yun Yan, aged 51, an Independent Non-executive Director and Member of
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Ms Ma has been
serving as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since September
2004. She graduated from the Law School of Peking University in 1984 and has been
qualified as a lawyer in China in 1986. Ms. Ma has been dedicated to teaching and
doing research in the Law School in relation to international commerce and investment
aspects for 10 years. She is now the Partner of Shu Jin Law Firm. Ms. Ma has extensive
experience in the legal field in relation to the capital markets, including investments,
acquisition and mergers, issuance of securities etc, and has lead-managed the issuance
of shares and convertible bonds and major restructuring of numerous listed companies
such as China Vanke Co., Ltd., China Petroleum Jilin Chemical Engineering Construction
Co. Ltd., China Merchants Property Development Co., Ltd., Wisesoft Co., Ltd., which
shares are listed in the Mainland, and also AAC Acoustic Technologies Holdings Inc.,
Vital BioTech Holdings Limited and Shenzhen High-Tech Holdings Limited, which
shares are listed in Hong Kong Ms. Ma was one of the members of the Fourth Listing
Committee of Shenzhen Stock Exchange. From August 2009 to August 2011, Ms. Ma
was a member of the Growth Enterprises Board Public Offering Review Committee
of China Securities Regulatory Committee. She is now an independent non-executive
director of Rainbow Department Store Co., Ltd. which is a Shenzhen listed company.
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Mr. ZHANG Yong, aged 51, is the Vice President of the Group and is responsible
for marketing and sales of tobacco side of business. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in
engineering. He served in local governments and large enterprises in the Mainland
China. Mr. Zhang has over 20 years’ experience in marketing and management.
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Mr. CHEN Hu, aged 38, is the Head of Food Flavours and Fragrances of the Group. Mr.
Chen is a graduate of Central South University with a Bachelor’s degree in economics.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Chen worked for several companies and has extensive
experiences in merger and acquisition, marketing and management. Mr. Chen is
currently the Deputy Director of Chinese Baked Products and Sugared Products Industry
Association.
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Mr. Alan DAVIES, aged 64, is the Chief Technical Officer of tobacco flavour and Head
of Aromascape Development Centre in Germany. Mr. Davies holds a Higher National
Diploma in food science of Grimsby College of Technology, UK. Mr. Davies served as a
senior flavourist in charge of creation and applications in a number of world renowned
flavour and fragrance companies and tobacco factory, including BBA, Carreras
Rothmans, Dragoco and Symrise. Mr. Davies has over 35 years’ experience in tobacco
flavour.
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Ms. YUAN Xiao Qin, aged 44, is the Head of Reconstituted Tobacco Leaves Centre of
the Group and General Manager of Guangdong Province Jinye Reconstituted Tobacco
Leaves Technology Development Company Limited. She holds an MBA degree and is a
qualified engineer. Before joining the Group, Ms. Yuan served as executive in a Hong
Kong listed state-owned enterprise. She has around 20 years' experience in senior
management position. She is currently the Representative of the People’s Congress
in Shantou City, Guangdong Province, a Member of the National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in Chaoyang District, Shantou City
and the Vice-president of the Federation of Industry and Commerce in Chaoyang
District, Shantou City.
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Mr. YANG Tao, aged 35, is the Chief Technical Officer of the Group, General Manager
of Shanghai Huabao Biological Technology Co. Ltd. and Huabao Xianghua Keji Fazhan
(Shanghai) Co. Ltd. Mr Yang graduated from Yunnan University majored in Biology
and holds a Bachelor’s degree in science, later he studied at the Kunming Institute of
Botany, Chinese Academy of Sciences and obtained a Doctorate’s degree in science.
Before joining the Group, Mr Yang worked for relevant enterprises and has extensive
experience in relevant fields and developing new cigarette materials.
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Note: Information contained in this section was up to 31 March 2012.
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Corporate governance refers to the rules and incentives by which the
management of a company is directed and controlled to maximize
the profitability and long-term value of the firm for shareholders
while taking into account the interest of other legitimate
stakeholders (UK Cadbury Report 1992). The Board recognizes the
importance and benefits of good corporate governance practices
and has adopted certain corporate governance and disclosure
practices aiming at a high level of transparency and accountability.
The Company is committed to continuously improving its corporate
governance practices as part of its own corporate culture.

Corporate Governance

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code on
corporate governance practices except for the following deviations:

Pursuant to code provision A.4.1 of CG Code, INEDs should be
appointed for a specific terms, subject to re-election. Although the
INEDs of the Company were not appointed for a specific term which
deviates from the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, pursuant to
the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors shall retire from office by
rotation no later than the third AGM of the Company since their last
appointment or re-election and are eligible for re-election. As such,
the Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no
less exacting than those set out in the CG Code.

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the CG Code but about promoting and
developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. The Directors
will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve the current
practices on the basis of the experience and regulatory changes
to enhance the confidence of shareholders of the Company and
to safeguard shareholders’ interest as well as the key to assuring
healthy business developments.
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The Board
Board Composition

The Company has a well-balanced Board. As at the date of this
annual report, the Board comprises six Executive Directors and three
INEDs. The members of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. CHU Lam Yiu (Chairman)
Mr. LAU Chi Tak (CEO)

Mr. POON Chiu Kwok

Mr. WANG Guang Yu

Mr. XIA Li Qun (CFO)

Mr. XIONG Qing

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. JIN Lizuo (Appointed on 19 August 2011)

Mr. LEE Luk Shiu

Ms. MA Yun Yan

Mr. MAK Kin Kwong (retired upon expiry of term on 5 August 2011)

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material relationship) between any members of the Board.
Biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 49 to 55 of this
annual report. The present Board has a diverse wealth of skills,
expertise, and qualifications in aspects of production, management,
accounting and finance, legal and regulatory experience both in
Hong Kong and China. One out of three INEDs possesses recognized
professional qualification in accounting and financial management.
The INEDs bring strong independent judgment, knowledge and
experience appropriate for the Board's deliberations. All Directors
have distinguished themselves in their field of expertise and have
exhibited good standards of personal and professional ethics and
integrity. This diversity of experiences and backgrounds enables the
Board to enhance good corporate governance and performance
standard and to bring in valuable contributions and objective advices
for the development of the Group’s businesses.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, except for the fact that Mr.
MAK Kin Kwong retired as an INED on 5 August 2011 and Dr. JIN
Lizuo was appointed as an INED on 19 August 2011, the Board met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
INEDs representing at least one-third of the board, with at least one
INED possessing appropriate qualification, or accounting or related
financial management expertise (in compliance with Rule 3.10 of
the Listing Rules). The Company has received, from each of the
INEDs, an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and concluded that all the INEDs are considered to be independent
pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The role of Chairman and CEO of the Company has been taken up
by different persons since 9 April 2008. To ensure a balance of power
and authority, the Company has established a clear and defined
division of the responsibilities between the Chairman, Ms. CHU Lam
Yiu, and the CEO, Mr. LAU Chi Tak, in accordance with the CG Code.

The Chairman’s responsibility is to manage the Board including the
following:

e To provide leadership for the Board and ensure that the
Directors meet regularly and whenever necessary to consider all
key and appropriate issues in a timely manner and thus ensure
the Board functions effectively and discharges its responsibilities;

e With the supports of the CFO, the Company Secretary and
the Qualified Accountant (“QA"), to ensure all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings and receive
adequate, complete, reliable and timely information for making
decisions;

e To lead and set the strategic plans of the Company and
supervise the implementation of resolutions approved by
the Board. Each Executive Director is to oversee and monitor
different functions of the Group according to their respective
professional skills and expertise;

e To play a leading role in maintaining the balanced composition
of the Board and sub-board committees, so as to make the
Board an effective team that works with high degree of
harmony;

. The Chairman has delegated to the designated director(s) and
the Company Secretary the responsibilities of drawing up and
approving the agenda for each board meeting and contacting
other directors for any matters proposed for inclusion in the
agenda before each board meeting;

e  To let directors express their views at board meetings, encourage
all directors to make a full and active contribution to the board’s
affairs and to ensure that board decisions fairly reflect board
consensus; and

e  To ensure good corporate governance practices and procedures
are in place. The Chairman, through the CFO, the Company
Secretary and the QA, oversees the implementation of the
practices and procedures set out in the CG Code.
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The CEO's responsibility is to manage the Company’s business
including the following:

e To provide leadership for the management;

e  To implement the strategic planning and business development;

e To supervise the business and operational management of the
Company;

e  To cooperate closely with management teams from all function
to ensure the Company's smooth operation and development
and to report regularly to the Board on major business
development; and

e  To establish and maintain proper internal controls and systems
with the assistance of CFO and designated directors.

Roles and Responsibilities of Directors

The Board, led by the Chairman, is collectively responsible for
formulating and approving the business strategies of the Company,
setting objectives for management, overseeing its performance and
assessing the effectiveness of management strategies.

The primary objective of the Board is to maximize the profit of the
Company and to enhance long-term value of the Company for the
shareholders. To this end, the Board assumes the responsibilities for
leadership and control of the Company and oversees the businesses,
strategic development, financial performance and corporate
governance of the Group. All new board members have been given
a tailored induction on the general business background and policy
of the Company on joining the board and all the Directors have
been provided with regular trainings by external experienced lawyers
to update and refresh the applicable legal and other regulatory
requirements and the business and governance policies of the
Company.

The Executive Directors are responsible for day-to-day management
of the Company’s operations and conduct meeting with senior
management of the Group at which operational issues and financial
performance are evaluated.

The Bye-laws of the Company set out the responsibilities and
proceedings of the Board. Significant operational policies have to
be discussed and approved by the Board. To enable the Directors to
meet their obligations, an appropriate organizational structure is in
place with clearly defined responsibilities and limits of authority.
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The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors and senior management of the Company in respect of legal
action against them in the course of execution of their duties in
good faith.

Board Meetings

The Company conducts scheduled Board meetings on a quarterly
basis to discuss strategies and business issues, including financial
performance, of the Group. Details of attendance of the Directors at
the physical regular meetings are set out on page 71 of this annual
report.

Notices of board meeting are given to each member of the Board at
least fourteen days prior to the meeting, whereby the director can
put forward his/her proposed items into the agenda. The agenda and
the relevant board papers are then circulated to the directors at least
three days before a Board meeting is convened to enable them to
make informed decisions at the meeting.

Drafts of the Board minutes and Board committee meeting minutes
are circulated to all directors and the relevant Board committee
members respectively for their review before finalization and the final
version of these minutes kept by the Company Secretary/Compliance
Department are sent to the Directors and committee members
respectively for records and are open for inspection by the Directors
and committee members. If a director has an interest in a matter
to be considered at a Board meeting, the Board will ensure that
an adequate number of independent directors are involved in the
consideration of the relevant resolutions, and the relevant director(s)
having an interest in the matter will abstain from voting.

Every director is entitled to have access to Board papers and relevant
materials and have unrestricted access to advice and services of the
Company Secretary/Compliance Department with a view to ensuing
that board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed and is able to seek independent professional advice as and
when required at the Company’s expense. INEDs are encouraged to
take an active role in Board meetings and serve on the sub-board
committees.

Directors’ Appointment and Re-election

Although all the Directors were not appointed for a specific term,
every Director shall retire from office by rotation no later than
the third AGM of the Company since their last appointment or
re-election and are eligible for re-election.
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Directors’ interests and securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors. Having made specific enquiry to all
Directors, all Directors confirmed in writing that they have complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout
the year. Full details of the Directors’ interests in the shares are set
out on page 83 of this annual report.

Delegation of Directors

The Board may from time to time delegate all or any of its powers
that it may think fit to a director or member of senior management
of the Company. The Board has formulated specific rules and
policies on such delegation of power to facilitate efficient operation
of the Company and is supported by three committees which are
Remunerations Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has maintained the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Each of these committees
has specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their
authority and duties. The chairman of the committees will report
their findings and recommendations to the Board after each meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of two INEDs, namely: Mr.
Lee Luk Shiu (the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and
Ms. MA Yun Yan, and an Executive Director, Mr. XIA Li Qun.

The Remuneration Committee’s responsibilities include making
recommendations for approval by the Board with respect to matters
relating to the remuneration of Executive Directors and senior
management. The revised terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee in compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules
was adopted by the Board on 27 February 2012 and is published
on the Company’'s website at www.huabao.com.hk. and on the
Stock Exchange's website at www.hkexnews.hk. In discharging its
responsibilities, the Remuneration Committee has performed the
following works:

e To review and make recommendations on the Company’s
policies and structure for the remuneration of the Executive
Directors and senior management;
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e  To evaluate remuneration packages of the Executive Directors,
and make recommendations on the remuneration of the INEDs
for the Board's approval by reference to market conditions,
performance of the Group and the individual and corporate
goals and objectives as set by the Board from time to time; and

e To review and evaluate the Company’s share option scheme.

Directors will abstain from voting in determining their own
remuneration packages. The Remuneration Committee met once
regarding the emolument packages of the Directors and senior
management during the reporting period and individual attendance
of Remuneration Committee members is set out on page 71 of this
annual report. Details of the emolument of the Directors are set out
in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements while details
of the Share Options Scheme and the share options granted to the
Directors and senior management are set out on pages 79 to 81 of
this annual report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely, Mr. Lee Luk
Shiu (the Chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. MA Yun Yan and
Dr. JIN Lizuo.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include assisting
the Board in maintaining a high standard of corporate governance,
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board,
particularly by providing independent review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s financial reporting process and material internal
controls, including financial, operational, compliance and risk
management controls and, to maintain good and independent
communications with the management as well as auditors of the
Company. In discharging its responsibilities, the Audit Committee has
performed the following work:

o To review the annual and interim financial statements and
results announcements during the year;

e  To discuss with the external auditors and the management on
possible accounting risks;

e To review the effectiveness of the Group’s financial controls,
internal controls and risk management systems;
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e To review the sufficiency of manpower for financial reporting
purposes;

e To approve the audit fees and terms of engagement of the
external auditors; and

e  To review the independence of the external auditors and make
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditors.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with the Company’s external
auditors to discuss various accounting issues, and reviews the
effectiveness of internal controls. The revised terms of reference
of Audit Committee in compliance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules was adopted by the Board on 27 February 2012 and is
published on the Company’s website www.huabao.com.hk and on
the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Audit Committee met
twice and individual attendance of Audit Committee members is
set out on page 71 of this annual report. Members of the Audit
Committee were satisfied with the Company’s internal control
procedures with the financial reporting disclosures.

Nomination Committee

As an early adoption of the requirements of the relevant Listing
Rules, the Nomination Committee was established on 27 February
2012. The Nomination Committee comprises an Executive Director,
Ms. CHU Lam Yiu (the Chairman of the Nomination Committee) and
two INEDs, namely, Mr. LEE Luk Shiu and Dr. JIN Lizuo.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
formulating nomination policy for the Board’s consideration and
implementing the Board's approved nomination policy, considering
the development targets and strategies of the Company and the skills
mix needed in respect of the Board, and making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of directors and succession planning
for directors. Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
was adopted by the Board on 27 February 2012 and is published
on the Company’s website www.huabao.com.hk and on the Stock
Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has full responsibility for the Group’s internal control
system, which includes the establishment of a defined management
structure with specified limits of authority. The system is designed
to assist in the achievement of business objectives of the Group,
safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition, ensuring
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication and
ensuring compliance with relevant legislation and regulation. The
internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. The system
(embedded in the operations of the Company and forms part of the
Company'’s culture) will include:

o effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

e capability in responding quickly to evolving risks to the business
arising from factors within the company and to change in the
business environment; and include procedures for reporting
immediately to appropriate levels of management any significant
control weakness that are identified together with details of
corrective action being undertaken;

o reliability of financial reporting; and

o compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The key procedures that the Board established by the Board to
provide effective internal controls are as follows:

Organizational Structure

An appropriate organizational structure is in place with defined
operating policies and procedures as well as responsibility and lines
of authority.

Authority and Control

The executive directors and senior management are delegated with
respective levels of authorities to carry out the corporate strategies
and policies and related matters formulated by the Board.
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Budgetary Control and Financial Reporting

The Group implements budget management and the financial budget
is executed upon approval by the Board. Relevant procedures have
been established to assess, review and approve major capital and
recurring expenditures, and regular review and comparison between
operating results and the budget are made.

The Group has established appropriate internal control procedures to
ensure accurate and complete accounting and management records
are kept on a timely basis. Examination and review are carried
out regularly to ensure that the financial statements are properly
prepared in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
principles, the Group’s accounting policies and the applicable laws
and regulations.

Risk Management

The Group has Risk Management Department headed by an Executive
Director of the Company to monitor and assess risk regularly, boost
related management standards and evaluate investment projects.

Internal Audit

The Company has set out internal audit team with scope of works
advised by the Audit Committee shortly after a review on its internal
control system by an external independent expert in 2008.

Internal Control Review

During the reporting period, the Internal Audit Team had carried out
an annual review on the internal control system including financial,
operational and compliance control, and risk management functions.
The review adopts a risk-based approach to create and review the
effectiveness of an internal control system and includes:

(i) To follow up the enhancement progress in response to the
previous recommendations from an external independent expert
in respect of internal control system;

(i) To carry out a high level review on the internal control system
of new members/businesses of the Group under the principles
set out by The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Committee (‘COSQ’) covering major control aspects;
and

(iii) To arrange site visit and perform focused walk through test
on the internal control system of members of the Group on a
selective basis pursuant to the principles of COSO.
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Internal Audit Team has presented their findings and make
recommendations to the Audit Committee and the Audit Committee
has discussed with the management and reported the progress of
the work plan and related findings, particularly those related to
new group members to the Board at board meeting during the year.
In general, the Board considers that the internal control systems
(including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the accounting and financial reporting function) of the
Group are effective.

Internal Control System and Corporate Governance enhancement

In compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules and for
the purpose of reinforcing the Group’s internal control system,
the Company has established a whistleblowing policy and system
for employees to raise concerns, in confidence, with the Audit
Committee about possible irregularities in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters related to the Company. The Audit
Committee is responsible for reviewing the relevant policy and system
regularly.

The Directors has strengthened corporate governance practices,
including formalization of the reporting practice throughout the
Group in monitoring the operation and business developments of the
Company so as to capture potentially price-sensitive information on
an on-going basis, monitoring the continuing disclosure obligation.
The Board has further strengthened corporate governance practices
by establishing lending policy to monitor its credit level. In addition,
Herbert Smith, the retained legal counsel of the Company, has
provided the Directors and the relevant senior executives with
training on Listing Rules, regulatory requirements and cases of
enforcement at least twice a year.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee has delegated the
corporate governance function of the Board to develop and review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and making recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee
also reviews and monitors the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirement, and training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management on an ongoing basis.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility in Preparing Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for the preparation and timely publication
of financial statements. In preparing the financial statements,
relevant statutory requirements have been complied with, applicable
accounting standards in force in Hong Kong have been adopted,
appropriate accounting policies have been applied on a consistent
basis, going concern basis has been adopted and reasonable and
prudent judgments and estimates have been made.

Auditors’ statement and remuneration

The external auditors have a primary responsibility for auditing and
reporting on the financial statements and the Auditors’ Report to the
Shareholders is set out on pages 90 to 91 of this annual report.

During the reporting period, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditors (including statutory auditors of the subsidiaries)
in relation to audit services and non-audit services are as follows:

Nature of Services R E
Audit services ZERTE
— for the audit of the Group — SEBIER
— for the statutory audits of the PRC — BRFRRVAEET

subsidiaries

— conducting additional procedures in
response to allegations as referred to
in a report in the market

Please also refer to Note 23 to consolidated financial statement
set out on page 162 of this annual report for details of Auditors’
Remuneration.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shares with voting rights in the Company are ordinary shares. The
number of ordinary shares as at 31 March 2012 is 3,159,850,961.
Details of share capital of the Company can be found in note 16 of
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 154 of this
annual report. Shareholders holding issued ordinary shares of the
Company are set out below:

R SRAER

ZRERIAT

Full details can
be found on
the following

Total Number

BERZENBROHYARRREBERG -HR_F
——F#ZAZ+— A EBEERTEERNHEE A
3,159,850,961% « R AR AF A AFRME 1548
REMBHRENTEI6N - BEARFBREHITEBR

Percentage

page of of issued of the issued
this report Shares held Share capital
FAE R EHER HE 1T
Category il REEHR CBRITROHE BREABDEH
Ms. CHU Lam Chiy (ote ) R 22 £ (=D Page 83 5583H  1,212,262,415 38.365%
Directors of the Company KAFIESR Page 83 %838 8,150,000 0.258%
Substantial Shareholders Mote 2 F EfRER W= Page 85 #£852  1,654,981,042 52.375%
2,875,393,457 90.998%
Public NN 284,457,504 9.002%
3,159,850,961 100.000%

Notes: FfsE -
1. As defined in the Listing Rules, any person (including a holder of 1. & FWHAIEE  TEAEEECAATDRENE H1TE

depositary receipts) who is or group of persons (including any holder of
depositary receipts) who are together entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of 30% (or such other amount as may from time to time be
specified in the Code on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchase
as being the level for triggering a mandatory general offer) or more of
the voting power at general meeting of the Company;

2. Pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, corporations and/or persons hold 2.

interest or short positions in 5% or more issued share capital of the
Company.
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The Company’'s Bye-laws provide that shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
Company’s issued share capital carrying voting rights at general
meetings shall have the right to request the Board to call for a
special general meeting to discuss a specified business transaction.
For requisition of such a meeting, individuals must send a written
notice to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at least 21 days before the proposed date of the meeting. This
procedure also applies to any proposals to be tabled at shareholders’
meeting for approval.

Shareholders’ right to propose a person for election as a Director

Shareholders shall have right to propose a person for election as
a Director at the Company’s general meeting. Detailed procedures
for such right have been posted on the Company’s website
www.huabao.com.hk.

ACCESSIBLE AND TRANSPARENT COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

In addition to the on-going investor relation efforts to mention in the
next section, the Board values the importance of communications
with the shareholders. The Company uses a range of communications
tools, such as AGM, annual report, various notices, announcements
and circulars, to ensure its shareholders are kept well informed of
key business imperatives.

The Company has maintained a website at www.huabao.com.hk
which serves as a forum for corporate communication with its
shareholders and the general public. All corporate communications
required under the Listing Rules are displayed and can be achieved
(for documents published in the previous 7 years) on the Company’s
website and there is established procedure to ensure timely update in
compliance with the Listing Rules.

Open Communications

The Group is committed to acting in good faith and in the best
interests of its shareholders at all times and in all areas of its
operations. The Group actively promotes open communication and
full disclosure of all information needed to protect and maximize
transparency.

Shareholders’ communication policy

The shareholders’ communication policy is available for viewing on
the Company’s website www.huabao.com.hk.

Shareholders’ Meetings held during the reporting period

The general meeting provides a forum for the Board to communicate
with the Shareholders.
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To facilitate enforcement of the Shareholders’ rights, significant issues
are dealt with under separate resolutions at the general meeting,
including the election and re-election of individual Director. Details of
general meeting(s) held during reporting period are summarized as

follows:

Meeting Date Venue

=f B it B

AGM 5 Aug 2011 Falcon Room,

RRBFRE —T——F Gloucester Luk Kwok,
JANAEH 72 Gloucester Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong
BEBETELITET2%
NEVBEE ERE

To facilitate communication further, Shareholders may send their
enquiries which require the Board’'s attention to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. Relevant contact information is set out on page 76 of this
annual report and is also available on the Company's website
www.huabao.com.hk.

Annual general Meeting to be held in 2012

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held at Falcon
Room, Gloucester Luk Kwok, 72 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong on Wednesday, 8 August 2012 at 9:30 a.m. In order to
determine the entitlement of Shareholders to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting, the Register of Members of the Company
will be closed from 3 August 2012 (Friday) to 8 August 2012
(Wednesday), both days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares
will be effected. All properly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company’s Branch Share Registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 26/F,,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 2 August 2012 (Thursday). Shareholders whose
names are recorded in the Register of Members of the Company on
8 August 2012 (Wednesday) are entitled to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting.
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Resolutions

RER

1. To receive the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2011;
LEHE T FZAZ+HIFELSEX

W%

2. To declare final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2011;
ERBE_T——F=A=1T—HILFENKRE
A&

3. To re-elect Directors and to authorize the Board
to fix their remuneration;
EREFWERESTBETREZHFS

4. To re-appoint the auditors; and
ENEEZEED 0 &

5. To grant general mandates to repurchase shares
and to issue shares.
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Notice of the AGM and form of proxy will be sent to the
Shareholders together with an explanatory statements relating to the
businesses proposed to the Shareholders for approval at the AGM.
Shareholders who wish to exercise their rights to vote by proxy may
do so upon following instruction printed thereon and presentation
of a written and dated form of proxy appointing their proxy. All
shareholders are welcome to ask questions or present proposals for
discussion at these meetings.

MERGERS & ACQUISITIONS

Details of the mergers and acquisitions of the Company carried out
during the reporting period can be found on page 77 of this annual
report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the continuing connected transactions of the Company can
be found on page 86 of this annual report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD

Attendance Record of Board regular meetings and Board Committees

meeting held during the reporting period are set out below:

No. of meeting held

Executive Directors

Ms. CHU Lam Yiu (Chairman)
Mr. LAU Chi Tak (CEOQ)

Mr. POON Chiu Kwok

Mr. WANG Guang Yu

Mr. XIA Li Qun (CFO)

Mr. XIONG Qing

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. LEE Luk Shiu

Ms. MA Yun Yan

Dr. JIN Lizuo @

Mr. MAK Kin Kwong @

Average Attendance Rate

Note 1: Appointed on 19 August 2011

SRERE

BITES

RAMFEL L (£/E)
BEEELE (BE)
EIRE LA
FrmELE
BNBELE (HBBE
RRIED ST

BIFATES
SR
Ji B e 22 £
e /3 R
RS A (2

TR

Note 2: Retired upon expiry of term on 5 August 2011

BERBFAGEBEMARZERBERBRRREA
FAE LABRRIEZHRBERABEHHT TR -
BREREATEBR BN AR RZERRK LOER
EREFAMELRMORRZERE  ZERK
RENBRRBFREG LIRE - BUORRRN G LIZA

MR -

WiE & B
REAA - AABRE A G BRRAFS

RET7E -

AR ZHERE S ERR AT RHC6H -

Hi & e &%
TRETSEFNFALFEFEREFLZESE
E0ES i
Board Audit Remuneration
regular Committee Committee
Meetings Meetings Meetings
EEg EX i
EHEER EE2E3 ZE293
4 2 1
4/4 N/A T3 A N/A TiE A
4/4 N/A 3 N/A TNiE R
4/4 N/A T~3E A N/A TiE R
4/4 N/A TiiE 3 N/A T3
4/4 N/A 36 11
4/4 N/A 3 A N/A NiE A
4/4 2/2 11
4/4 2/2 11
212 11 N/A iR
171 171 N/A TiE A
100% 100% 100%
H1: REE——FN\ATNHEEERE
22 RZZE——F \ARBEHEMRE
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The Company is committed to upholding an open and proactive
investor relations strategy with an aim at optimizing the knowledge
and understanding of the investment community with respect to the
Company’s corporate mission and vision, development strategies,
competitive position in the industry and operating and financial
performance, so as to enable public investors to make informed
decisions on their investments. The Company fulfils the above-
mentioned through a designated Investor Relations Department.

The Investor Relations Department acts as an intermediary between
the Company and public investors. The Group abides by basic
and fair disclosure guidelines to ensure that communication with
Shareholders, investors and media is conducted in a fair manner and
that no material non-public information is made available to any
individual on a selective basis.

Investor Relations Review

During this reporting period, in order to develop continuously and
maintain investor relations communications to ensure that the most
updated information would be transmitted to investors in an accurate
and fair manner, the Group organized various activities proactively
and aggressively through different channels to conduct effective and
satisfactory communications under stringent expenses. Details of
these activities during the previous year are as follows:

Details of the activities SEEFE
Non-deal roadshows in
Mainland China and overseas

Investment conferences REESH
One-on-one and group meetings —¥—R/EEE
Teleconferencing BiEe®

Plant visits and reverse roadshows 528 & R AR

° Annual General Meetings

It is important that the Shareholders have access to clear and
meaningful data which enables them to have a constructive
dialogue with, and increases their engagement in, the
Company. Shareholders can raise any questions and comments
on the performance or future business directions of the
Company and on any resolutions to be considered at the AGM
and SGM. The Chairman and representatives from the Audit
Committee were present and available to answer questions
raised at the AGM during the year.

Bl A KB I IER HBRIR

ARBHBNERARLEBNREEBERE B
EERSREMHNEREREARARAZEER
B NS BERRE  EARFARREERME
KRB UBREAZERBENREELMBR
E o ARRIEBEFRMEEREISFIABSER -

RAEMESFIEAEATREEAZHER - &
EEPRATFRENEARL  ARRERE - 8
EERERY BEA—EATHRET - RLMEN
EE R A AENA T REEAEARIES -

REEBRIEDRE

EABRERAN  AEBEABEERIEFREERH
FAR  MERSFABRERAFIERERE
F AKEEIHEAEBBEBTRREBETERE
B BREHORIWBER T RHESFLDBEHRLE
BB LFEEREBFBAT

Number of participations (approximately)

SERY (W)

10 (including Hong Kong, Singapore, London,
New York and Boston, etc.)

(BREES ¥ - w3 dORETES)
8
929
79
"
e RBRREBFAE

HERME @ EANSEMEEIREETOE
B2 AR ETERER - RIEme R
ARRER - BRRARARBZRE ﬂiik%
BASHERBRRBFAE REREHIAGH T
BRZHARBE R EM AR R ERT® -
FA - ARRERLBEZZEECARELFE
BFBFARE  WHREMROORRA -
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Interim Results Presentation

Interim Results Presentation was held after the interim results
announcement in November 2010, at which the management
availed themselves to answer questions such as regarding the
Group's operational and financial performances.

International Roadshows and Investment Conferences

The Company treasures every opportunity to communicate with
and explain its strategies to investors and Shareholders through
active participation in global investor roadshows and investors’
conferences hosted by reputable investment banks, securities
houses and research institutes.

Ongoing Communication with the Investment Community

Regular face-to-face meetings and an ongoing schedule
of teleconferencing calls with institutional investors and
research analysts were held throughout the year. Questions
and comments on the Company raised at the meetings were
summarized and reported to the senior management team after
the meetings. Regular meetings with research analysts were
organized which provided a different channel for the analysts
to communicate with the members of the Board. All these
serve the multi-purposes of maintaining market surveillance and
close contact with investors as well as gathering constructive
suggestions from the capital market.

Company'’s Site Visits and Reverse Roadshows

Site visits to the Company’'s major customers, R&D centres
and production bases had been arranged for investors and
analysts during the year which provided them on one hand the
opportunities to have better understanding of the Company’s
businesses, technology and daily operations, and independent
market surveillance on the other.

E-Communication via Websites of the Company and
Professional Investor Relations

The Company’s website at www.huabao.com.hk contains
information such as important corporate data, biographical
details of Directors, organizational structure and press releases,
while interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars are published on its professional investor relations
website at http://huabao.todayir.com/html/ir.php, which
enables the Company’s Shareholders and members of the
investor community to have timely access to the most updated
information about the Group.

Investor Relations Report

REEBERSE

SEGE S v i

REEERHEN T ——F+— AR #E
BRAERET B EREEOZERELEE
BELMBRAFRA -

BEREERREESS
FREG2EAFERANKRERT  EFT
L ASBIFNERREERENKRELES
& AQREES - EREREEERRRE
38 I 0 48 S Al L SR

FEERELFHER
ARRFNEHERBREERAROITEER
EeH UTRZFRMETERSHE -~
REBEEE AR AR A B R AEHE
it TR ERRASHEEEKER - AR
REMALSNMEERNEE - B/ TERM
TRRBREEEKEER - HWEZHARES
BEEE  BAREMSEE  XEEREEH
REZBE  TAREERATSIAERES
B

AFAEBBBRREEKE
ARBFARKREERDNERHFLEARE
IBEF BB LOREERM - —EAEL
EMPIEREEARARBER  RMEMAEZE
BEBBTR -m—T7E  TARKBIHE
HIPRAEE -

EBRARARUREXREEFRPUETET
BE

A B Awww.huabao.com.hk » HIEEE
ZIEHE EFREE - AHRE  AFHE
FEE o INERBIMBBEEEREEBRE
Uk © http://huabao.todayir.com/html/ir.php
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Other Communication Channels

Shareholders and members of the investor community are
welcome to raise enquiries through our Investor Relations
Department at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong or via the “Enquiry Form” on the Company
website. Designated personnel are assigned for this task to
ensure that all data is disclosed on a fair and non-selective
basis and in compliance with the Company’s policy and the
relevant regulatory requirements.

Media Communications

During the announcement of its results, the Group held results
presentations to facilitate the access of the most updated
information of the Company by investors and the public in
a fair, open and timely manner. In addition, to strengthen
the interactions between the Group and the media it also
proactively issued press releases on a timely basis.

Analysts Coverage

Subject to the compliance of relevant regulatory requirements,
the Company is committed to continuous communications with
research institutes in a proactive manner for transparency sake.
During the reporting period, the Company was covered by 11
established and reputable research institutes as follows:

o BOCI Research Limited

° Citigroup Investment Research

. Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited

o DBS Vickers Securities

o Deutsche Bank AG

o First Shanghai Securities Limited

o J.P Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited
° Jefferies Hong Kong Limited

° Macquarie Capital Securities Limited
. Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited
° Samsung Securities Asia Ltd.

(shown in alphabetical order in English)

RRRIEGEAR MR EM B BB BA R RN
BEMNTELEMMREEBERLR BB
ARBRUA [ERARRK] AARBER - &
RAREEBABBBENETE  UERMA
BRBTIARTFRIEREZMEEAIRE - YFAA
RAZBRRBABRERTE °

REEE
REBENEE QMR EER MG AR
BEERRBRRT - RRARREBHIER TE
BRAMNZITHEE o W - REBETFERTH
FIRE 3 T E TR AR E 2R

2HE

REIEIERE - ARB—ERNEETER
EERTEAT - BRERTEEREES -
EREHMA - ARRE+ —EANRATTHEER
RUIEERE - ZFRARWT -

o HIREIRAERERAA

o EERITTIREME

s WEEE (FE) BRAF

e ERWSEZRS

o RBEERIT

o FE-LEBBEFBERAQA

o ERABIES (X)) ARAR
e Jefferies Hong Kong Limited
o EREBERESFBRNHABRAFR
o HNEER (FE) BRQA

o ZEJFHFTMARRA
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Information for investors (as at 31 March 2012)

Board Lot Size
Number of shares issued

Market capitalization (based on
the closing price of HKD5.05
on 31 March 2012)

Stock Code

The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited stock code

Reuters ticker

Bloomberg ticker

Financial Calendar

Announcement of 2011-12
Interim Results

Announcement of 2011-12
Annual Results

Closing date for transfer of shares
for Annual General Meeting

Closing date for transfer
of shares for payment of
final dividend

Annual General Meeting

Date of Payment of 2011-12
proposed Final Dividend

Financial Year end date

1,000 shares
3,159,850,961 shares

HKD15.957 billion

00336

336.HK

336HK

22 November 2011
(Tuesday)

20 June 2011
(Wednesday)

From 3 August 2012
to 8 August 2012
(Friday to Wednesday,
both days inclusive)

From 14 August 2012 to
17 August 2012
(Tuesday to Friday,
both days inclusive)

8 August 2012
(Wednesday)

18 October 2012 (Thursday)

on or about

31 March
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=A=+8

W BB #5.057:15E)
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B35 B
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BB LB P A
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BFBFRE
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——FERAKRERH

MRFEREER

1,000A%
3,159,850,96 1%

7B#159.5718 7T

00336
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Investor Relations Contacts

For inquiries, please contact:

Investor Relations Department
Huabao International Holdings Limited
Suite 3008

Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2185 1233

Fax: (852) 2511 8229

E-mail: jason.wong@huabao.com.hk

Investor Relations website: http://huabao.todayir.com/html/ir.php

REEBERERBE
WmEEH - FHE
o)

BEE 185

hIE RIS

3008
EEERERERAT
BAERED

%5 0 (852) 2185 1233

85 : (852) 2511 8229

B I : jason.wong@huabao.com.hk

B ERIERL ¢ http:/huabao.todayir.com/html/ir.php
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The Board presents its report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Mergers & Acquisitions

In April 2011, the Group through its subsidiary entered into a
capital injection agreement regarding Yongzhou Shanxiang (a
wholly owned subsidiary incorporated by the Group in March 2011)
with independent third parties. The Group and the independent
third parties have injected approximately HKD27,594,000 and
HKD14,104,000 respectively. Following completion of the capital
injection, the Group’s equity interest in Yongzhou Shanxiang diluted
from 100% to 67.1%.

In June 2011, the Group through its wholly owned subsidiary entered
into an agreement with independent third parties to acquire 100%
equity interests in Yunnan Zhengbang, which is principally engaged
in the research and development, consulting and sale of new material
for cigarettes in the PRC, at a cash consideration of approximately
HKD6,926,000. The acquisition was completed on 1 July 2011.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 94 of the annual
report.

The Board declared an interim dividend of HK7.80 cents (2011:
HK7.20 cents) per Share and special dividend of HK5.18 cents
(2011: Nil) per Share both in cash amounting to a total of about
HKD410,149,000, were paid on 22 February 2012.

The Board proposes to declare a final dividend of HK8.88 cents
(2011: HK7.98 cents) per share in cash, about HKD281 million in
aggregate, for the year ended 31 March 2012 which are expected
to be paid on or about 18 October 2012 (Thursday) to Shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company
as at 17 August 2012 (Friday), subject to Shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 8 August
2012 (Wednesday). The proposed final dividend together with the
interim and special dividends paid, the total dividend distribution for
the financial year ended 31 March 2012 amounted to HK21.86 cents
(2011: HK15.18 cents) per share.
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Close of Register of Members for Annual General
Meeting

In order to determine the entitlement of Shareholders to attend and
vote at the Annual General Meeting, the Register of Members of the
Company will be closed from 3 August 2012 (Friday) to 8 August
2012 (Wednesday), both days inclusive, during which no transfer
of shares will be effected. All properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 2 August 2012 (Thursday).
Shareholders whose names are recorded in the Register of Members
of the Company on 8 August 2012 (Wednesday) are entitled to
attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

Close of Register of Members for Payment of Final
Dividend

In order to determine Shareholders who qualify for the proposed final
dividend, the Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from 14 August 2012 (Tuesday) to 17 August 2012 (Friday), both
days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be effected.
All properly completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 26/F., Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on 13 August 2012 (Monday). Shareholders whose names are
recorded in the Register of Members of the Company on 17 August
2012 Friday are entitled to receive the final dividend.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 96 and in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2012, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HKD2,051,357,000 (2011: HKD1,890,918,000).

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HKD13,388.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 185.

Share Options

As per a resolution passed at the special general meeting held on
22 September 2006, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”). As at 31 March 2012, the share options
granted by the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
which are valid and outstanding amounted to 30,990,000 shares,
represents approximately 0.98% of the Shares issued. The following
is a summary of the Share Option Scheme:

(@) Purpose of the Scheme

The Share Option Scheme aims at encouraging the participants
to make contributions to and promote benefits of the Group
and developing and maintaining business relationships with
participants for the benefit of the Group.

(b) Participants of the Scheme

The Board has absolute discretion to grant share option to any
participant.

() Maximum number of shares issuable under the Scheme

The total number of share options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company as at 22 September
2006. Upon approval by the Shareholders, the Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit, provided that each renewal
shall not exceed 10% of the total number of issued Shares
as at the date of approval by the Shareholders, and a circular
regarding the proposed renewal of the Scheme Mandate
Limit has been dispatched to the Shareholders in a manner
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(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

80

complying with, and containing the matters specified in, the
relevant provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The
aggregate maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of
Shares in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of Shares (issued and to be issued)
upon exercise of options (whether exercised, cancelled or
outstanding) granted to any participants in any 12-month
period under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of ordinary Shares in issue from time to time. Any
excess over 1% requires the formal approval by Shareholders
through an ordinary resolution at a general meeting at which
the relevant participant and his associates shall abstain from
voting and the Company shall issue a circular pursuant to
relevant provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Time for exercise of options

The grantee may subscribe for ordinary Shares during such
period as may be determined by the Board (the said period
shall not in whatever case be later than the last day of the 10-
year period after the day on which the offer relating to the
option is duly approved by the Board in accordance with the
Share Option Scheme (subject to early termination)).

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised

Unless the Directors determine otherwise and state in the
offer of the grant of option to the grantee, the Share Option
Scheme does not provide for any minimum period for which
share options must be held before it can be exercised.

Acceptance of option offer and payment

The grantee may accept the offer of the share option within 21
days from the date of the offer letter issued by the Company.
The grantee shall pay HKD1 as consideration for accepting the
offer of the share option.

(d)

(e)

()

(9)
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£ MARRIFERRETRAUNEN7TZEMG
SR TEE R o

TREBREZHR
ARARESFEET ZHARBE B (%
HRER NI RERESSRIEBRME BT
AMEBHBREERE AR TFRRZ&E
—REW (ATHRATARLE)) »

BREAUTENAFE2RERR

BIFBFERTTRESIRARRARLBEREZ
EEPRE - SRIBERE Y EESRER
PR A AERRE R AEM&EHEG A
TR

BEABRENIR R AR

AR AR AR R B A2 N E B ARET21
BAZABRERZ  MERILRBRERZZ
B AXBBITTHRE -

Huabao International Holdings Limited EBEIFRZERBER AT » 2011-2012 Annual Report F 3k



Directors’ Report

EZEHE

(h)

(i)

Basis for determining the exercise price

The exercise price of share option granted pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board and
shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of offer, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Shares.

The life of the Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years
starting from 22 September 2006.

Details of share options granted, exercised, cancelled and lapsed

(h)

EETEENEE
RIBBEAERT SIFTHL RN B R - BITEEZA
MERSETE  ETNFERTISERZED
FEOBEREEORS (WAREER) BX
P BRERMI 2B WTRE « (NEEEE
B HIRT I ME 2 3 B AR R AT e R IRE RS
W (BRI (iR DEE °

FTEIEY 1 BRE
BRETEN T NFAA-TZBEFT
FABK -

RER - REBEBRE ST - 176/ ETHEERXK

during the year under the Share Option Scheme are set out as HVIBRERFIBNAT
follows:
Number of Share Options
BRES A
Balance
Balance as at
as at 31 March
1April  Granted Exercised Cancelled  Lapsed 2012
Exercise 2011 during during during during R=E-Z&
Grantee Grant Date Price  Exercisable Period R=Z——% theyear theyear theyear theyear =A=1—H
ERA RiAH TEE mTERH MA-B&H EAlR SRR FREE  FRXR ]
HKD
Vi
Executive Directors
HiTEE
Mr. LAU Chi Tak 14 April 2008 6.39  14/4/2008-13/4/2018 7,000,000 - - - - 7,000,000
AFEEs —ZZ)/\§NATHA
Mr. POON Chiu Kwok 25 October 2006 3.09  25/10/2006-24/10/2016 3,300,000 - 300,000 - - 3,000,000
ERELE Z2TAFTAZTRA
Mr. WANG Guang Yu 25 QOctober 2006 3.09  25/10/2006-24/10/2016 2,700,000 - 2,700,000 - - -
TrMEE ZERETAZTIA
Mr. XIA Li Qun 25 October 2006 3.09  25/10/2006-24/10/2016 5,250,000 - 5,250,000 - - -
EXilfiot ZEEETAZTHE
Mr. XIONG Qing 17 October 2007 6.65  17/4/2008-16/10/2017 3,600,000 1,000,000 - - 2,600,000
e “ETEETATER
14 April 2008 6.39  14/4/2008-13/4/2018 3,400,000 - - - - 3,400,000
ZZZ\FMATNA
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BU#HTEE
Mr. LEE Luk Shiu 25 October 2006 3.09  25/10/2006-24/10/2016 200,000 - - - - 200,000
Fickrk e VA % i i
Ms. MA Yun Yan 25 October 2006 3.09  25/10/2006-24/10/2016 800,000 - - - - 800,000
iZ&kat ZZTAFTAZTRA
Other employees 10 October 2006 3.09  10/10/2006-9/10/2016 7,600,000 - - - - 7,600,000
AftES ZEERETATH
17 October 2007 6.65  17/4/2008-16/10/2017 6,940,000 - 550,000 - - 6,390,000
ZER+ETATHR
Total
Aif 40,790,000 - 9,800,000 - - 30,990,000
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. CHU Lam Yiu (Chairman)
Mr. LAU Chi Tak (CEO)

Mr. POON Chiu Kwok

Mr. WANG Guang Yu

Mr. XIA Li Qun (CFO)

Mr. XIONG Qing

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Dr. JIN Lizuo (appointed on 19 August 2011)

Mr. LEE Luk Shiu

Ms. MA Yun Yan

Mr. MAK Kin Kwong (retired upon expiry of term on 5 August 2011)

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s bye-laws, Dr. JIN
Lizuo will retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer
himself for re-election. In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and (2) of
the Company’s bye-laws, Ms. MA Yun Yan, Messrs. WANG Guang
Yu and XIA Li Qun shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

Other than disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its ultimate holding company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Businesses Competing with the Group

None of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) has an interest in any business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.

E 2
FARBEAREAMARBZERMT :

BITES :

AMBELZL (/5
B ()
BB A

FRmELE
BMEELE (HHRE)
ARIBDSE A

BYFHTES:

exEET (RZF——FNA+NLAREEZL)
FILELE

ME# 2+

BRNEE (RZF——F AL AEHERRE)

BIEART 2 ABIMAIES6Q)E & EBLEERN
[EEMEBFEAS LRI HHEGEER  LFEE
BT o RIBEARBZARIMAIES7(N) Q) - i
EMLt TAXRAEEMEFB LB R ERERE
BFERE LHEGR  HEEFEEK  LREEE
BT o

EERBEN
ERERFAFAS LRESE EFHBRAL
AIET B AR AR A B —F R 8 Ok B
{EER M) T4 12 RIS A4 -

EECERGNER

BiRA M RERMEMBEEES  REFZBRF
REMERE - AARLETLEMSRARAES
EERMEEEEAEDERARSKERA R
HEMMBARESEBZIEREH -

EBECRERFEREY
WEEMEEREEEZBEA (2 ETRIIER)
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Biographical details of directors and senior management as at 31
March 2012 are set out on pages 49 to 55 of the annual report.

Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

At 31 March 2012, the interests of the Directors and their associates
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules, were as follows:

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each of the
Company

Name of Directors

ESHR

Capacity
g1

CHU Lam Yiy (Note2)

SRRRBE (HE2) FIBTIE A TG MR

XIA Li Qun Beneficial owner

BHEE BEmiFB A

WANG Guang Yu Beneficial owner

FHM BEmiFa A

XIONG Qing Beneficial owner

ARJED EmfFra A

Note 1: 1,212,262,415 ordinary shares of the Company are

respectively held by Mogul Enterprises Limited, Resourceful
Link International Limited, Power Nation International Limited,
Jumbo Elite Limited, Raise Sino Investments Limited and
Real Elite Investments Limited. Ms. CHU Lam Yiu is the sole
beneficial owner of the aforesaid six companies.

Note 2:  Ms. CHU Lam Yiu entered into a derivative transaction on
14 October 2011 relating to a long position of a monetary
value equivalent to 94,736,842 shares of the Company with
a contract period from 14 October 2011 to 13 January 2013

(both days inclusive).

Held through controlled corporation MNete »

EEREREEERRE

RZE——F=A=+—H EENSLEEEN
BREEH N FIRFEL9BEE5H

EERNKRG - HEROREZ 2ER

RIE-——F=—A=1+—H EFREFZBHEA
ITRARR REABEE (EELEHFAEEA
EXVER) 2B fn - RO REFFHEEARQAR
BREF M IRIIFI2EREMFE 2 BMATRL
B2 M AR LR B AT E AR AE ST B
ARMEARRRI Rz AT

(a) ARATEREEEBEIOTZEERTFR

Number of Percentage of
issued the issued

shares held share capital
BEERT HERT
BRHEE BRABDE
1,212,262,415 38.365%
5,250,000 0.166%
2,700,000 0.085%
200,000 0.006%

MigE1 © A A F 21,212,262,4150% & @ % Jh A
Mogul Enterprises Limited, Resourceful
Link International Limited, Power Nation
International Limited, Jumbo Elite
Limited, Raise Sino Investments Limited#
Real Elite Investments Limited @55 ° &
MELLT R SHAARNE—EREBA °
W2 AMELZLIWN=ZZTE——F+A+HAE
TT—EHERARRAROMWITEERR
FMFRAHN  aB_T——F+
At+HmBE-Z—=F—A+=8(H
EMBBREERN)  HESEMFEER
94,736,842f8 A AR ©
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(b) Interests in share options of the Company

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the
Company are detailed in the “Share Options” section stated
above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, none of the Directors
nor their associates had any interests or short positions in any
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries or associated companies as defined in the SFO.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Other than disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year was the Company, its
ultimate holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Interests of Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2012, other than the interests disclosed in the
section headed “Directors’ interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures”, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO showed that the
following persons held interests or short positions in 5% or more
issued share capital of the Company.

(b) ARFBREZES
BEEBRERSCFINAL TBRE] —
B e

BEXHEBEREEIN R=F——F=A=+—H"
EERREFCHBEATHERNAR R SE KB
AAHREEE (EEALFFMPERRD) ZEMK
0~ ERERO RESFHEAEMEEIAR

EERBRONES 2ER

BRNGA B BREM T T REES AR - K
SRR R S R AT A M A R R B A E R R 35
B2BREMRH REARRNZEESTHEBAL
Bk (] H A B 2 A1 o 5

EEEHN

BERFRITLEFAETASRARRBEEHX
ERNERRB 2 EERTRIEZEH -

FTERRzER

RZE-——F=A=+—H0 BRIEFLERH
HMERORERZES ] —SHRREZ#EE)N - A
REARBERS L REEIFEIB6KRFEZIEZRRE
R - TIALRBEARRAEEITRAS% A
LRESIRR
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Long(L)/Short(S) positions in ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each
of the Company

Name of Substantial Shareholders

FERREHE

JPMorgan Chase & Co. (MNotes1.2)

Lazard Asset Management LLC
Lazard Emerging Markets Equity Portfolio

Morgan Stanley Mote3)

Prudential plc

UBS AG (ot d

Wellington Management Company, LLP

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Capacity
14

Beneficial owner

BERmBEA

Investment manager

REKIE

Custodian

FEEA

Investment manager

REKE

Investment manager

REKE

Held through controlled
corporations

BRIBERRFE

Held through controlled
corporations

iR b /NI 2 =]

Beneficial owner

EmBAEA

Held through controlled
corporations

BRIBERRFE

Person having a security
interest in shares

HE A REEDA

Investment manager

REKE

The interest of JPMorgan Chase & Co. included a lending pool of
126,128,808 Shares.

Long position of 6,571,000 Shares were held through cash settled
derivatives (off exchange).

(i) Long position of 2,150 Shares were held through physically settled
derivatives (on exchange); (i) Short position of 156,000 Shares were
held through physically settled derivatives (off exchange); (iii) long
position of 61,123,440 Shares and short position of 38,621,840
Shares were both held through cash settled derivatives (off
exchange).

Long position of 16,798,000 Shares and short position of
100,006,000 Shares were both held through cash settled derivatives
(off exchange).

ANFEREEBELIOTZEBERTFE KA

Long(L)/ Number of Percentage
short(S) issued of the issued
position shares held share capital
wa/ BEE#T e BT
"B BoOHAE BAEBDE
L 27,765,000 0.87%

e
S 16,690,000 0.52%

KA
L 5,356,000 0.16%

A
L 126,128,808 3.99%

HaE
L 472,228,021 14.94%

e
L 219,747,000 6.95%

e
L 213,642,737 6.76%

e
S 214,257,659 6.78%

B
L 166,555,000 5.27%

A
L 133,280,944 4.21%

e
S 133,141,850 4.21%

e
L 86,482,600 2.73%

e
S 32,907,600 1.04%

B
L 13,596,434 0.43%

HaE
L 190,198,498 6.01%

e

M

PizE2 -

PEES -

MisEs -

JPMorgan Chase & Co.fi#z815126,128,808
R EIEER °

6,571,000 7 B B BR SRR ZHTETE (35
GN) $5E o
(i2,150TFEHEREMRN 2 HTET A (5
W) # A (ii)156,0000 K B ThiB BE YR 2
PTETE (355N #55 ¢ (iii)61,123,4400% 47 & AN
38,621,840 A B B BB XMW 2 TETA
(55N 54 -

16,798,000/% #F & #1100,006,000/% % & Th 35 1B
REQJWZHTETE (55N BFH -
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Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the percentage of turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 48% and the largest customer contributed
approximately 27% to the turnover of the Group (China Tobacco
Yunnan Materials Group Co.,
the percentage of purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 19% and the largest supplier
contributed approximately 9% to the purchases of the Group.

Ltd. being the largest customer), and

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Sale of tobacco flavour products to Hongta Tobacco Group and
its associates

On 18 February 2009, the Group and Hongta Tobacco Group
entered into a framework agreement (‘2009 Framework Agreement’)
pursuant to which the Group shall continually sell tobacco flavour
products to Hongta Tobacco Group and its associates for a period
from 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2012. Hongta Tobacco Group is an
indirect holding company of Yunnan Tianhong Flavour & Fragrance
Co., Ltd., which in turn is a substantial shareholder of an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to the Listing
Rules, all the transactions conducted between the Group and Hongta
Tobacco Group under the 2009 Framework Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Group and subject to
reporting, announcement, approval by independent shareholders and
annual review as required by the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the 2009
Framework Agreement, the price for the products will be agreed
from time to time between the parties by reference to the prevailing
market price at the relevant time. Such price shall be no more
favourable than those offered by the Group to its other independent
customers for similar product types in its ordinary and usual course
of business. The upper limits of annual amounts of continuing
connected transactions under the 2009 Framework Agreement
for the three years ending 31 March 2012 are RMB66,000,000,
RMB86,000,000 and RMB112,000,000 (‘Annual Caps’) respectively.
The Company has obtained a waiver from the Stock Exchange to
approve the entering into of the 2009 Framework Agreement, the
conduct of the continuing connected transactions and the Annual
Caps on the basis of a written independent shareholders’ approval in
lieu of holding a shareholders’ meeting of the Company under Rule
14A.43 of the Listing Rules.

FEEFRHEE

BE-_T-——_F=-A=+—HLFER A%ED
UERAEPEAEEEEB AN LA R48% M
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—AFEZE LR DB AARK66,000,0007T
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EERD - RAREARE ETTAR A58 14A 43K B
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Sales of reconstituted tobacco leaves to Guangdong Tobacco
and Guangxi Tobacco

The Group entered into a framework agreement in view of
business need with each of Guangdong Tobacco (“GD Framework
Agreement”) and Guangxi Tobacco (“GX Framework Agreement”)
on 28 July 2010 and 20 July 2010 respectively (GD Framework
Agreement and GX Framework Agreement are collectively referred to
as the “Framework Agreements”) in respect of the supply of flavours
and fragrances, RTL and related technical services, both for the period
from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012. Guangdong Jinke is a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of Guangdong Jinye and Guangdong
Tobacco and Guangxi Tobacco are the substantial shareholders of
Guangdong Jinke. Upon the completion of the acquisition of the
100% registered capital of Guangdong Jinye (the “acquisition of
Guangdong lJinye”) by the Group on 10 January 2011, Guangdong
Tobacco and Guangxi Tobacco both become connected persons of
the Company and the transactions between the Group and each
of Guangdong Tobacco and Guangxi Tobacco (together with their
respective subsidiaries and associates) therefore constitute connected
transactions of the Company within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. Pursuant to the terms of the Framework Agreements, the
pricing principle would be determined by reference to market price,
i.e. prices payable by independent third parties for the provision of
similar products/services under ordinary commercial transactions. In
light of the Framework Agreements were entered into prior to the
acquisition of Guangdong Jinye, upon completion of the acquisition
of Guangdong Jinye, the transactions between the Group and each
of Guangdong Tobacco and Guangxi Tobacco constitute continuing
connected transactions and are subject to reporting, annual review
and disclosure requirements under Rule 14A.41 of the Listing Rules.
Please refer to the relevant announcement published by the Company
on 22 July 2011 for details.

Annual review of continuing connected transactions

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the total revenue of products
sold by the Group to Hongta Tobacco Group (together with its
subsidiaries and associates) under the 2009 Framework Agreement
amounted to approximately RMB35,114,000. The total revenue of
products sold by the Group to Guangdong Tobacco and Guangxi
Tobacco (together with its subsidiaries and associates) under the
Framework Agreements amounted to approximately RMB98,486,000
and RMB26,049,000, respectively.

HEBEEETERTEREATE
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The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the INEDs of the Company. The INEDs confirm that the aforesaid
connected transactions have been entered into:

(i)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available to
independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement, and
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

The Company has engaged the independent auditor to report on
the Group’s above-mentioned continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 ‘Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 'Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules’ issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The independent auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter from PricewaterhouseCoopers has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Legal Proceedings

As at 31 March 2012, the members of the Group was not involved
in any material litigation or arbitration and no material litigation or
claim was pending or threatened or made against any member of the
Group.
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Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best belief and knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float of the Company’s securities
during the reporting period and up to the date of this report as
required under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012 have
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

By Order of the Board
CHU Lam Yiu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HUABAO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Huabao
International Holdings Limited (the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries
(together, the ‘Group’) set out on pages 92 to 184, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 March 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B BETHRE

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
GEMEMRRE

As at 31 March 2012 R-E——F=A=+—H

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BrBEERPEI - FrESBHBET TIR)
As at 31 March
R=RA=+—H
Note 2012 2011
Bt 5 —E——fF =
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment I EN T Y & 6 1,115,382 536,373
Land use rights 4+ b (s R A 7 209,233 194,697
Intangible assets BEAE 8 2,931,975 2,879,958
Investments in associates REEERE 2 L& 10 101,545 61,009
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHEESREE 1 65,931 38,067
Deferred income tax assets BEFTISTEE 12 44,436 42,800
4,468,502 3,752,904
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 13 667,871 467,961
Trade and other receivables B 5 & HAth fE Y GRIE 14 928,969 1,030,565
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBELEED 15 2,286,577 1,676,410
3,883,417 3,174,936
Total assets BEE 8,351,919 6,927,840
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to ~ ZAAQAFERIZFE A
the Company's equity holders BERAREE
Share capital [N 16 315,985 315,005
Reserves i 18 867,402 677,318
Retained earnings REBEF|
— Proposed final dividend — Bk R B AR 2 19, 28 280,595 251,374
— Others — HAth 19 4,854,325 3,796,953
6,318,307 5,040,650
Non-controlling interests eI RS 331,942 255,213
Total equity R 6,650,249 5,295,863
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings B 20 - 3,562
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTIS T B E 12 72,788 102,830
72,788 106,392
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings B 20 927,500 740,000
Trade and other payables 2 5 K H M FER IR 21 584,226 688,276
Current income tax liabilities EHFREHAaRE 117,156 97,309
1,628,882 1,525,585
Total liabilities HmeF 1,701,670 1,631,977
Total equity and liabilities BERKRAE 8,351,919 6,927,840
Net current assets REEEFE 2,254,535 1,649,351
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABAMG 6,723,037 5,402,255

The notes on pages 98 to 184 are an integral part of these 598X 184EHIMizt RALE MISIMARMNERE D
consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of the Board REESE
Ms. CHU Lam Yiu Mr. XIA Li Qun
RMELZ L ERELE
Chairman Director
*E EF
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Statement of Financial Position
B REAR R 3—

As at 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H ‘ -
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BrZEEBEEIN - FTESBHBETTIIR)

As at 31 March

R=B=+-—H
Note 2012 2011
ks —E——fF —=——%F
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR Z&E 9(a) 1,245,083 1,245,083
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A e IR 14 480 473
Amounts due from subsidiaries A =N E% 9(b) 2,732,808 2,301,893
Cash and cash equivalents RERBLZED 15 11,908 13,489
2,745,196 2,315,855
Total assets HEE 3,990,279 3,560,938
EQUITY Ea
Capital and reserves attributable to ~ ZARQ F#ERZFE A
the Company's equity holders EERAREE
Share capital ik 16 315,985 315,005
Reserves i 18 777,662 742,767
Retained earnings REBER
— Proposed final dividend — BURAREAR S 19,28 280,595 251,374
— Others — HAh 19 1,482,571 1,351,353
Total equity s 2,856,813 2,660,499
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBE
Borrowings B% 20 927,500 740,000
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B A B30 18 9(b) 198,964 157,871
Trade and other payables B 5 & HAth fE T 5E 21 7,002 2,568
1,133,466 900,439
Total liabilities e F 1,133,466 900,439
Total equity and liabilities HESZNEE 3,990,279 3,560,938

The notes on pages 98 to 184 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

On behalf of the Board

FIBE1B4EMMERAT BRRAOER A o

RREES

Ms. CHU Lam Yiu Mr. XIA Li Qun

KELZ ERELE
Chairman Director
FE EBF
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Consolidated Income Statement
GEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2012

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

HE—ZT——F=fF=+—HItFE
(BB HIEREIN

PRA BB TTIIR)

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

Note 2012 2011
k3 —E-——fF —E——%F
Sales e 5 3,311,304 2,852,173
Cost of goods sold SHE KR 23 (975,308) (731,714)
Gross profit ER 2,335,996 2,120,459
Other income Hofth Uy 7 22 258,551 122,675
Selling and marketing expenses SHERMIGHERERY 23 (105,807) (81,040)
Administrative expenses TRER 23 (424,689) (290,388)
Operating profit EERR 2,064,051 1,871,706
Finance income U3 ON 33,168 24,692
Finance costs BUE R AR (16,373) (14,029)
Finance income — net BIFSURA — F58 25 16,795 10,663
Share of profit/(loss) of associates fEIGEEE N RIEF (F18) 10 143 (1,255)
Profit before income tax BRELATE R 2,080,989 1,881,114
Income tax expense FTig#i 26 (314,250) (249,256)
Profit for the year REFZEF 1,766,739 1,631,858
Attributable to: PEAE -
Equity holders of the Company RARE=TEA 1,750,419 1,604,400
Non-controlling interests JEFo Il 1 R 2 16,320 27,458
1,766,739 1,631,858
Earnings per share for profit FRXRQ B ER
attributable to the Company's BEAEMGR
equity holders for the year BREF
— Basic (HK cents) — &R (A 27(a) 55.48 51.01
— Diluted (HK cents) — B8 (BL) 27(b) 55.31 50.59
Interim and final dividends FHEIR REIRE 28 527,064 478,163
Special dividend HRIRE 28 163,680 -
690,744 478,163

The notes on pages 98 to 184 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEZHEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE—T——F-A=+—HitFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BrZERBEEI - FTESBHBETTIIR)

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HLEE

Note 2012 2011
Lz —E—CfF —E——%F
Profit for the year REEREF 5 1,766,739 1,631,858
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2wz :
Fair value gains on available-for-sale ~ AIftHESFEE Y
financial assets RN EWRE 11 12,466 755
Exchange differences on translating BINETS 2
foreign operations EH ZERE 152,280 175,417
Other comprehensive income for REERFE
the year, net of tax Hit 2wk 164,746 176,172
Total comprehensive income for REERFE
the year, net of tax 2HWREEE 1,931,485 1,808,030
Total comprehensive income EEEmlas
attributable to: 4 s
Equity holders of the Company RARE=FFEA 1,903,668 1,773,599
Non-controlling interests FEPE I M e 2 27,817 34,431
1,931,485 1,808,030

The notes on pages 98 to 184 are an integral part of these fE98Z184B HIMIcE BALRE MISIRAZMWEEEEELD o
consolidated financial statements.

Huabao International Holdings Limited FEEERZRARAE ¢ 2011-2012 Annual Report F 95



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

HE—ZT——F=fF=+—HItFE
(BB HIEREIN

PRA BB TTIIR)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

NG e 2PN L
Non-
Retained controlling
Note  Share capital Reserves earnings Total interests  Total equity
liFs i i RE2A & FRunEs L 3
Balance at 1 April 2010 H-g2-2EMA-B 312,882 40403 3066819 | 3,790,104 128103 3918207
Fair value gains on available-for-sale financial assets W &tHESBEEN A EFUE - 755 - 755 - 755
Exchange differences [ A% - 168,444 - 168,444 6,973 175,417
Profit for the year TEREA - - 1,604,400 1,604,400 27,458 1,631,858
Total comprehensive income for HE-E--F=B=1-HLEFEM
the year ended 31 March 2011 2AhREE - 169199 1604400 | 1773599 431 1,808,030
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners: EAAFHEEANRS :
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ARSI ERRANRE = = = = (9.933) (9.933)
Appropriations from net profit BB 18,19 - 9,966 (9,966) - - -
Acquisition of Yunnan Aroma Source Manufacturing  WEEHZERERER LA
Co., Ltd. (*Yunnan Huaxiangyuan’) ([28%5R)) - = = = 2,880 2,880
Acquisition of Guangdong Province Jinye WERRE S ERERR RIRE
Reconstituted Tobacco Leaves Technology BRAF ((EREE]) RANBR
Development Company Limited BENA (EREESE))
('Guangdong Jinye') and its subsidiary and
affiliated companies (‘Guangdong Jinye Group’) - - - - 7,115 7,115
Capital injection to Yunnan Huaxiangyuan HEZERERR = = = - 6,510 6,510
Capital injection to Xiamen Amber Perfumery A ERPRERARAR
Company Limited ('Xiamen Amber) ([EFm)) - - - - 2,107 2,107
Final and special dividend for HE-T-TE-A=t-RIEREZ
the year ended 31 March 2010 KBREIRS 19 - - | (8613 - (38613)
Interim dividend for the 6 months ended HE-T-TEAR=TRLAEAZ
30 September 2010 PERE 19 = = (226,789) (226,789) - (226,789)
Employee share option scheme ESEREE
~ Value of employee services - EERHBEE 3 - 4123 - 4123 - 4123
- Exercise of share options - (1 BRiE 17 2123 83,627 - 85,750 - 85,750
Total transactions with owners EREARSAR 213 97,716 (622,892) (523,053) 92,679 (430,374)
Balance at 31 March 2011 R=E--£=A=1-H 315,005 677318 4,048 327 5,040,650 255,213 5,295,863
Balance at 1 April 2011 RZE--%MA-A 315,005 677,318 4,048,321 5,040,650 255,213 5,295,863
Fair value gains on available-for-sale financial assets ~ AIEHESREENA BTG - 12,466 - 12,466 - 12,466
Exchange differences EEE - 140,783 - 140,783 11,497 152,280
Profit for the year RERRT - - 1750419 1,750,419 16320 1,766,739
Total comprehensive income for the year ended EHZ-2--F£=fA=+-ALFEH
31 March 2012 2AbRAE - 153,249 1,750,419 1,903,668 21,817 1,931,485
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners: EAAFEEANRS :
Appropriations from net profit BRI 18,19 - 1940 (1.940) = = -
Capital injection to Yongzhou Shan Xiang Flavour ~ £AZXMUEFRERAT
Co,, Ltd. ("Yongzhou Shanxiang”) (TAMLEL) - - - - 14,104 14,104
Capital injection to Qingdao Qingda Product Co., Inc,  ¥BZEEEANERGERAT
(*Qingdao Qingda“) ([E&EA)) - - - - 5,408 5,408
Incorporation of non-wholly owned subsidary RiE2EHEAR - - - - 29,400 29,400
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2011 HZ-F——%#=A=1-HItFE7
AERE 19 - - (251,737) (251,737) - (251,737)
Interim and special dividend for the 6 months ended  EZE=F——£hA=TRAIAERZ
30 September 2011 hBREIRS 19 - - (m10,049) | (@10,149) - (#10,149)
Employee share option scheme ESERESE
~Value of employee services - EERBEE 3 - 75 - 15 - 75
- Exercise of share options - Tl BRE 17 980 34,820 - 35,800 - 35,800
Total transactions with owners HEEARAEE 980 36,835 (663,826) (626,011) 48912 (577,099)
Balance at 31 March 2012 RZB-“£=RA=1-A 315,985 867,402 5,134,920 6,318,307 331,942 6,650,249

The notes on pages 98 to 184 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n I:Iiﬁlﬁlllb;'%:z

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE_T _F=A=+—AItFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BrZERBEEI - FTESBHBETTIIR)

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1+—HLFE

Note 2012 2011
Lz —E—CfF —E——%F

Cash flows from operating activities REEEHZHELHE
Cash generated from operations BEEE S 30 1,890,949 1,645,859
Income tax paid BT EH (350,791) (239,529)
Net cash generated from EEEHELEZ

operating activities HEFEE 1,540,158 1,406,330
Cash flows from investing activities REZEHNRESHRE
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B 8 A ) 29 (39,619) (1,321,781)
Capital injection in available-for-sale ;¥ &Rt H &

financial assets CRIEE 11 (13,736) -
Capital injection in associate A B E A A] = (30,085)
Purchases of property, BAMIE - HEER

plant and equipment Bl (597,204) (44,570)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - =R

plant and equipment RAEFTS A 11,961 927
Short-term time deposits withdrawal — $2EUAE HAE Bi 77 - 230,886
Interests received BUF & 33,168 30,043
Net cash used in investing activities REEFEFAZRERE (605,430) (1,134,580)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEHNRERE
Dividends paid to shareholders AR B X TR B (668,923) (619,130)
Capital contributions from holders of — JE¥E & HEREZRE A A

non-controlling interests EE 2 FTERIR 48,912 22,107
Proceeds from issue of shares 1715 R A%

in connection with exercise of MmEETT R FTAR

share options FrS #A 35,800 66,928
Repayment of borrowings BEEXR (203,701) (699,127)
Short-term bank borrowings RHRITIEE 387,500 894,348
Interest paid BENFE (11,550) (16,309)
Repayment to a shareholder BERKRR = (10,000)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBTA RS EEHE (411,962) (361,183)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERBEZEYEM,

cash equivalents (R2) F8 522,766 (89,433)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRE R

beginning of the year REFED 1,676,410 1,678,640
Effects of exchange rate changes on ~ EXZEHWIHS K

cash and cash equivalents HeEEBYNTE 87,401 87,203
Cash and cash equivalents at FHIBE K

end of the year ReEED 15 2,286,577 1,676,410

The notes on pages 98 to 184 are an integral part of these 593Z= 184E MMt ARG A BMFEREHEREID -
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI E

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

1.

98

GENERAL INFORMATION

Huabao International Holdings Limited (the ‘Company’) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the ‘Stock Exchange’).

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) are mainly engaged in the
research and development, production, distribution and sale
of flavours and fragrances and reconstituted tobacco leaves in
the People’s Republic of China (the ‘PRC’). Ms. Chu Lam Yiu
(‘Ms. Chu’), who is the Chairman of the Board of Directors,
holds approximately 38% equity interest in the Company as at
31 March 2012, through six limited companies incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands and solely beneficially owned
by her, namely Mogul Enterprises Limited, Resourceful Link
International Limited, Power Nation International Limited, Raise
Sino Investments Limited, Jumbo Elite Limited and Real Elite
Investments Limited, and is the single largest shareholder of
the Company.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of HK dollars (‘"HKD'000’) unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 June 2012.

BE_E——F€=A=+—HILEE

(BR=BHBEN -
1.

FiE € RH B E T THIR)
—RE

EEBBRIERAR AR ([ARF]) RBERE
A ZLAESREER AR - HiEftiEk
b #iF AClarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °

ARANENEBREER A XS BRAF]
(MBipr]) £ o

KA ABEEZERAT - ARAIRERNE A
Al ([AER]) 2¥BEE2EPEARLNEH
([FE]) £E DHEEEETREHMER
Eh oo AMELZ T ([Kzt]) DARRZE
EREFE - N-_ZT——F=ZA=+—08 &
BARRXNREBREAZEHSTMR I HRL
THE—E &= %A /AR A FMogul Enterprises
Limited * Resourceful Link International
Limited - Power Nation International
Limited - Raise Sino Investments Limited -
Jumbo Elite LimitedfzReal Elite Investments

Limited * B AR R T 438% 2z AXRQ
A)AYEE — KRR
NEEMIBEHRERGE B EHAEIN - HABET

T ([BETFIT]) SR - AERAMEREZER
T —FEXA-tHESESH AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS’) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA"). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by available-for-sale financial assets.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(@) The following new standards, amendment to
standards, and interpretations are mandatory for
the first time for the financial year beginning 1
April 2011, but are not currently relevant or do not
have significant impact to the Group’s operations
(although they may affect the accounting for future
transactions and events):

o HKAS 24 (Revised), ‘Related Party Disclosures’
is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2011.

e M B RRME

BE-_E——F=A=+—HILFEE

(BR=BHAEHN
2.

FASBEINEETLIIR)
IRETHRRBE

ARG EMEREMERN T RS BORHE
RTX - BEEBRPEIN  WERREMZH
WATBFENERER -

21 REREE
RRRRETBHRE DIRIBEE S EETAM
ANEBEMGHNEBMEREER (BB
RS ]) - WIHRE L KAEFH
BRIt ESmEEMmMELET -

mHTEBEMEREEAN I RE
AERETHRESIHE  EEENA
RERAEE S BEBRETTEEH
B MpkRENABXEEEMLEZ
5 S RERAMBRRIFHERKR
R EE R - TP IE -

(a) THRYFTETEA - (E2LER L2
BR -_F——FMA—HFEE
BFREREGER - (B84
PEERFEEXEEATE (#
AREAREEFZERKNX G FIE
B &A1 aRR) -

o AR B EAF24% (&
DB T wE (A —F—
—F— A - HAZ KRB
FEBRRER) -

Huabao International Holdings Limited FEEERZRARAE ¢ 2011-2012 Annual Report F 99



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BrEERBE

2.

100

HE—ZT——F=fF=+—HItFE

PRA BB TTIIR)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHEBEE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEXE (&)

(@) The following new standards, amendment to (@)
standards, and interpretations are mandatory for
the first time for the financial year beginning 1
April 2011, but are not currently relevant or do not
have significant impact to the Group’s operations
(although they may affect the accounting for future
transactions and events): (continued)

° Amendment to HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 ‘Prepayments
of a minimum funding requirement’ is effective
for annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2011.

. HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 ‘Extinguishing financial
liabilities with equity instruments’ is effective
for annual period beginning on or after 1 July
2010.

o Third annual improvements project (2010)
published in May 2010 by the HKICPA:

HKFRS 3, ‘Business combinations’

- HKFRS 1, ‘First time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards’

- HKFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments:

Disclosures’

- HKAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial
statements’

- HKAS 27, ‘Consolidated and separate
financial statements’

- HKAS 34, ‘Interim financial reporting’

- HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 ‘Customer loyalty
programmes’
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012 %ﬁé:;ﬁl—iiiﬂ =f—BiFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BREEHBPEI - FTESBHNBETTIIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBERHEE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

The following new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group:

° HKFRS 7 (Amendment) ‘Disclosures — Transfers
of financial assets’ is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

. HKFRS 1 (Amendment) ‘Severe hyperinflation
and removal of fixed dates for first-time
adopters’ is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

3 HKAS 12 (Amendment) ‘Deferred tax:
Recovery of underlying assets’ is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2012.

. HKAS 1 (Amendment) ‘Presentation of
financial statements’ is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

o HKFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’
is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013.

. HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) ‘Separate financial
statements’ is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

. HKFRS 11 ‘Joint arrangements’ is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRME

HE—Z——F=fF=+—HItFE
(BB AHRBEI - FTESEH BT TIIR)

ITREHABRBE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

102

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) The following new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group:
(continued)

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011) ‘Investments in
Associates and joint ventures’ is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013.

HKFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of interests in other
entities’ is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurements’ is
effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013.

HKAS 19 (Amendment) ‘Employee benefits’ is
effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) ‘Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities’ is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 ‘Stripping costs in the
production phase of a surface mine’ is
effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

HEe—ZT——F=-fA=+—HItFE
(BB AHBEI - FTESEHABET THIR)

FREHBERBE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

The following new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group:
(continued)

HKAS 32 (Amendment) ‘Financial instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities’ is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015.

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 (Amendments)
‘Mandatory effective date and transition
disclosures’ is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

Management does not anticipate that the
application of the revised standards will result in
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

104

HE—ZT——F=fF=+—HItFE
(BB AHRBEI - FTESEH BT TIIR)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBEHEE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation 2.2 #AEKRE
The consolidated financial statements include the HENBHRRBERAT REMANE
financial statements of the Company and all of its RABE=ZA=t—HILZHHEX -

subsidiaries made up to 31 March.

(a)  Subsidiaries (a)

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have more
than 50% of the voting power but is able to
govern the financial and operating policies by virtue
of de-facto control. De-facto control may arise from
circumstances such as enhanced minority rights or
contractual terms between shareholders, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from
inter-company transactions that are recognized in
assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

HE2—Z——F=fA=+—HItFE
(BB AEHBEI - FTESEHABET THIR)

FREHABRBE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

2.2 #REKRAE (H#)

(a)  Subsidiaries (continued) (a) HEBLAE (&)
(i)  Business combinations (i) ZEBEHt

Apart from the application of merger
accounting on those common control
combinations, the Group uses the acquisition
method of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognizes any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the recognized amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is measured to fair value
at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognized at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized
in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE—T—F-A=+—HAItFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BrEEHBPEIN - FTESBHBET TIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHBERE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued) 2.2 #AEKRE (#)
(a)  Subsidiaries (continued) (a) HIEBLAE (&)

(i) Business combinations (continued) (i) EBE6t (&)
Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of PRSI 2 A Y (EE
the aggregate of the consideration transferred JEfEHIM RO AL EBEE
and the fair value of non-controlling interest 5 BB ARNBREE
over the net identifiable assets acquired and MAEEESEN=E - |
liabilities assumed. If this consideration is Y EEBFTEEHE AR
lower than the fair value of the net assets SEEAEMAAREE ZET
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is IR P RET -

recognized in profit or loss.

(ii)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries (i) TEHLEZFENKHBA
without change of control TIREREE
Transactions with non-controlling interests 7 65 ) Y5 L 35 400 ) A S o
that do not result in loss of control are 17 BB LIRS
accounted for as equity transactions — that SABE AR S — BIEFR
is, as transactions with the owners in their BENEERREESHE
capacity as owners. The difference between RS o R AT E
fair value of any consideration paid and the H 7 40 {8 12 5240 B FE A5 B Uk
relevant share acquired of the carrying value BB A T % A 2 B (A
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in =S A o IR S
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non- V25 1 I B 1) BB JT S0 AR
controlling interests are also recorded in WEaSh o
equity.

(iii) Disposal of subsidiaries (iii) HEKEBAT
When the Group ceases to have control, any S B EE R T
retained interest in the entity is re-measured TR T AR RSN L =
to its fair value at the date when control is THEEAEFHEEAL
lost, with the change in carrying amount EBE - EEENESHERS
recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is hEEZ - AR EEARIRD
the initial carrying amount for the purposes RSB B A BE T = B W14
of subsequently accounting for the retained BEEE - EABL AL
interest as an associate, joint venture or SRVEE o kAN TRIEE
financial asset. In addition, any amounts fh i & U 25 o HE S A (T 2K
previously recognized in other comprehensive ER A EED EEE S
income in respect of that entity are accounted BEAEMAG  EEKEY
for as if the Group had directly disposed of HITE E A A U 25 o R SR i
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean B HMEEIBS o

that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)

PR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Application of merger accounting

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the combining entities
in which the common control combination occurs
on the basis that they had been combined from the
date when the combining entities first came under
the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities are
combined using the existing book values from
the controlling party’s perspective. No amount is
recognized for goodwill or excess of acquirers’
interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time of common control
combination, to the extent of the continuation of
the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statement includes the
results of each of the combining entities from the
earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities first came under the common
control, where there is a shorter period, regardless
of the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented on the basis that
the entities had been combined at the previous
closing date or when they first came under
common control, whichever is shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealized gains on transactions between
combining entities or businesses are eliminated on
consolidation.
Transaction costs, including professional fees,
registration fees, costs of furnishing information to
shareholders, costs or losses incurred in combining
operations of the previously separate businesses,
etc., incurred in relation to the common control
combination that is to be accounted for by using
merger accounting is recognized as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

108

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(c)

Huabao International Holdings Limited ZFEBEIFRZERBR AT » 2011-2012 Annual Report F 3k

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights.
associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognized at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognize the investor’s share of the profit or loss
of the investee after the date of acquisition. The

Investments in

Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognized in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognized in other consolidated comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interests in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognize further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognizes the amount in share of profit/
(loss) of an associate in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(©)

(d)

Associates (continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the group
and its associate are recognized in the Group's
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor's interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments
in associates are recognized in the consolidated
income statement.

Jointly controlled entity

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities
are accounted for by proportionate consolidation.
The Group combines its share of the jointly
controlled entity’s individual income and expenses,
assets and liabilities and cash flows on a line-by-
line basis with similar items in the Group’s financial
statements. The Group recognizes the portion of
gains or losses on the sale of assets by the Group
to the jointly controlled entity that is attributable
to the other venturers. The Group does not
recognize its share of profits or losses from the
jointly controlled entity that result from the Group’s
purchase of assets from the jointly controlled entity
until it re-sells the assets to an independent party.
However, a loss on the transaction is recognized
immediately if the loss provides evidence of a
reduction in the net realisable value of current
assets, or an impairment loss.
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e MBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

110

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

2.5

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend are receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's net
assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors that make
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the ‘functional
currency’). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HKD’), which
is the Company’s functional currency and the
Group’s presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5
(b)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within ‘finance income or cost'.
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within

All other foreign

‘other
income’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between transaction
differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognized in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available for
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

112

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that reporting;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognized in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control
over a jointly controlled entity that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the equity holders of the company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group’s losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences
are reattributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognized in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group's ownership interest in associates or jointly
controlled entities that do not result in the Group’s
losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Construction in progress represents the direct costs of
construction of property, plant and equipment incurred
plus interest capitalized less any impairment losses. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time the relevant assets are completed
and available for their intended use.

All other property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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e MBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

114

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-10 years

Leasehold improvements 2-5 years or over
the lease term,

whichever is shorter

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognized within other income, in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Land use rights

2.8

Land use rights are up-front payments to acquire long-
term interests in the usage of land. They are stated at
cost and charged to the consolidated income statement
over the remaining period of the lease on a straight-line
basis, net of any impairment losses.

Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and represents
the excess of the consideration transferred over
the Group’s interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (‘CGUs’), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment is recognized immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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e MBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

116

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Intangible assets (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Customer relationships and non-competition
agreement

Customer relationships and non-competition
agreement acquired as part of a business
combination are capitalized separately from
goodwill and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of the intangible assets
over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Trademarks and licenses

Separately acquired trademarks and licenses are
shown at historical cost. Trademarks and licenses
acquired in a business combination are recognized
at fair value at the acquisition date. They have
a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortization is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks and licenses over their estimated useful
lives of 10 to 20 years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortized over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 5
years.

Patent

Patent includes purchased technology and skills
acquired from third parties. They have a finite
useful life and carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of the technology and
skills over their estimated useful life 10 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HEZ T—F=R= e
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BrZEHBEI - FTESBHNBET TIIR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEESHBERHEE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets 29 FELRMEEMNRE
Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example THEFERFHZEE (MEEkHA
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use, are not AEERANETEEE) BEREH B
subject to amortization and are tested annually for LEBFERREETAR c REEE B
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortization are BEHHBRRE RN ERREEER
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in RS R BB EE TR - HEEE
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not REEZERAEBLERKESEY =
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the BER - JRESBEUEEZ AR BE
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds HEHER AR ERAEERE 2 RSE
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the R o RATHERER - BERA S
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value #EeRE CREEREMN) IREREX
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets HE - REEN  BERZRENIESR
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are BEASERE BHHLRERS AT
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). BEEETRAT -
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
2.10 Financial assets 210 EWEE
2.10.1 Classification 2.10.1 748
The Group classifies its financial assets in the AEERKESRMEES BT
following categories: loans and receivables and Bl - B R B W R IE K AT
available-for-sale. The classification depends on Z%Hﬂﬁﬁ “*ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ)\ﬁﬂ‘k

the purposes for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(@) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The

BEZEW BEEEEVRER
NiEEVBEENDR

(a) ERREWRE

B R e WK 7 [ 5E 3% T
ERNREREEERTS
HMEFETELREE UL
EREBEERDEENAN -
BERAFE B R ER2(E
E'JE@%’ J %E/t'j;'z//lbib
BE - ERRERIIRR
IR ES 85 REAM

Group's loans and receivables comprise ElZE| - [RekReE
‘trade and other receivables’, ‘cash and cash Byl & EWKH B AT X
equivalents’ and ‘amount due from subsidiary’ I8 | A o

in the statements of financial position.
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e MBHRME

HE—ZT——F=fF=+—HItFE
(BB EHRBEI - FTESEHABETTHIR)

FREHABERBE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Financial assets (continued)

2.10 £REE (&)

2.10.1 Classification (continued) 2.10.1 248 (#&)

118

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognized on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognized at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale
are recognized in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognized in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement as ‘other gains — net’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognized in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

2.12

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle

on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

120

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

Huabao International Holdings Limited ZFEBEIFRZERBER AT » 2011-2012 Annual Report F 3k

Assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognized
in the consolidated income statement. If a loan
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognized impairment
loss is recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its costs is also evidence that the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-
for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognized
in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognized in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses recognized in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

122

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.18

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortized cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognized in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortized over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)

PR R R M RE

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19

2.20

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer).
liabilities.

If not, they are presented as non-current

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Current income tax

(@)
The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entity operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

124

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(c)

Huabao International Holdings Limited ZFEBEIFRZERBER AT » 2011-2012 Annual Report F 3k

Deferred income tax

Inside basis difference

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the reporting date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
joint controlled entity and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (‘MPF Scheme’) in Hong Kong which is
generally funded through payments to insurance
companies under defined contribution plan. It pays
contributions to administered pension insurance
plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. Moreover, all the employees of the Group’s
entities incorporated in the Mainland China of the
PRC (the ‘Mainland China’) participate in employee
social security plans, including pension, medical,
housing and other welfare benefits, organized and
administered by the local governments. The Group
also makes defined contribution to retirement
schemes managed by the insurance company in
accordance with German regulation and rules for
the employees of the subsidiary located in Germany.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once these contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognized as employees benefit
expense when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognized
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2.

126

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (options) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognized
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

o including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognized over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. In addition, in some
circumstances employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore the grant
date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognizing the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant date.
At the end of each reporting period, the group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognizes
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts returns and
value-added taxes. The Group recognizes revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when

it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity; and specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)

(b)

(©)

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognized when a group
entity has delivered products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the products and
collectability of the related receivables is reasonably
assumed.

Delivery does not occur until the products have
been delivered to the specified location, the risks
of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to
the customer, and either the customer has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When
a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flows discounted at
original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired receivables is
recognized using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to
receive payment is established.
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FREHABERBE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Research and development costs

2.23 HERA

128

Research expenditure is recognized as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and testing of new or improved products)
are recognized as intangible assets when the following
criteria are fulfilled:

(a) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

(b)  the management intends to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it;

(c) there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
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(d) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset (d) FIFEBAZEFEENMRNSERE
will generate probable future economic benefits; =< j’iﬂlﬁ i

(e) adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and

(f)  the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Capitalized development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over its useful life,
not exceeding five years.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognized as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognized as an expense
are not recognized as an asset in a subsequent period.

Development assets are tested for impairment annually.
No development costs had been capitalized for the year
ended 31 March 2012 (2011: Nil).

(e) RHMHKAM M REMEIRA
TRAZERERAILEZELE
E: R

() REEZBETLEERHKALE

SRTE ©

BEREMABEEBRAGFAEBREELEE
EEIAFEARERRAESEEZEFER
SnRRAREN FRFRITIBEAES
E‘Eo

HM % EAREERNTFES Bl g
HOHERARER - BEERIEER
ZRABKAEERBRL T HERAREE -

MEEESFETRENR EBEZ
E-——HF-A=1+—"HLEFERLE
EAERRAEERN (ZF——F:
&) -

Huabao International Holdings Limited ZFEBEIFRZERBER AT » 2011-2012 Annual Report F 3k



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Operating lease

2.25

2.26

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grants will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognized in the consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the final
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders
and interim dividends are approved by the Company’s
Board of Directors.
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e MBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

3.

130

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow interest rate risk, and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group does not have any
significant price risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under the policies
approved by the Board of Directors. The Group identifies
and evaluates financial risks in close co-operations with
its operating units. The Board of Directors provides
principles for overall risk management, as well as policies
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk and investing of excess
liquidity.

(@)  Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
the Mainland China and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk primarily with respect to
Renminbi (‘RMB’). The exchange rate of HKD
against RMB and cash repatriation from the
PRC are subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government. The Group did not have
significant exposure to foreign exchange risk
as the entities of the Group mainly earn their
profits in RMB and the value of RMB has been
appreciating against HKD.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEREE (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HBREKBEZ (&)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) WHEER (&
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued) (i) E¥mEk (#E)
Should RMB be strengthened/weakened by Hr— T —FE=H=+—
5% against HKD during the year ended 31 BIEEER  BEAREN
March 2012, with all other factors remaining VSRS TG B E5% ¢ AT
unchanged, the profit after income tax for BEMEZEZRE . BY
the year and equity as at year end date would BB RN RERE S E N
be affected as follows: T:
Change of profit after Change of equity
income tax for the year as at 31 March
increase/(decrease) increase/(decrease)
HERB BB E REZA=+—HHESEN
#wm, Od) sganm,  CRd)
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E2-—_F - ZT——9F =ZEBE-—_-—F —ZT—%F
Group REME
- Strengthened by 5% — FHE5% 88,006 47,352 305,875 216,351
— Weakened by 5% — B2 fE5% (88,006) (47,352)  (305,875)  (216,351)
Company AT
— Strengthened by 5% — FHE5% - - - =
— Weakened by 5% — BZ1E5% - - = =
(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (i) BERERAABZAXR
[ B

Other than deposits held in banks, the Group
does not have significant interest-bearing
assets. Fluctuation of market rates does not
have a significant impact to the Group's
performance.

The Group's exposure to changes in interest
rates is mainly attributable to its borrowings
which are at floating rates, and expose the
Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.

At 31 March 2012, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 2 percentage points
higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, there would be no material impact
to the profit for the year.

Huabao International Holdings Limited FEEERZERARAE ¢ 2011-2012 Annual Report F 3

BRI R RTT RO 3R BAS
REBELEEAHEEE o
T 45 ) &R By B2 B AR R [ /Y
RIRBEBATE -

EMEBOEEHEARE
EREEIHRRETNHE
% SAEMEAZRSRE
R -

R-ZF-—Z—F=A=+—
B EAMERTENER
T - EERAE EF TR
MEE DR - HAFRAFL
REAVE -

131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

3.

132

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Huabao International Holdings Limited ZFEBEIFRZERBER AT » 2011-2012 Annual Report F 3k

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk
arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with
banks and financial institutions, credit exposure
to customers and related parties arising from
outstanding receivables.

As at the reporting dates, all the Group’s bank
deposits are placed in high quality financial
institutions without significant exposure to credit risk.

The Group currently sells substantially all its
flavours, fragrances and reconstituted tobacco
leaves products in the PRC domestic market. Credit
is granted for a period up to 6 months to the
major customers. The credit period is determined
according to an assessment made on the financial
conditions and past payment history of these
customers with the approval obtained from senior
management. As at 31 March 2012, the 5 largest
debtors accounted for 38% (2011: 48%) of total
trade receivables balance of the Group.

The directors are of the view that most customers
with outstanding balances as at 31 March 2012
are either existing customers with long cooperation
history with the Group and/or reputable companies
in the industry. The risk of credit default is
considered to be low and accordingly, the
provision for doubtful debts as at 31 March 2012
amounting to approximately HKD7,175,000 (2011:
HKD3,407,000) is considered adequate to cover any
significant potential credit risk.

The Company also recorded some balances due
from subsidiaries. The directors do not consider
that there is significant credit risk arising from these
balances in light of the past repayment history and
operations of these subsidiaries.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

3.2

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)  Liquidity risk
Cash flow forecast is performed in the operating
entities of the Group. The directors monitors rolling
forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements to
ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational
needs and that the Group does not breach
borrowing covenants on its borrowing facilities.
Such forecasting takes into consideration the
Group’s debt financing plans, covenant compliance,
compliance with internal statement of financial
position ratio targets and if applicable, external
regulatory or legal requirements — for example,
currency restrictions.

Except for an insignificant amount of long-term
borrowing as at 31 March 2011, all borrowing and
trade and other payables of the Group and the
Company were with maturity date within 1 year.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s net debt is zero
(2011: zero), which is calculated as total borrowings
(including current and non-current borrowings) less
cash and cash equivalents.

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The operating cash inflows of the Group are sufficient
for investing activities including acquisition of new
businesses.
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3.

134

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

- Quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2);

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The financial assets of level 3 fair value hierarchy
classification as at 31 March 2012 and 2011 were the
available-for-sale financial assets, of which the changes
for the year ended 31 March 2012 and 2011 are
presented in Notes 11. There were no transfers into or
out of level 3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(a)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2.8. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (Note 8).

Should the budgeted gross margin used in the
value-in-use calculation for the respective CGUs
of flavours and reconstituted tobacco leaves be
10 percentage points lower than management’s
estimates at 31 March 2012, with all other
assumptions remaining unchanged, the Group will
not need to recognize impairment of goodwill.

Should the budgeted gross margin used in the
value-in-use calculation for the CGU of fragrances
be 2 percentage points lower than management’s
estimates at 31 March 2012, with all other
assumptions remaining unchanged, the Group will
not need to recognize impairment of goodwill.

If the estimated pre-tax discount rate applied
to the cash flows of the respective CGUs of
flavours, fragrances and reconstituted tobacco
leaves had been 4 percentage points higher than
management’s estimates, with all other assumptions
remaining unchanged, the Group will not need to
recognize an impairment of goodwill.
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4,

136

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(b)

Dividends policy of subsidiaries

According to the relevant regulations of the
Corporate Income Tax Laws, when a foreign
investment enterprise distributes dividends out of
the profits earned from 1 January 2008 onwards
to its overseas investors, it will be subject to
withholding income tax. The applicable withholding
income tax rate varies with the origin of the
overseas investors.

The directors of the Company estimated that a
portion of profits generated by the PRC subsidiaries
would be distributed to their Hong Kong immediate
holding companies. Deferred income tax liabilities
had been provided based on 5% of the estimated
profits to be remitted to Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2012, deferred income tax
liabilities of HKD143,991,000 (31 March 2011:
HKD91,493,000) have not been recognized for
the withholding tax that would be payable on the
unremitted profits of certain PRC subsidiaries. The
directors of the Company have determined not to
distribute these earnings in the foreseeable future.

The directors of the Company will regularly review
the funding requirements of the Group and
thus revise the dividend distribution policy of its
subsidiaries from time to time.
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has organized its operations into three main
operating segments:

(1)  Flavours;
(2)  Fragrances; and
(3) Reconstituted tobacco leaves.

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified as
the executive directors (the ‘Executive Directors’). The Executive
Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Executive Directors consider the business from the
operation perspective and assess the performance of flavours,
fragrances and reconstituted tobacco leaves segments.
Flavours include research and development, production
and sale of flavours products. Fragrances include research
and development, production and sale of fragrances
products. Reconstituted tobacco leaves include research and
development, production and sale of reconstituted tobacco
leaves. The Executive Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of operating profit.
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (Br5 ﬁnﬁﬁﬂ%% C TS BHABETIR)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. ZHER (&)
The segment information for the year ended 31 March 2012 is HE-ZT——F=A=1+—RHILFEZHFE
presented below: K250

Year ended 31 March 2012
BE-_E-—H£-A=+t-HLEE

Reconstituted
tobacco Total
Flavours  Fragrances leaves segments Corporate Total
RRAERER BRBERER BEER DEEE @ @t
Total turnover BERE 2,905,260 180,590 253,072 3,338,922 - 3,338,922
Inter-segment sales HEEEE (24,974) (2,644) - (27,618) - (27,618)
Net turnover/segment sales F&%% /HEA 2,880,286 177,946 253,072 3,311,304 - 3,311,304
Segment result DHEE 1,980,782 8,016 85,316 2,074,114 (10,063) 2,064,051
Finance income BITS I A 33,168
Finance costs EREIN (16,373)
Finance income - net B — 35 16,795
Share of profit of associates {4 A 71 & 1
Profit before income tax i B 227 2,080,989
Income tax expense ZiKsei (314,250)
Profit for the year REERF 1,766,739

As at 31 March 2012
RZE-—#=B=+—-H

Reconstituted

tobacco Total
Flavours  Fragrances leaves segments Corporate Total
RAEREN HAERER BEEL ak:ifE o @t
Segment assets DEEE 5,827,643 222,140 2,289,627 8,339,410 12,509 8,351,919
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The segment information for the year ended 31 March 2011 is

presented below:

BE_ZE——F=A=+—HILEE
(BB AEHBEI  FTESEHABET TIIR)

5. ZEEH (&)
BE-_T——F=A=t+-HIFEZHHE
H2IWT :

Year ended 31 March 2011

HE-Z——4F=A=+—HLFE
Reconstituted
tobacco Total
Flavours Fragrances leaves segments Corporate Total
RABREN BRARER BEER 72 Eb At it st
Total turnover BEEE 2,609,161 160,362 86,759 2,856,282 - 2,856,282
Inter-segment sales HEPEIHE (4,099) (10) - (4,109) = (4,109)
Net turnover/segment sales F& %58 /HEUA 2,605,062 160,352 86,759 2,852,173 = 2,852,173
Segment result DHEE 1,837,579 30,632 14,905 1,883,116 (11,4100 1,871,706
Finance income B WA 24,692
Finance costs BEKAK (14,029)
Finance income - net BB A — 35 10,663
Share of loss of associates  fE{f & A Al 518 (1,255)
Profit before income tax ~ BRF{ATZF 1,881,114
Income tax expense Fi5® (249,256)
Profit for the year KEEEBRF 1,631,858
As at 31 March 2011
RZF——&=A=1+—H
Reconstituted
tobacco Total
Flavours Fragrances leaves segments Corporate Total
RRBAREN BRARER BEER 7 EbaRt et f@Et
Segment assets DEEE 4,695,066 237,689 1,980,688 6,913,443 14,397 6,927,840
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5.

140

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment result represents the profit earned by each segment
without inclusion of unallocated corporate expenses, finance
costs and finance income. This is the measure reported to
chief operating decision markers for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

The total of non-current assets, other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets, of the Group as at 31 March 2012 and
2011 are mainly located in the PRC.

Revenues from external customers are derived from the sales
of flavours, fragrances and reconstituted tobacco leaves to
customers mainly located in the PRC.

Revenue derived from sales made to one single external
customer amounted to 27% (2011: 27%) of the Group’s total
revenue. These revenues are attributable to flavours segment.
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BE_T —_F=A=1+—HAILFE
(BB AHRAESIN - PIASBEGABE T ITIIR)

W% BERRE - FKE

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 6.

Furniture,
Plant and Motor fixturesand  Leasehold Construction
Note Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment improvements in progress Total
il %8
i3 BF HERRE A& ke HERE ERIR gt

At 1 April 2010 RZZ-3EMA-A
Cost A 233,870 112,605 36,819 75,720 6,461 18,473 483,948
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (69,072) (40,473) (24,453) (44,688) (3,464) - (182,150)
Net book amount HEE 164,798 72,132 12,366 31,032 2,997 18473 301,798
Year ended 31 March 2011 HE-E-—-%£

ZA=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount ENEEYE 164,798 72,132 12,366 31,032 2,997 18473 301,798
Additions AE 1,917 3,706 4,856 17,605 1,346 24,764 54,194
Transfers £ 15,441 11,878 757 186 37 (28,499) -
Acquisition of Yunnan Huaxiangyuan  WEZHZRR 2,544 2,082 65 - - - 4,691
Acquisition of Guangdong Jinye Group KRR 4EEE 83,01 78,630 3,034 3351 5,027 29,230 202,293
Disposals e - (482) (370) (119) = - (971)
Depreciation TE 23 (12,518) (15,237) (4,592) (8,665) (1,408) - (42,420
Exchange differences EHAE 5,708 991 430 7431 151 2,077 16,788
Closing net book amount ERGE A 260,911 153,700 16,546 50,821 8,350 46,045 536,373
At 31 March 2011 R=B--§=fA=+-H
Cost A 357,734 307,199 45,525 107,693 13,378 46,045 877,574
Accumulated depreciation ZifinE (96,823) (153,499) (28,979) (56,872) (5,028) - (341,201)
Net book amount KHEE 260,911 153,700 16,546 50,821 8,350 46,045 536,373
Year ended 31 March 2012 BE-E--f

ZAZT-ALFE
Opening net book amount ENERFE 260,911 153,700 16,546 50,821 8,350 46,045 536,373
Additions AE 26,157 14,184 23,599 14,561 2,927 548,964 630,392
Transfers &h 88,748 5,357 255 6,569 - (100,929) -
Acquisition of Yunnan Zhengbang  WEEETF B4R

Shengwu Jishu Co, Ltd. ERAR ([Z@EA))

("Yunnan Zhengbang") 29) - 10 81 i3 - - 24
Acquisition of business WExHk 29(b) - 2470 818 161 - - 3,449
Disposals HE (1,864) (7,593) (1,911) (688) (8) = (12,064)
Depreciation & 23 (17,532) (24,281) (4,884) (11,846) (2,725) - (61,268)
Exchange differences EREE 9,740 4,857 623 1,602 1Y) 1212 18,276
Closing net book amount FRERYE 366,160 148,764 35,127 61,253 8,786 495292 1,115,382
At 31 March 2012 R-E-£=f=1-H
Cost s 484,281 332,064 67,109 127,215 16,704 495292 1,522,665
Accumulated depreciation Z:E (118,121) (183,300) (31,982) (65,962) (7.918) - (407,283)
Net book amount e 366,160 148,764 35,127 61,253 8,786 495292 1,115,382
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 6. % - #EREE — A58 ()
(continued)

Depreciation was expensed in the following categories: FERATHEXLH

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—BHLFE

Note 2012 2011

iz =F—=F —F—F
Manufacturing overheads Ryt 5 26,813 18,319
Selling and marketing expenses HEREERE 1,852 1,693
Administrative expenses TRER 32,603 22,408
Total depreciation e 23 61,268 42,420

7. LAND USE RIGHTS - GROUP 7. THERAE-FEE

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid REBR T ERARNERRANKSEES -
operating lease payments and their net book values are HEEEmFEITAT :

analyzed as follows:

As at 31 March

MR=A=+—H
2012 2011
—E—_F —F——%F
Outside Hong Kong, held on: EBBRINEZA T FERER ¢

Leases between 10 to 50 years 10Z=50F AL 209,233 194,697

Year ended 31 March

BEZ=A=1+—HLFE
Note 2012 2011
LiEsg e %
Beginning of the year =) 194,697 67,684
Acquisition of Yunnan Huaxiangyuan WiBEmREERR - 958
Acquisition of Guangdong Jinye Group WHEER & EEE - 121,996
Additions NE 13,389 -
Amortization 5y 23 (5,872) (2,795)
Exchange differences FE H R 7,019 6,854
End of the year FIR 209,233 194,697
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BE_T —_F=A=1+—HAILFE
(BB AHRAESIN - PIASBEGABE T ITIIR)

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP 8. HEFEEE -—A&E£H
Non-
Trademarks ~ Customer competition ~ Computer
Goodwill  and licences relationships  agreement Software Patents Total
BER
[k FaE EFEE  HiTEE Elas EV] @t
Note
lif3 (@) (b)
At 1 April 2010 RZE-Z£MA-A
Cost A 1,404,057 17,539 242,490 4,883 1,687 345 1,671,006
Accumulated amortization Ziris - (5,604) (61,003) (1,230) (370) (50) (68,347)
Net book amount BEFE 1,404,057 11,845 181,487 3,658 1317 295 1,602,659
Year ended 31 March 2011 BZ-8--%
ZA=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount ENEEYE 1,404,057 11,845 181,487 3,658 1317 295 1,602,659
Additions E - - - - 11 - 11
Acquisition of Guangdong Jinye Group HEERSEEE 1,079,606 108,595 14,063 - - 18782 1,221,046
Amortization B = (3812) (26,117) (494) (29) (2,487) (33,206)
Exchange differences A% 86,049 423 3212 5 50 (291) 80,448
Closing net book amount EREEEE 2,569,712 117,051 172,645 3,169 1,082 16,299 2,879,958
At 31 March 2011 R=B--§=fA=+-H
Cost i 2,569,712 126,905 263,166 4,888 1,728 18,899 2,985,298
Accumulated amortization 2aHEH = (9,854) (90,521) (1,719) (646) (2,600) (105,340)
Net book amount BEFE 2,569,712 117,051 172,645 3,169 1,082 16,299 2,879,958
Year ended 31 March 2012 BE-E--F
ZASt-BLEE
Opening net book amount ENBEFE 2,569,712 117,051 172,645 3,169 1,082 16,299 2,879,958
Additions E - - - - 610 385 995
Acquisition of Yunnan Zhengbang ~ WEZHLEH 29) 5,781 - - - - - 5,781
Acquisition of business WELn 29(b) - 1,358 - - - - 1,358
Amortization 2 3 - (7,633) (28,342) (494) (387) (6,148) (43,004)
Exchange differences ERAE 76,556 4,508 5,230 5 36 552 86,887
Closing net book amount FREEFE 2,652,049 115,284 149,533 2,680 134 11,088 2,931,975
At 31 March 2012 R=8--%£=f=1-A
Cost R 2,652,049 133,255 272,390 4,888 2,402 20,022 3,085,006
Accumulated amortization 2:tEE - (17,91) (122,857) (2,208) (1,061) (8,934) (153,031)
Net book amount RERE 2,652,049 115,284 149,533 2,680 134 11,088 2,931,975

Amortization is included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

BHERAEFARERNITRERAR -
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BE_T —_F=A=1+—HAILFE
(BB AHAESIN - A SBEGUBETITIIR)

BREE - +58 (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP (continued) 8.

(a)

Goodwill is mainly attributable to the anticipated
profitability of operations, the anticipated future
operating synergies and enlarged market share. Goodwill
is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified mainly
according to the operating segments.

The goodwill is allocated as follows:

(a) AEIEAKLAHNEHBNMNR
TEHAH) R R A48 & 155 R BB M B K Y T 45
MEBRE - AKBCHEIEREBEEE
BoBoEZ EREELEN

BEDEHNRHEZ25MT :

As at 31 March

R=A=1-H
2012 2011
ZR-If -k
Reconstituted Reconstituted
tobacco tobacco
Flavours  Fragrances leaves Total Flavours ~ Fragrances leaves Total
RABREN ARERER  EEW, & SREEEN BREREM  BEER @t
Goodwill HE 1,459,741 54,308 1,138,000 2,652,049 1,405,750 52,291 1,111,671 2,569,712
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based & fﬁ%@i 5 {7 ) AT U5 5] 6 K8 T3 DA (R
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre- RAEEE BEREEERAREENI

tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a ten-year period
(2011: ten-year period) as management believes that
the cash flow of the Group is comparatively stable and a
forecasted period longer than five years is feasible. Cash
flows beyond the ten-year period are extrapolated using
the estimated growth rates below. The growth rate does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
businesses in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations
are as follows:

SRABEEBE - ATNERRRER (B
BAF) HReN  FMEAFEER
EEEEHEN TFHMBAEME
ST BRATBR IR R e REFE (2T ——
F 1058 - BaTFHNRERE
AN FEREIRAT - ZER
Er @B RReEEEML 2 ZBEHEE
EHNRHAFHERE -

EREEFENIERRMAT :

As at 31 March

R=A=1+-H
2012 2011
—B-C% 3£
Reconstituted Reconstituted
tobacco tobacco
Flavours Fragrances leaves Flavours Fragrances leaves
REERER HARREH BEEL RRERER PRELEH BEZR
Gross margin EH= 75% 20%-21% 45%-58% 75% 20%-25% 45%-58%
Growth rate BRE 5% 5% 3% 5% 5% 3%
Discount rate BRE 13.5% 13.5% 15% 13.5% 13.5% 15%
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

8.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP (continued) 8.

(a) (continued)
These assumptions have been used for the analysis of
each CGU within the operating segment.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and their expectations for the
market development. The discount rates used are pre-tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

After assessing the cash flow projections of the
various CGUs, the directors considered that there is no
impairment of the goodwill as at 31 March 2012 and
2011.

(b)  Trademarks represent the Peacock, Xinghu and Samshiang
trademarks.

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH 9.
SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(@) Investments in subsidiaries

Investments at cost — unlisted shares WERKAE — FELETRRD

BE_FT —_F=A=1+—HAILFE
(BB AHRAESIN - PIA S BB TITIIR)

BRIVEE - <58 (&)

@ ()
HEXEEAREESHPNSERS
EEBUHHNA -

EEERBEBENRAREHMEER
TR E AT EME - FTAMARE
ABBILRRE B BN ERR

ERHEZER ¢ E A B MRS RIER
® AEEZEERAN_FT——_FK
—E—F- A=t HBBLERE -

(b) FRDIEFLE - EMRMRRILEREEER

RMBRARACREREH Z&RR - &
NG
(@ MBRAZKRE

As at 31 March

R=BA=+—H
2012 2011
—E——F —T——fF
1,245,083 1,245,083

(b)  The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free, denominated in HKD and repayable on demand. The
fair value of the balances with subsidiaries approximate
to their carrying value. None of the balances is either
past due or impaired.

(b) MEBARZEHRIERR 28 LB
BREMURARERKREE - BFER
AlzEBRNEREEAAERE - RF
FEERE B HASORE ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE-_Z——F=A=+—HIFE

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BB BHBEN - BB ABETTIR)
10. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES - GROUP 10. AEE N TIZ2RE — KEE

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HLFE

Note 2012 2011

LiEsg —E2——fF —T——F
Beginning of the year F4) 61,009 6,236
Share of profit/(loss) of associates FE(LEE = AR &R (EER) 30 143 (1,255)
Acquisition of Guizhou Huangguoshu U S & M & B4 & BRI

Jinye Technology Co Ltd. BRAR ([EREEE])

("Huangguoshu Jinye") - 25,464
Capital injection in Huangguoshu Jinye & & 24 (a) 38,485 30,085
Dividends declared TR E (304) (475)
Exchange differences Ve 5, B 2,212 954
End of the year FR 101,545 61,009
The results, assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the RZTE——F=ZA=+—8 ' ~EBEZHEQ
Group's associates, which are all unlisted, as at 31 March 2012 Al (GEETARR]) 2¥4 - BE (BERE) M
are as follows: AEMT

Net profit/
Country of (loss) for % Interests
Name incorporation Assets Liabilities Revenues the year indirectly held  Principal activities
REER B
£ FRALER EE g hE B/ (FR) EREAL TEEEK
Henan Jinrui Flavours Co. PRC RMB RMB RMB RMB 25%  Production and sale of

Ltd. ('Henan Jinrui’) e ARE ARE ARE ARE tobacco flavours and
AEehAREHERAR 38,348,000 16,120,000 35,656,000 1,563,000 fragrances and fine

(MEekh)) chemicals products

EERFERRER
ERRBA IER
Huangguoshu Jinye PRC RMB RMB RMB RMB 40%  Pre-operating
ERbEE e ARE AEE AR AR ShRZT
185,726,000 246,000 - (684,000)

(@) During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group (@) #H ZE20129F3HF31BItFE K& E

increased its investment in Huangguoshu Jinye amounting DEFEERENESRER/ & ELHHK

to HKD38,485,000 with intangible assets. 38,485,000t °
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BE_T —_F=A=1+—HAILFE
(BB AHRAESIN - PIASBEGABE T ITIIR)

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

11. AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS - 11. AtHELRESE — ~&EE

GROUP
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—-HLHEE
2012 2011
—E-C-F —T—F
Beginning of the year F1) 38,067 -
Acquisition of Guangdong Jinye Group included — WEERSEEEBSH
the following two investments: AT RIERE
— Hunan Jinye Reconstituted Tobacco Leaves - R msEREE SR
Limited Liability Company BRETAR - 11,624
- Shanghai Tobacco Group Taichuang Haiyan —REEEEEBEKRE
Reconstituted Tobacco Leaves Company HEEEERAR
Limited (“Shanghai Tobacco Taichuang”) AR ([ EERE]) - 24,969
Capital injection in Shanghai Tobacco Taichuang EE FERR 13,736 -
Net fair value change recorded in equity R FEZE D AR 12,466 755
Exchange differences B 7 = =8 1,662 719
End of the year FIR 65,931 38,067
Available-for-sale financial assets include: AftHESMEERR
As at 31 March
R=A=+—8H
2012 2011
— B —E——4F
Unlisted equity investments: at fair value FEETREFKE  ARE 65,931 38,067

AfEESHEENAREE - RESRE
EERE -

Available-for-sale financial assets are all denominated in RMB.
None of these financial assets is impaired.
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REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE_Z——F=A=+—HIFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BB ERBAEI - FrESBEHUBET TIR)
12. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 12. EEFfEREE A - &~&£H
- GROUP
The movement in the deferred income tax is as follows: RIEFTEFRESHWT -
Deferred income
tax assets Deferred income tax liabilities
EEREHER EEFEHAE
Withholding
income tax
Valuation on dividends
Unrealized surplus of expected to be
profits assets and  remitted from
arising from recognition  group entities
intra-group  of intangible incorporated
Note sales assets in the PRC Total
£ER R
AEHEEE BENME AREHEL
FREENEE BRRERN NREMEE
FizE ARERER BENRR ZERAEH @t
At 1 April 2010 RZZ-ZFNA/—H 50,544 57,870 51,000 108,870
Acquisition of Guangdong  WEEFRLE£E
Jinye Group - 20,483 - 20,483
Recognized in the income  RiEZFHER
statement 26 (10,496) (6,064) (21,272) (27,336)
Exchange differences B i, R 2,752 1,154 (341) 813
At 31 March 2011 W-E——F=R=+—H 42,800 73,443 29,387 102,830
Recognized in the income ~ MAEZEXHER
statement 26 25 (9,389) (22,603) (31,992)
Exchange differences B AR 1,611 1,950 - 1,950
At 31 March 2012 W=Z——-F=A=+—H 44,436 66,004 6,784 72,788

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for temporary &EBEANAFBEEREENEBRRNREIRBTER
differences arising from the unrealized profits from intra-group  AIEIEMSHEE r He B U BB X IREERE L
sales, and calculated under the liability method using the tax K EBEE AR RAE T Z28E ©

rate which are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance

sheet date.

Deferred income tax liabilities are arisen from the valuation GEZEFMEHREBEIIENVAADGIKESKES GHE A A
surplus of property, plant and equipment, land use rights and  Fr@&Zr 2 ¥ 2 « R L& - tHFERENELE
intangible assets, and recognition of intangible assets as a EMNTHEKRLEEFEENERAMES  LEER
result of acquisition of subsidiaries; and withholding income tax A F B i 55 7 892 5] TBEPE 3B AN A% B P EE A
on dividends expected to be remitted abroad by group entities  ZFEIRFTISEL ©

incorporated in the PRC.
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BE_FT —_F=A=1+—HAILFE
(BB AHRAESIN - PIA S BB T ITIIR)

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

12. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES - 12. B FIBSBEE BB -—4F&£H

GROUP (continued)

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Laws of the PRC
approved by the National People’s Congress on 16 March
2007, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends remitted
from the PRC entities to overseas investors with effect from 1
January 2008. A lower withholding tax rate of 5% is applied
to Hong Kong investors as there is a tax treaty arrangement
between the PRC and Hong Kong. The directors of the
Company estimated that a portion of profits generated by
the PRC subsidiaries would be distributed to their Hong Kong
immediate parent companies. Therefore, deferred income tax
liabilities had been provided based on 5% of the estimated
profits to be remitted to Hong Kong. The directors of the
Company will review the funding requirements of the Group
from time to time and revise the dividend distribution policy of
its subsidiaries as appropriate.

As at 31 March 2012, deferred income tax liabilities of
HKD143,991,000 (31 March 2011: HKD91,493,000) have
not been recognized for the withholding tax that would
otherwise be payable on the unremitted profits of certain PRC
subsidiaries.

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income
tax liabilities is as follows:

(&)
BREEZEARKRAGR-_FZLF=A+R
BEBHNTEMEMFIE  A-—TTN\F—
H—BE HEEACERAIERECEDIK
BB BRI0%Z B ERBMAEH - R
BRBBERIHBIHE - WHBEAERER
EERBELEDIEEE - JZEAREBENHRE
5%EU - ARREERR KR LPBEARE
MEARZAMKERETEREENEERY
RA - At BEMBSHEBDRBTELE
BLZBRAS%AREGFH - ARREFHT
el AR 2 B2 F R EE AR B AR
ZBEBR -

T —F=A=+—H ' AEET K5
ETHEAEHBARZAEHAFET
INMBERMESHBERECEMBSHERE
75 #143,991,000T (= T — — F: B ¥
91,493,0007T ) °

EEFRBSHREERBBENONAT

As at 31 March

R=BA=+—8”
2012 2011
—E-CF —ET——F
Deferred income tax assets: BEFTSTHAE
— to be recovered within 12 months — £+ = 1@ B AUk = 2615 44,436 42,800
Deferred income tax liabilities: BLEFSHAE
— to crystallize after more than 12 months  — #EfB3@+ —1& A & W @ 2B 1n 57,380 65,698
— to crystallize within 12 months — £+ =8 A A= EB 5 15,408 37,132
72,788 102,830
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE-_Z——F=A=+—HIFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BrBERBAEI - FrESBHBET TIR)
13. INVENTORIES - GROUP 13. 7 - FK&H
As at 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
At cost: R
Raw materials R 608,537 426,569
Work in progress TR 16,807 4,116
Finished goods BB T 42,527 37,276
667,871 467,961
The cost of inventories recognized as expense and included HE_ZT——F=-A=1+—HLFEZEFE
in cost of goods sold for the year ended 31 March 2012 RAERBBER LG AHEKR AN S EL
amounted to approximately HKD873,580,000 (2011: 7% 7 873,580,000t (ZF — —F : BH
HKD636,819,000). 636,819,0007T) °
14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14. EZREMEBRIR
As at 31 March
R=A=+-H
Group Company
AEE N
Note 2012 2011 2012 2011
(i —E-CF —2——F —g--F —2——F
Trade receivables ED) UG 14(b) 635,047 653,504 - =
Less: Provision for impairment 5 : JEUZIE
of receivables REEE (7,175) (3,407) = =
Trade receivables — net BHRMGIE — 8 627,872 650,097 - -
Notes receivable [ ESR 169,760 175,304 - -
Prepayments and FANFIE R AR 14(a)
other receivables B 110,640 192,139 480 473
Advances to staff STHH 6,996 3,519 - -
Others Hith 13,701 9,506 - -
928,969 1,030,565 480 473
(@) The Group’s trade and other receivables balances (a) AEEZEZREAMBRE (BRENER
(excluding prepayment of HKD20,210,000 (2011: & #20,210,000 (ZF——F &
HKD32,598,000)) are financial assets categorized #32,598,0007T) SN SR A [ B /A E
under ‘loans and receivables’. All trade and other WRIE | o B 8 5 & E i & WK IE TH R
receivables are either repayable within one year or —FARRBAREE - WEHRHM
on demand. Accordingly, the fair values of the trade FEWRIBREEREAAERE - R=ZF
and other receivables approximate to their carrying —— =A==+ HEKERCEEE
values. Receivable due from the former shareholder of Z Al A% B8 # 135,623,000t E R F A
Guangdong Jinye Group of HKD135,623,000 as at 31 178 °

March 2011 was settled during the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

HE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE

(BB EHRBEEI - FTESBHBET TIIR)
14. ESRHEMEWKIE (&)
BRTITREFHNEEH K AE0E180H - ¥
#“£EH - BEHRrKEIE (B EBE AL
ME SREKRZIE) RiEEZH KRR

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b) The credit period generally granted to customers ranges (b)
from 0 to 180 days. The ageing analysis of the trade
receivables (including amounts due from related parties

which are trade in nature) from invoice dates as at the DR :
balance sheet dates is as follows:
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——F
0 — 90 days 0%90H 566,547 592,568
91 — 180 days 91%180H 40,636 39,637
181 — 360 days 181£360H 10,078 10,863
Over 360 days 3608 A 17,786 10,436
635,047 653,504

As at 31 March 2012,
HKD627,872,000 (2011: HKD650,097,000) were fully

performing.

After considering the credit period, trade receivables are
assessed for impairment. As at 31 March 2012, trade
receivables of HKD20,689,000 (2011: HKD17,892,000)
were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number

receivables of

R-Z——F=A=1+—"H B5EK
R BH627,872,0000C (ZZE——F B
#650,097,0007T) EZEEBETT ©

EREmE  BYHE S RBYGRIEETR
BEFfE R-—T——F=f=+—8
B 5 8 U0 I8 7 20,689,0007C (= F
—— & : ##17,892,0007T) & E B H

of independent customers for whom there is no recent B RE o LLERIBY R Z E&ITR
history of default. The ageing analysis of the past due BHEREFGENBILIRS - WEE S
trade receivables is as follows: FEW R B8 HARR B D AT LR TS

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H

Group

AEE
2012 2011
—E——fF ZE——%F
Past due up to 180 days BEAE180H 10,078 10,863
Past due over 180 days B AR 180 H 17,786 10,436
27,864 21,299
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-T——F=A=+—HItFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BB BHBEN - BB ABETTIR)

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 14. EFREMEBRRE (F)

(b)  (continued) (b)y (#&)
As at 31 March 2012, trade receivables of HKD7,175,000 R-ZE——F=A=+—HB BFEIK
(2011: HKD3,407,000) were impaired and fully provided. ERET7,175,0000 (ZE——F : B
The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to 3,407,0007T) & EIM1E & & 8 1E - @
customers which had ceased cooperation with the BIRE B e Uk 21 TE = B3k g R AR [ AR
Group and were not in a position for repayment. These IEEERBERREERENNETL - il
receivables are all aged over one year. JEWFIERER I EBA—F -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables AEENEFERZNEEE (215
(including amounts due from related parties which BEATHE SREIWHIE) AT E8 A
are trade in nature) are denominated in the following BEQT ¢
currencies:
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E——& —E——1F
HKD B = 80
United States Dollar (‘USD’) =7 ([Z=7x]) 1,070 5,078
RMB AR 633,977 648,346
635,047 653,504
Movements of the provision for impairment of trade B o RIGRERENZBIT

receivables were as follows:

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1+—HLFE

Group

AEE
Note 2012 2011
B =E —E—CF —T——%F
Beginning of the year £ 3,407 2,215

Provision for impairment on B SRS ERE

trade receivables 23 3,859 1,192
Exchange differences bE H 7R 2 (91) -
End of the year FR 7,175 3,407
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in ‘administrative
expenses’ in the consolidated income statement.
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally
written off when there is no expectation of recovering
additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do
not contain impaired assets.

BE_Z——_F=HA=+—HILFE

(BREBHAEIN

FTA S EANBE T TIIR)

14. ESREMEWRIE (F)

(b)

(&)
HERERUKABENRIMNECDCE
REGERERD [TTHRER] A - 5TA
BRERPHNEE -—REEBRBEEK
Bl ZR N R B o

BHREMEBRRANEBERNLE R
SEREEE °

EHRERY  ERERARNZSRAMBAE
AL ERERFRRREE - NEE
TRAEAERBERNERR

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of receivables
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security.

15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES - GROUP AND 15. SRITREFHEE - XAXEEREAF

COMPANY
As at 31 March
R=B=+—H
Group Company
s 3 VNN
2012 2011 2012 2011
-5 -T -5 —B--E "T—F
Cash and cash equivalents RekB2EEY 2,286,577 1,676,410 11,908 13,489
Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following RITREFHR A TIIINES IR
currencies:
As at 31 March
W=A=+—H
Group Company
FEE EAH
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F-=F —T——F —EB-—=fF —T——F
RMB AR 2,173,855 1,643,471 = =
HKD e 90,586 25,454 11,908 13,489
usb ET 19,530 4,213 - -
Euro and others BT R H A 2,606 3,272 - =
2,286,577 1,676,410 11,908 13,489

RZE——F=A=+—8 AEEKAQA
AHANREREMNREEEMHRSEERR
THEEREEE -

As at 31 March 2012, the Group’'s and the Company’'s
maximum exposure to credit risk of cash and cash equivalents
is their carrying value.
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BB BHBEN - BB ABETTIR)
16. SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND COMPANY 16. BRE - AEBRAEAT

Ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each
BREEEY0.10TZERER

Number of
Note shares HKD’'000
B 5E BHEE BT T
Authorized: JATE ¢
At 1 April 2010, R=_ZF—ZFWPA—A -
31 March 2011 and —E——F=A=1+—HBxK
31 March 2012 —E——#F#=fA=+—H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
At 1 April 2010 R-—ZE—ZFW™A—H 3,128,820,961 312,882
Exercise of share options 1T RE AR 17 21,230,000 2,123
At 31 March 2011 R-ZE——F=HA=+—H 3,150,050,961 315,005
At 1 April 2011 RZZT——FMWA—H 3,150,050,961 315,005
Exercise of share options 1TEEER #E 17 9,800,000 980
At 31 March 2012 —E——#=fF=+—H 3,159,850,961 315,985
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BE_T —_F=A=1+—HAILFE
(BB AHRAESIN - PIASBEGABE T ITIIR)

17. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 17. BRAETE
On 10 October 2006 and 25 October 2006, the Group granted RZEERNFT+ATHEHE-ZZEZEANFTA
97,200,000 and 30,400,000 share options with an exercise —+HH ' AXEED AT 197,200,000 %
price of HKD3.09 per share and vesting periods of 0 to 3 years 30,400,000 fE R #E - 1TEE R ERBE
to employees and directors respectively. On 17 October 2007, 3.09 T R EBHEIROEIF - TEERES -
the Group granted 13,900,000 and 3,600,000 share options FR-_ZFEZ+F+A++H  AEESRIRE
with an exercise price of HKD6.65 per share and vesting periods 13,900,000%23,600,000/% BE A% #E » 1T{E B &
of 0.5 to 3 years to employees and a director respectively. On FRABEcSTNEBHAYXFEIF  TiE
14 April 2008, the Group granted 10,400,000 share options to EN—®REZF NP _EZEN\FWOA+ITH -
two directors with an exercise price of HKD6.39 per share and REERFTHMEZEE10,400,0000% 88 I #& -
vesting periods of 0 to 3 years. The options have a contractual TEBASRBE6 39T NEEBHA0E3F -
option term of 10 years. The Group has no legal or contractual SRBPCERENHRATF - KAEBELRE
obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash. The fair BN EREE RS Y ERRE - AR
value of the share options was determined using the Black- KA F fB{EHBlack-Scholess L R AIFER © £
Scholes valuation model. Share option compensation expense 4R A U EE R R A B AR A R BN B R B I B =
recognized in the consolidated income statement is shown in 23 e
Note 23.
Movements in the number of share options outstanding during RENRN - RATENBREE 2 &8 & EERE 2
the year and their related weighted average exercise prices are I ITEBIIRAT -
as follows:
Year ended 31 March
BE=-A=+—-HLEE
2012 2011
—B-=F —T——%
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of share exercise of share
price in HKD options price in HKD options
Note per share (“000) per share ('000)
MEFY BREHA T EREHE
THEERT (B2 Ik EAT (BRE
B s (ZRs) BAFE) (B PATEH)
Beginning of the year FH) 4.85 40,790 4.57 62,220
Exercised B17E 16,17(a) 3.65 (9,800) 4.04 (21,230)
Forfeited KR 17(b) - - 3.09 (200)
End of the year R 523 30,990 485 40,790
(@) The weighted average share price immediately before (a) EEBIRHEITE R A 2RI/ MKEFHK
the share option exercised dates was HKD7.91 (2011: TERERBEIINT (ZE——F:
HKD10.13) per share. 7EHEE10.137T) °
(b) These represented share options forfeited due to (b) MERERFEHRRE TR -

resignation of employees.

Huabao International Holdings Limited ZEBERRZRBRAE » 2011-2012 Annual Report F 3 155



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE-T——F=A=+—HItFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BrBERBAEI - FrESBHBET TIR)
17. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 17. BREE (&)
Share options outstanding as at 31 March 2012 are analyzed as RZEBE——F=A=+—BR1IEERKREZD
follows: MR -
Exercise price Number of
in HKD share options
Grantee WEFA per share (‘000) Expiry date

TREERT BREHAR
(ZIRE) (BREATF&D) KM EH

Directors B 3.09 4,000 24 October 2016
20164F10A24H
6.65 2,600 16 October 2017
2017410816 H
6.39 10,400 13 April 2018
2018%F4H13H
Employees == 3.09 7,600 9 October 2016
20165F10H9H
6.65 6,390 16 October 2017
2017108 16H
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——F=A=+—H 30,990
All (2011: 40,790,000) share options as at 31 March 2012 are RZZT—=—F=ZA=+—8 " FTBERIEN
currently exercisable. (20114F : 40,790,000) & R #ER B EF] F
1748 -
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e M BmRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE-T-—F=ZA=+—HILEE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BB EHRBEEI - FTESBHBET TIIR)
18. RESERVES 18. f#fE
GROUP
15@
Share-based
Contributed Merger Share Capital compensation ~ Exchange Other
Note surplus reserve  premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves Total
NRBRER

i ESEE  AHERE 0 RMEE  EREE  NMERR  BERE  HERE &t

At 1 April 2010 NZE-FF
MA-H 288,191 (617,160) 304,630 1,677 60,519 240,365 132,181 410,403
Fair value gains on available- At HELREE
for-sale financial assets DERE - - - - - - 755 755
Appropriations from BEMER
net profit - - - - - - 9,966 9,966
Employee share option EERREE
scheme
- Value of employee -EERKER
Services 23 - - - - 4123 - - 4123
- Bxercise of share options /7P ERMR#E - - 100,532 - (16,905) - - 83,627
Exchange differences [N HE - - - - - 168,444 - 168,444
At 31 March 2011 RZF--
=A=1-H 288,191 (617,160) 405,162 1,677 47,731 408,809 142,902 677,318
At 1 April 2011 WZE-—F
HA—H 288,191 (617,160) 405,162 1,677 47,731 408,809 142,902 677,318
Fair value gains on available- W[t HESBARE
for-sale financial assets MEFRS - - - - - - 12,466 12,466
Appropriations from AAFER
net profit - - - - - - 1,940 1,940
Employee share option EEERET 2
scheme
~Value of employee -EERBEE
SErvices 23 - - - - 75 - - 75
- Exercise of share options ~ — {7(l g - - 40,815 - (5,995) - - 34,820
Exchange differences EREE - - - - - 140,783 - 140,783
At 31 March 2012 RZE-—=
=A=t1-H 288,191 (617,160) 445,971 1,677 41,817 549,592 157,308 867,402
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BE_T —_F=A=1+—HAILFE
(BB AHAEIN - A SBEGUABE T ITIIR)
18. fi&fE ()

COMPANY
L

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

18. RESERVES (continued)

Share-based

Contributed Share Capital compensation
Note surplus premium reserve reserve Total
SR RER
i3 EAEH R EE BRRE MM RE st
At 1 April 2010 R-E-%
FEA—H 288,191 304,630 1,677 60,519 655,017
Employee share option scheme  [& 8 EERRE=T 2
- Value of employee services - EERBER 23 - - - 4123 4123
- Exercise of share options — PR R - 100,532 - (16,905) 83,627
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F
ZRA=1—H 288,191 405,162 1,677 47,737 742,767
At 1 April 2011 RZE—F
MA—H 288,191 405,162 1,677 47,731 742,767
Employee share option scheme (& & Bk iE:T 2
- Value of employee services — — BERKEE 23 - - - 75 75
— Exercise of share options — IR - 40,815 - (5,995) 34,820
At 31 March 2012 N3
=A=1—-H 288,191 445,977 1,677 41,817 771,662
19. RETAINED EARNINGS 19. REAEF
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+-HLEE
Group Company
S 3 PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-C=F —T——F ZE-CZfF —T——F
Beginning of the year E4) 4,048,327 3,066,819 1,602,727 1,192,947
Profit for the year REFEF 1,750,419 1,604,400 822,325 1,022,706
Appropriations from net profit B 46 7B (1,940) (9,966) = -
Final and special dividend for HE-_ZT—ZTF
the year ended 31 March 2010 “A=1+—BLEE
2 REA R R Rl AR S = (386,137) - (386,137)
Interim dividend for the six months  #HZE—-ZT—Z4F
ended 30 September 2010 NA=THIEARER
ZHHE - (226,789) - (226,789)
Final dividend for the year HE-_=——F
ended 31 March 2011 ZA=T—BLEE
ZAHRE (251,737) - (251,737) -
Interim and special dividend for HE-_Z——%F
the six months ended NA=+HIEAER
30 September 2011 ZHE R R R B (410,149) = (410,149) =
End of the year FiR 5,134,920 4,048,327 1,763,166 1,602,727
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

20.

BE_FT —_F=A=1+—HAILFE
(BB AHRAESIN - PIA S BB TITIIR)

19. RETAINED EARNINGS (continued) 19. REEF ()
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is BHNFEBRA NG E=FE AMAR B #RE
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the MR IR R B RE A B 5822,325,0007T(2011 ¢
extent of HKD822,325,000 (2011: HKD1,022,706,000). 75 11,022,706,0007T) ©
BORROWINGS 20. EX
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
Group Company
TEH b N/NE|
Note 2012 2011 2012 2011
i3 —E-C=fF —T——F —B-—F —E——F
Non-current FERED
- Secured bank loans — B (a) - 3,562 - -
Current i Eh
— Unsecured bank loans — 4 (b) 927,500 740,000 927,500 740,000
Total borrowings wER 927,500 743,562 927,500 740,000

(a)

The bank loan was secured by a pledge of land and
buildings located in Yunnan Province owned by the
subsidiary, Yunnan Huaxiangyuan. The loan was
denominated in RMB and was repaid in December 2011.
During the year, the average interest rate is 7.15% per
annum.

The unsecured bank loans are denominated in HKD
and are repayable within one year. During the year, the
average interest rate is 2.13% per annum.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
approximate their fair values.

Interest expense on bank borrowings for the year
ended 31 March 2012 amounted to HKD16,373,000
(2011: HKD13,734,000). No interest expense (2011:
HKD2,215,000) was capitalized.
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BERRTERDEHBEANERES
TR HT 5 BT B L0 R
BER - KERAARKREL AR
—B——FtARE - RER BE
KB BEETISE -

IR ITERABELBEN  TFER
—FRNEHEE - RFR - ZERFH
MNEBFE213E -

ERHMREERQ R BERT

BHE-_ T —F=-A=+—HILFERN
RITEHRF B X A #16,373,000
T (ZZF——%F : #¥13,734,0007T) °
ERREARAYTE (T ——F: B
2,215,0007T) IR EREAR(E -
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ARE SRR M
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE—T—F=ZA=+—AItFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BB ERBAEI - FrESBHBET TIR)
21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. ESREMENRKER
As at 31 March
R=B=+—H
Group Company
FEE VYN
Note 2012 2011 2012 2011
Bz —2-=F —E——F - —F—F
Trade payables =) ANE 8] 21(a) 359,310 303,913 - -
Non-trade payables to IEE 5 e~ Ra
related parties ANTFHIE 32(c) 123,985 123,985 - =
Wages payable ENTE 11,806 11,984 - -
Other taxes payable H i ERFLIE 25,069 51,350 - -
Accrued expenses et 12,303 8,995 6,700 2,275
Advances from customers & FE BN K 5,333 4,122 - =
Other payables H th &< 5RIE 21(c) 46,420 183,927 302 293
584,226 688,276 7,002 2,568
Except for other taxes payable of HKD25,069,000 (2011: B L i < 75 28 #525,069,0007T (=& ——
HKD51,350,000) and advances from customers of 4 351 350 0007T) & & B YA Bn
HKD5,333,000 (2011: HKD4,122,000), trade and other 5,333,0007T (=& — — 4 : ¥ #4,122,000
payables balances are financial liabilities categorized under TE) 4N BE REMFEN SIS S [Tk
‘financial liabilities measured at amortized cost’. The fair values WA ENSRER] - 85 & EMENSE
of trade and other payables approximate their carrying values. HAAEEERLEmERE o
(@) The ageing analysis of the trade payables (including (a) NEERBHENZE (BEBEH AL
amounts due to related parties) as at the closing dates B8 SRENEIE) RSB T

are as follows:

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H

Group

AEE
2012 2011
—E-C=F —T——F
0 — 90 days 0Z90H 285,947 211,891
91 — 180 days 91£180H 43,625 62,177
181 - 360 days 181£360H 7,831 7,664
Over 360 days 360H A E 21,907 22,181
359,310 303,913

160 Huabao International Holdings Limited ZFEBEIFRZERBER AT » 2011-2012 Annual Report F 3k



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

H=E

T —HE=fA=+—HItFEE

(BRRBHAEIN - IAESBRHABETTIIR)

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 21. ESRHMENSRIE (&)

(b)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables (b) AEBMBSEMNZ (BIEBEHMALTH
(including amounts due to related parties which are trade BHENRE) WEEBENTYE®E A
in nature) are denominated in the following currencies: By -

As at 31 March
R=BA=+—H
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E
HKD T 1,377 1,741
EUR and others R TT e Efth 11,600 5,187
usD =TT 16,301 14,462
RMB AR 330,032 282,523
359,310 303,913

() Payable due to the former shareholder of Guangdong © ENRTEREEEZARREEREA
Jinye Group (2011: HKD140,530,000) was settled during 45 (ZZ——F : #¥#140,530,0007T) °
the year.

OTHER INCOME 22. Hftnlz

22.

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2012 2011

—E——fF —E——%F

Government grants BT #R3 B 139,910 59,901
Exchange gain — net FE HUa %S — 558 62,777 56,150
Others HAith 55,864 6,624
258,551 122,675
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BE_T——F=A=+—HItFE

(BB ERBAEI - FrESBHBET TIR)
EMHEETENEX

BERBEHEENAS  HERMBHERI KT
BRER 2T :

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

23. EXPENSES BY NATURE 23.

Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and marketing
expenses and administrative expenses are analyzed as follows:

162

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HLFE

Note 2012 2011
Mt —E-C—F — T

Depreciation, excluding amounts included — # & (T ®iEsH AT &

in research and development BRERMNEHE) 6 51,433 35,540
Amortization b | 7.8 48,876 36,001
Changes in inventories of finished goods P M ER S

and work in progress FEE (17,942) 7,324
Raw materials and consumables used B A RME R E#Em 891,522 629,495
Provision for impairment on trade B Z WK 2 R ERE

receivables 14(b) 3,859 1,192
Lease rentals e 12,143 10,669
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEE & 10,371 6,728
Travelling expenses Z B 33,837 22,046
Entertainment expenses IREERE S 25,763 17,183
Employee benefit expenses, excluding EEREFAY (T

share option compensation expenses BE AR i SR & A &

and amounts included in research and SAMRERENEE)

development 24 133,268 103,923
Share option compensation expenses HE AR i Al & 18,24 75 4,123
Research and development Ve

— Employee benefit expenses —EEREHNFXZ 24 58,865 41,036

— Depreciation — e 6 9,835 6,880

— Others — HAth 117,682 73,626
Delivery expenses EEgf 32,116 23,552
Utilities DR R L 36,759 21,687
Motor vehicle expenses FEERRY 14,969 9,809
Others Hith 42,373 52,328
Total of cost of goods sold, selling and MIHERAE - HER

marketing expenses and administrative 5 i E R S 0

expenses TRER 1,505,804 1,103,142
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 Eﬁ?::i\fl—iiiﬂ =f—BiFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BREEHBPEI - FTESBHNBETTIIR)
24. EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES 24. EERABEX
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—HLEE
Note 2012 2011
B EE —2——fF —E——%F
Wages, salaries and bonus T HpkiEe 153,018 119,160
Pension costs — defined contribution plans Rk % — EREEHt2l 24(a) 22,340 15,400
Share options granted to directors and BTEERES ZHERE
employees 23,30 75 4,123
Others A, 16,775 10,399
192,208 149,082
(a) Retirement scheme benefit (a) EARETTEIEF

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all the eligible
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries up to a maximum
of HKD1,000 per employee and they can choose to
make additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of each employee’s
monthly salaries up to a maximum of HKD1,000 (the
‘mandatory contributions’). The employees are entitled to
100% of the employer’s mandatory contributions upon
their retirement at the age of 65 years old, death or total
incapacity.

The Group makes defined contribution to retirement
schemes managed by the local governments in the
Mainland China. It is the local governments’ responsibility
to pay the retirement benefits to those staff who retire.

Furthermore, the Group makes defined contribution
at certain percentage of monthly salary to retirement
schemes managed by the insurance company in
accordance with German regulation and rules. It is the
insurance company'’s responsibility to pay the retirement
benefits to those staff who retire. No pension obligation
is required under the Botswana laws and regulations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE-Z——F=A=+—HILtFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BrZEHBPEIN - FTESBHBET TIIR)

24. EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued) 24. EERABEX ()

(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) E=MS
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 EEEREE-_T——F=A=1+—H
March 2012 is set out below: IEFEZMemT :
2012 201
—3-CF “3--F
Employer's Share Employer's Share
contribution ~ options contribution options
to pension ~ granted to topension  granted to
Name of director Fees Salaries scheme directors Total Fees Salaries scheme directors Total
EXRBf RTESZ EFHER RTESZ
2 ik e HEER EhE Eh k3 e EER e &t
Executive director: HiTEE:
Ms. Chu Lam Yiu gLt - - - - - - - - - -
Mr. Lau Chi Tak gy = 1,500 12 50 1,562 - 1,500 12 1,489 3,001
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok RRELE - 1319 195 - 1,514 = 1319 195 - 1514
Mr. Wang Guang Yu THREE - 546 62 - 608 = 319 55 - 434
Mr. Xia Li Qun ik - 637 3 - 670 = 453 26 - 479
Mr. Xiong Qing ks - 1430 12 25 1467 - 1430 12 1,116 2,558
Independent non-executive BV 577
directors: EZ:
Dr. Jin Lizuo (appointed on £ 37454 (K
19 August 2011) —F—7
SATE
EZf) m - - - m _ _ _ B B
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu ks 180 - - - 180 180 - - - 180
Ms. Ma Yun Yan WERLT 180 - - - 180 180 = - - 180
Mr. Mak Kin Kwong BRAEE (R
(retireal upon expiry of —F—F
term on 5 August 2011)  /1f4AH
EHERER) 62 - - - 62 180 - - - 180
6,354 8,526
No directors waived any emoluments during the years B2 T——4#x—"FT——F=A=+
ended 31 March 2012 and 2011. —RIFFE - BEEHEEAWE -
During the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011, no BT —FR-_ZT——F=A=+
emoluments had been paid by the Group to the directors —BHILFE  AEBETERES N
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as 4 Ve AN A £ B 1) S5 B =% /5 2 B RS
a compensation for loss of office. 1B -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BHE-Z——F=A=+—HILtFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BREEHBPEI - FTESBHNBETTIIR)

24. EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued) 24. EERAEX ()

(c) Five highest paid individuals () EEBEHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest FRN - EAEBEZRAERRTMALTE
in the Group for the year include 3 (2011: 3) directors B (ZE——F =) BEE W
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented BEZHMEFBEHN LEX - KFEX
above. The emoluments paid and payable to the NTESRREALT (ZE——F : WH)
remaining 2 (2011: 2) individuals during the year are as ZBEmT
follows:

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HLEE

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F
Basic salaries and allowances BT & KERL 6,354 4,751
Contributions to the retirement scheme RIRRR AT B 104 110
Share options granted R T B — 218
6,458 5,079

The emoluments fell within the following bands: BEZMESEUATEHE :

Number of employees

EEAH

2012 2011
—B-=fF —E——%F

Emolument bands i <& &6 [
HKD1,000,001- HKD 1,500,000 7B#1,000,001% 1,500,0007T - 1
HKD1,500,001- HKD2,000,000 711,500,001 %2,000,0007T 1 -
HKD3,500,001- HKD4,000,000 78 #3,500,001%4,000,0007% = 1
HKD4,500,001- HKD5,000,000 B 4,500,001 %5,000,0007T 1 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

25. FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

26.

166

BE_E——F=A=+—HILEE
(BB HHBEI

PRA BB TTIIR)

25. MBWARBE A

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HLFE

Note 2012 2011
Bt —F-=F —F——F
Financial income: U N
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF A B A 30 33,168 24,692
Financial cost: A& KA
Interest expenses — bank borrowings FMEBRA - RITEK (16,373) (13,734)
Bank guarantee charge on borrowings IRITIREBER — RITEBE - (2,510)
Less: amounts capitalized on B ABERBEEZANE
qualifying assets B - 2,215
30 (16,373) (14,029)
Finance income — net B A — JF 58 16,795 10,663
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 26. FrSBL

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income
statements represented:

FTABE AR 2 HIRS IR T ¢

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1+—HLFE

Note 2012 2011
FeE = =

Current income tax BVERFL IR
- Hong Kong profits tax — BAMEH (a) 12,553 13,364
— PRC corporate income tax — PR ERBH (b) 332,853 252,306
— Germany company income tax — BB ERATEH (d) 87 =
— Botswana company income tax — RN EFTER (e) 774 426
Deferred income tax assets BEAFSTHEE 12 (25) 10,496
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFEHAE 12 (31,992) (27,336)
314,250 249,256

(@) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year.

(b) PRC corporate income tax has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the tax rates
applicable to respective companies of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

26. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(©)

BE-_E——F=A=+—HILFEE

(BB AHBEI - FTESEHABET THIR)
26. FrE® ()
THAAEBRFRANEFMzEE D
EMFEHERTR A

The income tax rates enacted or substantively enacted to (0)
the major subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in the
PRC were as follows:

April to January to January to
December December March
Note 2010 2011 2012
“EZ-%F —E2—-F —B-CF
(i3 mAZE+=A —-BRE+=A —RZ=AR
Feijia Chuangye Additive G- IEI7NIIe]
(Shenzhen) Limited (RY) BR AR (i), (i) 1% 12% 12.5%
Guangdong Jinke Reconstituted BREASHEERE
Tobacco Leaves Company BRAT
Limited (i), (v 15% 15% 25%
Guangdong Jinye BRGE i), (v 15% 15% 25%
Guangdong Zhaoging BREEETRK
Fragrances Limited ARAE (v) 15% 15% 15%
Guangzhou Huabao Flavour & BMEERREHR
Fragrances Company Limited BRARE (i) 25% 25% 25%
Hua Fang Tobacco Flavors Limited ERERANBRAF (i) 25% 25% 25%
Huabao Food Flavours & EZERABREN
Fragrances (Shanghai) (L&) BR AT
Company Limited ([ZE L8]
("Huabao Shanghai’) (v) 15% 15% 15%
Huabao Xianghua Keji Fazhan ZERHBER
(Shanghai) Company Limited (£8) BRAR (i) 25% 25% 25%
Huashun Flavours (Shanghai) ZEEER (L&)
Company Limited ARAT
("Shanghai Huashun’) ([ E5EIE]) (i), (iii) 12.5% 12.5% 25%
Owada Flavour Technology BEERBR
(Guangzhou) Limited (BMN) BRAF (v) 15% 15% 15%
Qingdao Huabao Flavors & EEESARER
Fragrances Company Limited BRAR (iif) 12.5% 12.5% 12.5%
Qingdao Qingda BEEX 0) 25% 25% 25%
Shanghai H&K Flavours & PEEBHNAEREH
Fragrances Company Limited BRAR (v) 15% 15% 15%
Shanghai Yinghua Flavours & TERERREH
Fragrances Limited ('Shanghai BRAR
Yinghua') ([ EB%E]) (i), (iid 12.5% 12.5% 25%
Shanghai Zhezhan Trading Limited FERRESERDE (i) 25% 25% 25%
Shangtou Tsing Hua Biochemical EM B E T
Engineering Company Limited ARAT
(Shantou Tsinghua') (MLzEEE]) (i), (v) 15% 25% 25%
Shenzhen Dongjiang Chuangzhan MITRIEERE
Trading Limited ARAR (ii) 22% 24% 25%
Taicang Wenhua Enterprise AEXEBERERAF
Company Limited (TREXE])
(‘Taicang Wenhua') (i), (iii) 12.5% 12.5% 25%
Wauxi Fuhua Flavour & EHBERREH
Fragrance Company Limited BRARE (i) 25% 25% 25%
Wuxi Hua Hai Flavour Company EHEFENERAT
Limited (iii) 12.5% 12.5% 12.5%
Wuxi Huaxin Flavour & Fragrance BEHEERERR
Company Limited ('Wuxi Huaxin’) ERATF
([EHEeE]) (i), (iii) 12.5% 12.5% 25%
Wauxi Jiahua Flavour & Fragrance EHRERRER
Company Limited ARAE 0] 25% 25% 25%
Xiamen Amber Fragrances Co Ltd EFFRHERER AR (v) 15% 15% 15%
Yongzhou Shanxiang FKINLE (i) N/A 25% 25%
Yunnan Huaxiangyuan ERERR (i) 25% 25% 25%
Yunnan Tianhong Flavor & EPREBREN
Fragrance Company Limited BRARE (iv) 15% 15% 15%
Ying Tan Huabao Flavours & EEEEEREN
Fragrances Co., Ltd. BRAR (i) N/A 25% 25%
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE-Z——F=A=+—HILtFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BrZEHBPEIN - FTESBHBET TIIR)
26. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 26. Fiie® (&)
() (continued) (0 (&)
The income tax rates are derived from various tax policies. NRKPFSHRERE TRIMBUK °
(i)  The Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC stipulates iy EASTERESD AR
the applicable income tax rate at 25% for domestic BY3E A PTSHAE /25% ©

enterprises in the PRC.

(i)  PRC companies established before 16 March 2007 (i) RZZTZELEF=A T+ BZAX
are entitled to the transitional rules announced ST B B K R O B B 7S B 4B AR
by the State Council Circular [2007] No. 39 which 2 B 1§ 3[2007]15 395 5 H
stipulated that from 1 January 2008, the existing —EENF—F—H " Bt
tax rate of 15% applied to some enterprises shall ERABENIS%HR R GIEINE
be increased to 18% in 2008, 20% in 2009, 22% 2008 #118% ~ 20094 #920% *
in 2010, 24% in 2011 and 25% in 2012. 20104F K922% ~ 201 16F #924% K&

20125 H25% °

(i) The ‘two-year exemption and three-year half rate’ (i) Z[ME=ZE¥ ] NEERRER
preferential tax policy is applied. For enterprises ERA - tERERE R AREER
that do not benefit from such preferential policies HREEERRN  $HE-ZF
due to their loss making status, the time for which NE—H—-—BRBERILBER -
such policy to apply shall commence from 1 January EIELE - EBHRE . KBEXE
2008. The preferential tax policy for Shanghai REGERNEBIRER2011
Huashun, Shanghai Yinghua, Taicang Wenhua and FRH -

Wuxi Huaxin expired at the end of 2011.

(iv) Encouraged enterprises of western regions can (iv) FA7EEBIE 1 X st B A 1 25 o] A AR
continue to enjoy tax rate of 15% until 2022. ZB15%HBEEE2022F ©

(v The CIT Law also stipulated that the Corporate (v) GERGPEARECEMEHG
Income Tax shall be levied at the reduced rate R ZBR IR &R %
of 15% for High/New Tech Enterprises that are BEA15%H) K o

specifically supported by the State.

(d) Germany company income tax has been provided at the (d) EREERSHRERNFEMGERTA
rate of 15% (2011: 15%) on the estimated assessable MIABERI5% (ZF——4F : 15%) &
profit for the year. f& o

(e) Botswana company income tax has been provided at the (e) TEREMEFEFMSBIRAFEE (G5 ER
rate of 15% (2011: 15%) on the estimated assessable REFATEE15% (ZF——F : 15%)
profit for the year. B -

(f)  No provision for income tax in other jurisdictions has f) ANEEREEFELEMEEERNE
been made as the Group has no assessable profit in those MGREARFEHKA - &R A EDE
jurisdictions during the year. R B FTIS B /E B4 o
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26. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(9)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the standard tax rates before tax holiday applicable

HE2—Z——F=fA=+—HItFE
(BB AEHBEI - FTESEHABET THIR)
26. FriS® (&)
(9) AEERBRIASHRAIAFNNTE  &BX
£ EFE T AER A A FTEME 2 5 H A
BAHERETNERRBENMTR @ 35

to the respective companies of the Group as follows: s
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—BHLEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
Profit before income tax R F5 A 2 A 2,080,989 1,881,114
(Less)/Add: Share of results of associates OV U ANGIE 35 (143) 1,255
2,080,846 1,882,369
Tax calculated at standard tax rate RS EE TR A RE A
R E R FIIE 521,761 443,048
Effect of tax holiday R E (193,549) (162,739)
Tax impact of expenses not deductible TR 2 RS &
for tax purposes 2,211 426

Withholding tax on the earnings anticipated Fff/& 2 &7 EAFE H HIA% &
to be remitted by subsidiaries FREEHE 2 TEIRFTIS L (22,603) (21,272)
Tax losses for which no deferred income W ERERIELEFTS T EER

tax assets were recognized Hii%kEa 6,430 4,273
Tax impact on liquidation of a subsidiary BE—HNBAR BB E = (14,480)
Income tax expense FiS i 314,250 249,256

Due to the fact that the directors are not certain
on whether future taxable profit would be available
in certain subsidiaries, the Group did not recognize
deferred income tax assets of HKD18,995,000
(2011: HKD12,565,000) in respect of tax losses of
such subsidiaries amounting to HKD85,588,000
(2011: HKD55,342,000). Losses of HKD2,170,000,
HKD12,577,000, HKD6,077,000, HKD15,255,000 and
HKD22,935,000 will expire on 31 March 2013, 31 March
2014, 31 March 2015, 31 March 2016 and 31 March
2017 respectively, and losses of HKD26,574,000 do not
have an expiry date.

AAESELIBENARESH EHERMN
BRBAETRIE  ANEEWRBERIHGWEB
AaElz IR R E5 18 S 85,588,000t (=
T — — 4 ##55,342,0007T) VIR EFT 1S
i & 4976 #518,995,0007T (=& — —4F :
7 #12,565,0007T) © AR AT B EIE & 58
75 #2,170,0007T © 78 #12,577,0007C © 7
#6,077,0007T - # #15,255,0007T K % &
22,935,000 DB —E—=F=H=+—
H —E—NM&F=A=+—H0 —E—HF=
A=+—H —ZE—XRF=ZA=+—BK_Z
—tF=A=+—H%KkK - 5%26,574,0007T
MR ERNEELARHA -
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27. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

HE—Z——F=fF=+—HItFE

(BRRAEFAEI - A SBEHUBETITIIR)
27. BRER
(a) EXF

BREXABMNIRBEAFEARR B EE
FEARGRN  BRAFAERTER
IRE I B A E -

Year ended 31 March
BE=RA=1+—HLFE

2012 2011
—E-C=F —T——F
Profit attributable to equity holders of AR a s B ATEEZF
the Company 1,750,419 1,604,400
Weighted average number of ordinary BTz EmAR
shares in issue (‘000) E5g (T=1) 3,155,203 3,145,299
Basic earnings per share BREREF (BRRABW)
(HK cents per share) 55.48 51.01

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated based on the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding,
assuming that all dilutive potential ordinary shares have
been converted. For the year ended 31 March 2012,
the Company has one type of dilutive potential ordinary
shares, i.e. share options.

For the share options, a calculation is done to determine
the number of shares that could have been acquired at
fair value (determined as the average annual market share
price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as above
is compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

(b)

#E
SREERNBRAMETEENELEE
BRI - RIBC BT EBRAM
BYORBETE BHE-_T——F=7
=t HLEHFE  NARAE BT EE
MEEEBR (BEE) -

ERBRAE - REBERTTERBRAEMRMD
REENEREE EERATE (E
ERARBRNOFHEETE) B
ARG EE « BIA EFAAENRG
2B ERIXEBERETEMREDETH
BB fFH LR ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 BHE-Z——F=A=+—HILtFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BrZEHBEIN - FTESBHNBETTIIR)
27. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 27. BRER (&)
(b) Diluted (continued) (b) #% (]|)

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1+—HLFE

2012 2011
—E——F T
Profit attributable to equity holders of RRRIRERB AELER
the Company 1,750,419 1,604,400
Weighted average number of A LA TE G RRE A& FI Y
ordinary shares used to calculate AR A A S 8
basic earnings per share (‘000) (F5H) 3,155,203 3,145,299
Adjustments for: A
— exercise of share options (‘000) — {TEERRRE (T1) 9,587 26,085
Weighted average number of ordinary shares &% #E5% 2 5| 59 38 A% )
for diluted earnings per share (‘000) e (F51) 3,164,790 3,171,384
Diluted earnings per share BREERAT
(HK cents per share) (FRAN) 55.31 50.59
28. DIVIDENDS 28. RE
Year ended 31 March
BEZA=+—BHLFE
2012 2011
—g——& —ZE——%F
Interim dividend paid of HK7.80 cents BN &k AR 57.8078 1L
(2011: HK7.20 cents) per share (ZF——%F : 7.20%1L) 246,469 226,789
Proposed final dividend of HK8.88 cents BRI AR AR 2.8.88 78 1l
(2011: HK7.98 cents) per share (ZZF——4F : 7.98%81l) 280,595 251,374
527,064 478,163
Special dividend paid of HK5.18 cents B BRI S5.1878 1L
(2011: nil) per share (Z2——F  &]) 163,680 =
690,744 478,163
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28.

29.

172

DIVIDENDS (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, an interim dividend of
HKD246,469,000 (HK7.80 cents per share) (2011: HKD7.20
cents per share) and a special dividend of HKD163,680,000
(HK5.18 cents per share) (2011: nil) have been paid by the
Company. A final dividend of HK8.88 cents per share (2011:
HK7.98 cents per share), HKD280,595,000 in aggregate (2011:
HKD251,374,000), are proposed at the meeting of the Board
held on 20 June 2012 which is subject to the shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting. These
consolidated financial statements do not reflect these proposed
dividends. The aggregate amounts of the dividends paid and
proposed during 2012 and 2011 have been disclosed in the
consolidated income statement in accordance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
(a) Acquisition of Yunnan Zhengbang

On 25 June 2011, Huabao Shanghai, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement
with independent third parties to acquire 100% equity
interests in Yunnan Zhengbang, a company incorporated
in the PRC at a cash consideration of approximately
RMB5,760,000 (equivalent to HKD6,926,000).

Yunnan Zhengbang is principally engaged in the research
and development, consulting and sale of new material for
cigarettes in the PRC. The acquisition was completed on
1 July 2011 and Yunnan Zhengbang became a subsidiary
of the Group.

The acquired business contributed revenue of HKD18,000
and net loss after tax of HKD499,000 to the Group for
the period from date of acquisition to 31 March 2012.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2011, the
consolidated revenue would have been increased by
approximately HKD1,005,000 and the consolidated net
profit after tax would have decreased by approximately
HKD835,000 and hence the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2012 would show
the consolidated revenue of HKD3,312,309,000 and
consolidated net profit after tax of HKD1,765,904,000.

BE_E——F€=A=+—HILEE

(BR=BHBEN -
28.

29.

PRA BB TTIIR)

BE ()
REE-_TE——F=A=+—HIEFER
RRARE AR AR B A 246,469,000
T (BREBEE7S) (ZFE——F : FRAE
#57.201) X FF BB B & %S #163,680,000
T (ERBESI8IN(ZZE ——F: &) -
¥R AR K E BT RS Ks.8sl
(ZZ2——&F: §RB®B78L) - X4
7 #280,595,0007T (= & — — & : B #&
251,374,0000T) * E—FE——F A =-1+H
BIOINESREREDRE - BFRERIIET
MRRBAFT RS FERRAE - LR A BT
MR AR EZRE o RIBEBA (RAHK
By —E—=—FR_FT——FBIREREIK
BHREBBEOELRARERTPHE

E¥BE6t

(a) WHBEBE
R-ZT——FA-+HB  XRAFZ
2EMBAR EELES BBYE=
HEEWE UARSWBREHARE
5,760,000t (#8551 7%%6,926,0007T)
Ui — MR BRI AR 0 ErEF
H1100% 5 °

EHEATRETERFHE  #Hf Rk
HEBERME - ZRBER T ——
FEA-BERMEMEACKSNE
Bz HBAR -

SEKANERAE_E——&E=A=+
—HIE - EAREER KL AE18,000
JCHY 85 B IR A I 49 7% #499,0007T B Br
FRi&E8 -

MZWER=_FT——FMHA—H %
£ AEBEZEEHEERAEE NG
75 #1,005,0007T Fl 47 & i 12 & F 45 Rm
A #) 7 #835,000T 0 MEEHZE =&
——F=A=+—RHLEFEZRE
ERNESBETREEGHEERANSE
3,312,309,0007T M 4% & Bt 18 & 7 4975
#1,765,904,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 %ﬁé:;ﬁl—iiiﬂ =f—BiFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BREEHBPEI - FTESBHNBETTIIR)
29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 29. XBE6 (&)
(a) Acquisition of Yunnan Zhengbang (continued) (a) WBEEEHR (&)
Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows: WREL ZFEERBEFBNOT :
Total
&5t
Purchase consideration KRR E 6,926
Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired WHE R RFEEC A BE
— shown below — 3T (1,145)
Goodwill EES 5,781
None of the goodwill recognized is expected to be RN B TE A HRFLIE ©
deductible for income tax purpose.
The fair value of assets and liabilities as at the acquisition RER  AREmMEECEERBENAR
date arising from the acquisition are as follows: BEWT :
Fair Value
AREE
Net assets acquired I iE 2 BEFE
Long-term deferred expenses REIFEHE R 4
Property, plant and equipment YIZE - HEs R 224
Inventories FE 195
Trade and other receivable B 5 & H M FE MR R 336
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESEED 853
Trade and other payables B 5 K H A T AR (432)
Tax payable FESBEIE (35)
Net assets acquired I b & FE 1,145
Outflow of cash to acquire business, WEE R 2 IR S A
net of cash acquired (NBrEz FEE)
Cash consideration LR & 2B R E 6,926
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary acquired WHERBARANRERRESEED (853)
Net cash outflow on acquisition W B H9)F 3R € 7 6,073
Amount payable to vendor at year end date REE HERHZEATE (240)
5,833
The gross contractual amount for trade receivables B IREWRIERA YZEEA R BEMEE o

approximates its fair value.
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BrZEHBPEIN - FTESBHBET TIIR)

29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 29. XBEH (A)

(b) Acquisition of business (b) WK

Yongzhou Shanxiang, a subsidiary of the Company, was RZZE——F =8 AREIHFKLZ— M
newly set up in March 2011. In April 2011, it entered MEAR - KMUE - RZTB——FN
into agreements with Hunan Xiangnong Shanxiang B kN L B8 R R R 1L B A
Grease Flavor Co., Ltd. to acquire a group of assets which ERAREEZEmS  UREHNREE
consisted of trademarks, property, plant and equipment 33,786,000t M E KB EHEER - ¥
and inventories, at a consideration of approximately ¥ BERRENTFE BZFRARZE
HKD33,786,000. The directors consider these acquisitions Wik B0 & IR PR — TR TSI -

of assets constitute a business combination.

The fair value of assets as at the acquisition date is as RUEER - ZEENAABERAT :
follows:
Fair Value
AREE
Net assets required I tE 2 BEFE
Trademarks iz 1,358
Property, plant and equipment VI - HES R 3,449
Inventories FE 28,979
Net assets acquired WhE 2 B EFE 33,786
Total consideration, satisfied by cash BEIEESRE 33,786
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FEMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BHE-Z——F=A=+—HILtFE
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BREEHBPEI - FTESBHNBETTIIR)
30. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 30. REFTBELENRSE

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HLFE

Note 2012 2011
k2 =F—=F R
Profit before income tax T 2,080,989 1,881,114
Adjustments for: JEER
— Depreciation — e 6 61,268 42,420
— Amortization — HH 7,8 48,876 36,001
— Interest expense —FNEEH 25 16,373 14,029
— Interest income — FEUWA 25 (33,168) (24,692)
- Investment income — BERA = (2,319)
— Share of (profit)/loss of — EIEEE R A 10
associates (&), FiE (143) 1,255
— Provision for impairment on — B RUGRIBERERE 14(b),23
trade receivables 3,859 1,192
— (Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, — HEE « SR
plant and equipment &l (BR),/ B8 (869) 96
— Gain on bargain purchase — EEEB - (5)
— Share option compensation — BB AR R B = A 24
expenses 75 4,123
— Exchange gain-net — [E 5 WS — F5E 22 (62,777) (56,150)
Changes in working capital: LEESED)
— Inventories —FE (138,357) (157,258)
— Trade and other receivables — B NEMEWRIAE 167,398 (224,258)
— Trade and other payables — B 5 R EAMEMNRIE (252,575) 130,311
Net cash generated from operations B EIRFTSIR &R 1,890,949 1,645,859
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from REERESRERA - HEME - MR RZE
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: Z A BIE
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE
Note 2012 2011
B E —E—CfF %
Net book amount AR FE 6 12,064 971
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property, HEYE - e Kk
plant and equipment HERF S (EE) 869 (96)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - #aER
plant and equipment BB TSR 12,933 875

Huabao International Holdings Limited ZEBERRZRBRAE » 2011-2012 Annual Report F 3 175



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)
31. COMMITMENTS - GROUP

(@) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet
date but not yet incurred is as follows:

HE—ZT——F=fF=+—HItFE
(BB AHRBEI - FTESEH BT TIIR)

31. &g - XEE

(a)

BAEYE

REZBEENEDRELENERFX
LI

As at 31 March

R=B=+-—H
2012 2011
—E-CZfF —E——%F
Contracted but not provided for: BEAEREME
Property, plant and equipment M - HES NERE 250,383 74,716
Investment in an associate REEE R R ZIEE 135,203 -
385,586 74,716

(b) Operating lease commitments

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases at the closing date are

(b)

SERERRE
REEARBTAMELERE - KK
RIEHEEMREEROT

as follows:
As at 31 March
R=B=+—H
2012 2011
—EB-=F T
Land and buildings: T RET :
Not later than 1 year TiEBB1F 9,959 8,178
Later than 1 year and not later A1 FET BB F
than 5 years 5,493 4,828
15,452 13,006
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Name and relationship with related parties

Name

=L

Ms. Chu

R+

Owada International Flavours & Fragrances
(Guangzhou) Limited (‘Owada International’)

MEEREER (BMN) ARAR (DRFEZEREE )

Henan Jinrui

7 2 I

Transactions with related parties

The Group has entered into the following significant
transactions with related parties:

Sales of goods, net of value-added tax, to:
— Henan Jinrui

HE2—Z——F=fA=+—HItFE
(BB AEHBEI - FTESEHABET THIR)
32. EHALRRS

(a) BAMALRBIBEBE

Relationship

e

The single largest shareholder of the Company
RRABHE—RIRE
A company controlled by Ms. Chu

RR 1
An associate indirectly held by the Company
AR BT A B2 A R
(b) EEEBALTHNRS
AN R A LT TOIEARRS

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HLFE

HEEM  REEBREK - T
— ek

2012 2011
—E——F —T——fF
1,140 367

The above transactions were conducted at terms as
agreed with the related parties.

R 5 k8 5 S O A A B
7 o
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(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated) (BrZEHBPEIN - FTESBHBET TIIR)
32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32. EBALTRS (&)
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EEEALEER
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
Note 2012 2011
B sE —E-——fF —T——F

Balances due from related parties: FEUXEARE A + 4564

Included in trade and FTAE S KR H A
other receivables: FEULFRIA
— Henan Jinrui — A&
— trade receivables —FTAE ZEWGRIE 1,882 1,394
— others (dividend receivable) — G AEAM (BRARE) 2,029 1,695
3,911 3,089
Balances due to related parties: FEAHEAHR A 458 ¢
Included in trade payables sTAE S EMNRIE
— Owada International — SR EEE F R 14,867 14,308
Included in non-trade payables ST AFEE G e 08
— Ms. Chu — K&+ 21 123,985 123,985
As at 31 March 2012, all the balances with related parties RZZE——F=A=+—H  FTE@EHALLE
were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BRI REEA  RERENBHREE -
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33.

INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

The Group has a 49% interest in a jointly controlled entity,
Yunnan Qing Tian Xiang Keji Fazhan Co. Ltd., which was
established on 24 November 2009 and is principally engaged
in the manufacture and sale of flavours and fragrances in
the PRC. The following amounts represent the Group's 49%
share of the assets and liabilities, and sales and results of the
jointly controlled entity. They are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position and income statement.

BE-_E——F=A=+—HILFEE
(BB AEHBEI - FTESEHABET THIR)

33. HEEZEHIER
AEBERKEREHEREREHENRERSE
RARFHAIO%ER ' ZEEE_TZENF
+— A tTHAKR R EBEFRARELEER
HERBBEHNER A T&EAREEEZHE
EIEHEEOEEMAE  AREEMEEF
JE(EHI49% 1058 » I B3I A 4R A B ISR R AN
WEERA

As at 31 March

R=B=+-—8H
2012 2011
=F—=F —F—F
Assets: BE
Non-current assets EmBEE 454 218
Current assets BN EE 12,589 6,172
13,043 6,390
Liabilities: aE:
Current liabilities REIBE 6,626 40
Net assets FEE 6,417 6,350
Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=+—HILLEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F
Income Wz 26,118 4,329
Expenses EH (25,911) (2,623)
Profit before income tax B %t A0 2 K 207 1,706

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group'’s
interest in the jointly controlled entity, and the jointly controlled

entity has no contingent liabilities itself.

ARE B AR5 B R AR a3 08 ]2 (E A7
SERE  MERARZHERASTEXER

(W
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

180

Name

DEER

Aromascape Development Centre
GmbH

Central Link Inc. Limited X!
PRAEERAT O

Chemactive Investments Limited ¢

Feijia Chuangye Additive
(Shenzhen) Limited '

RERIZRME ORI
BRAR X

F&G (Botswana)
(Proprietary) Limited

Guangdong Jinke Reconstituted
Tobacco Leaves Co., Ltd.

BEREEHBEEEFRAF

Huabao International Holdings Limited ZFEBEIFRZERBER AT » 2011-2012 Annual Report F 3k

BE_E——F€=A=+—HILEE

Nominal value of

Place of incorporation issued/registered
and kind of legal entity capital
EMRLEER CRITLER,
EETRER AEMEARHE
Germany, Limited liability EUR25,000

company B7r25,000

28 BREEAF

Hong Kong, Limited liability HKD1
company BT

&5 AREEAR

British Virgin Islands, usb2
Limited liability company ET2

REEZE ARAAAR

PRC*, Limited liability
company

hE* AREART

HKD1,000,000
711,000,000

Republic of Botswana, BWP100
Limited liability company EH1007T
TR ILAE -
BREEDH
PRC*, Limited liability RMB40,000,000
company AR %40,000,0007C
e BREEAR

(BRRABHAES -
34. EMBARZFHE

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Company

AAFEM
RAES

Direct Indirect
= GiE:
- 100
- 100
100 -
- 100
- 100
- 55.375

PRAE BB TTIIR)

Principal activities
and place of operation

FTRRBRELHH

Research and development
of flavours & fragrances in
Germany

MeEEREH 28

Investment holding, trading of
fine chemicals in Hong Kong
REER BACIER

Investment holding in Hong
Kong
RERR - BB

Production, technical research
& development, distribution,
import & export of flavours &
fragrances & related business
in PRC

ERERNEE - RITFE -
#%  EHOREREE
%7 h

Production and sales of natural
extracts in Botswana

EEMBEERARRY - B
R AE

Manufacture & sale of
reconstituted tobacco
leaves in PRC

FERBEEEER  FH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

HEe—ZT——F=fA=+—HItFE
(BB AEHBEI - FTESEHABET TIIR)

34. TEMBEARZHE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Name

AREH

Guangdong Province Jinye
Reconstituted Tobacco
Leaves Technology
Development Co., Ltd.

BRASEEESR Rl
BRAH

Guangdong Zhaoging Fragrances
Limited
BRAEEENBAERAR

Guangzhou Hanfo Food Culture
Company Limited X!

BMETRRXCBRAR X

Guangzhou Huabao Flavour &
Fragrances Company
Limited X!

BN EREREHERAT 0

Hua Fang Tobacco Flavors
Limited <"

S BAEHERAR O

Huabao Flavours & Fragrances
(HK) Limited ¢
ZERREEH (BE) FRARC

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity

IR B L 4 B IR
EETRER

PRC*, Limited liability
company
HE - FREERT

PRC*, Limited liability
company

hE* BREERT

PRC*, Limited liability
company
mEx BRAEEAR

PRC*, Limited liability
company
Bl BREFEAF

PRC*, Limited liability
company

FE* BRETRF

Hong Kong, Limited liability

company

B8 AREEAF

Nominal value of
issued/registered
capital
CRITLER/
HMEXEE

RMB100,000,000
AE#100,000,0007

RMB11, 000,000
AR¥11,000,0007

RMB2, 000,000
AER#2,000,0007T

RMB10, 000,000
AR #10,000,0007C

USD4,000,000
714,000,000

HKD3,000,000
##3,000,0007T

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Company

NG 3
RAER

Direct Indirect
i &
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 51
- 100

Principal activities
and place of operation

TREBREL Y

Research & development,
manufacture and sale of
reconstituted tobacco leaves
in PRC

% EERHEEEER
H

Manufacturing & sales of food
flavours & fragrances in
PRC

EERHERREER D

Research, development,
manufacturing & sales of
flavours & fragrances in PRC

e AEREERH o

Research, development,
manufacturing & sales of
flavours & fragrances in PRC

M EEREEERER
il

Manufacturing & sales
of tobacco flavours &
fragrances in PRC
EERHEERTREHN -
2l

Research, development,
manufacturing & sales of
flavours & fragrances in
Hong Kong

M EEREEERER
BE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

182

(continued)

Name

DRAER

Huabao Food Flavours &
Fragrances (Shanghai)
Company Limited X1 X2

ZZRAEREN (L8)
ﬁl@ﬁi\\a W1, X1, X2

Huabao Industrial & Trading
Development (HK) Limited ¢ *
EETERR (BB)
BRRARE X

Huabao Xianghua Keji Fazhan
(Shanghai) Company
Limited €1 w1, w2, x1

EERHRER (L8)
EEE/L\\ET C1, W1, W2, X1

Huashun Flavour (Shanghai)
Limited w21

EEEH (L§)
ﬁﬁ&z\\a W1, W2, X1

Owada Flavour Technology
(Guangzhou) Limited ' *?
REFERBE (BMN)
BB AT X2

Power Success International
Development Limited X!
NABRERBRAA X

Qingdao Huabao Flavors &
Fragrances Co., Ltd. ¢"-W!

BEEEERERARAT O

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity
AR B it B R
EEERER

PRC*, Limited liability
company

TR AREERT

Hong Kong, Limited liability
company

&R BREMEATF

PRC*, Limited liability
company

TR BREERT

PRC*, Limited liability
company

hE* AREAERT

PRC*, Limited liability
company
HEx - FREEAR

Hong Kong, Limited liability
company

BE EREERTF

PRC*, Limited liability
company

PR AREAERT

BE_E——F=A=+—HILEE

Nominal value of
issued/registered
capital
CRITLER
EMEAREE

USD10,000,000
%7110,000,000

HKD10,000
75%10,0007C

UsD2,100,000
272,100,000

USD1,000,000
%71.1,000,000

HKD60,000,000
#160,000,000

HKD
kAl

RMB3,673,500

AR#3,673,5007C

(BR=BRAESN
34. TEMBARZHE ()

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Company

RATES
RAER

Direct Indirect
B k3
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
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PRAE BB TTIIR)

Principal activities
and place of operation

FREBREL Y

Manufacturing & sales
of tobacco flavours &
fragrances in PRC
EERAEERTREN
hE

Investment holding, trading of
fine chemicals in Hong Kong
REER  BACIER
g5 &

Research and development of
flavours & fragrances in PRC

MEEREH - T

Manufacture and sale of fine
chemicals in PRC

R IEMRE £ER
HE e

Research, development,
production and sale
of tobacco flavours &
fragrances in PRC

e £ NIRHEESR
BRERRERER T

Investment holding, trading of
fine chemicals in Hong Kong
REZR - BECIER

Manufacture and sale of
flavors & fragrances in PRC

FERHERREH  TE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

34.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Name

DRAER

Qingdao Qingda Product
Co., Inc. X

BEFAMERNBRAA X

Shanghai H&K Flavours &
Fragrances Company
Limiteq L1tz Wi, x1

EERIREREN
ﬁﬁ&i\\ﬁj L1, 12, W1, X1

Shanghai Yinghua Flavours &
Fragrances Limited

LBRERRERARAA

Sino Top Trading Limited ¢!
ZEZFRRAA

Smart Sino International
Limited ¢ X1

SEERARAR 0

Tai Cang Wen Hua Enterprise
Company Limited W' *1. %2

AR REELERAT W0

Wisdom Bright International
Investment Limited ¢! X1
BEERREBRAR O

Wuxi Fuhua Flavour & Fragrance
Company Limited W' W Xt

BEEEERENERLT W

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity
MR LR
EEERER

PRC*, Limited liability
company
HEx - BREEAA

PRC*, Limited liability
company

PR BREERT

PRC*, Limited liability
company

hE* BREERT

Hong Kong, Limited liability
company
BE BEREERTF

Hong Kong, Limited liability
company

&R BREEATF

PRC*, Limited liability
company

FE* BREERT

Hong Kong, Limited liability
company

&% BREMEATF

PRC*, Limited liability
company
Bl BREFEAH

Huabao International Holdings Limited FEEERZERARAE ¢ 2011-2012 Annual Report F 3

BE-_ZE——F=A=+—HILFEE

Nominal value of
issued/registered
capital
CRITEER/
AEMEREE

RMB41,640,000
AE#41,640,0007C

RMB100,000,000

AK#100,000,0007C

HKD 1,000,000
71,000,007

HKD100
BE1007T

HKD10,000
78%10,0007C

USD1,200,000
711,200,000

HKD'1
BB

USD7,000,000
277,000,000

(BRA=BHRAESN
34. TEMBARZHE (&)

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Company
KRN A L
RARR

Direct Indirect

EE BF:3

= 75

= 100

FTAE S FEBIAERE TTIIR)

Principal activities
and place of operation

TREBRELHY

Manufacturing & sales of
natural extracts in PRC

EERHERNRDRY - HE

Manufacturing & sales of food
flavours & fragrances in
PRC

EERHERMEREMN
i

Sales of tobacco flavours &
fragrances in PRC

HEERERER  1H

Trading of fine chemicals in
Hong Kong
BRLIERES B8

Investment holding, trading of
fine chemicals in Hong Kong
REER  BALIER

Production and sale of tobacco
flavours & fragrances in PRC

HERHERREH T

Investment holding, trading of
fine chemicals in Hong Kong

REZR  BRCIER
85 &

Production and sale of tobacco
flavours & fragrances in PRC

HERHEERBREHN
L]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRME

HE—ZT——F=fF=+—HItFE
(BB EHRBEI - FTESEHABETTHIR)

34. TEMBARZHE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2012
(All amounts in HK dollar thousands unless otherwise stated)

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
Nominal value of  Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation issued/registered interest attributable Principal activities
Name and kind of legal entity capital to the Company and place of operation
FE ALt B CRITEER RATER
AREE EEERER AMEAEE RAER FEERRCE Y
Direct Indirect
= &
Wuxi Hua Hai Flavour Company ~ PRC*, Limited liability USD650,000 - 100 Production and sale of tobacco
Limited W1 2.1 company %71650,000 flavours & fragrances in PRC
EHERARARAG w20 Bl BREFEAH KERBERREHN B
Wuxi Hua Xin Flavour & Fragrance PRC*, Limited liability usD1,000,000 - 100  Production and sale of tobacco
Company Limited W' 1. %2 company 711,000,000 flavours & fragrances in PRC
EHEZRBERRARAR W2 hEx  GREFEAQR KERBEERBRER -
HE
Wuxi Jiahua Flavour & Fragrance ~ PRC*, Limited liability RMB60, 000,000 - 100  Production and sale of tobacco
Company Limited "1 2. x1 company AR #60,000,0007C flavours & fragrances in PRC
ELZERFEAERAR WX mEx . BREFAR HERBEEERERER -
HE
Xiamen Amber Fragrances PRC*, Limited liability RMB20, 000,000 - 51 Research, development,
Co., Ltd. company AR #20,000,0007T distribution and retail of
EFRIRERARA A HE* - BREEAR fragrances in PRC
e £E - HERTERR
EIER #H
Ying Tan Huabao Flavours & PRC*, Limited liability RMB64,000,000 - 100  Production and sale of tobacco
Fragrances Co., Ltd. W% %2 company AE#64,000,0007C flavours & fragrances in PRC
EEEEAREHERAR WX dEx  BREFAR KEREERRER 16
Yongzhou Shan Xiang Flavour PRC*, Limited liability RMB35,000,000 - 67.14  Investment holding in PRC
Co., Ltd. company AE#35,000,0007T BREAER  RE
KMLBERBRAR HEx - BREEAT
Yunnan Aroma Source PRC*, Limited liability RMB5,000,000 - 60  Manufacture and sale of
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. X! * company AR#S5,000,00070 flavours and fragrances in
EHERRANARRR 12 HEs  BREFAR PRC
EERBEERREHN &
Yunnan Tianhong Flavor & PRC*, Limited liability UsD2,250,000 - 60  Production and sale of tobacco

Fragrance Company Limited << company 372,250,000 flavours & fragrances in PRC
TRAEEREHARAR 0 BEY AREELT EERHEEREH  TH
3 All entities incorporated in PRC are identified as ‘limited liability * FRERTEEMRINARERAERTER

company’.

B
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Five Year Financial Summary

T FMBERE
RESULTS
Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HLFE
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—EENFE —TTNF —FT-FF —T——F =B -
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000
BEET T ST T BT T BT T BT T
Turnover EEE 1,419,137 1,938,443 2,366,403 2,852,173 3,311,304
Gross profit ES 1,063,148 1,462,515 1,786,835 2,120,459 2,335,996
Profit before income tax BR AR 904,000 1,207,346 1,531,649 1,881,114 2,080,989
Income tax expenses Fi18 (34,384) (82,157) (162,236) (249,256) (314,250)
Profit for the year REEEF| 869,616 1,125,189 1,369,413 1,631,858 1,766,739
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEREE
As at 31 March
R=B=+—~H
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
ZTEENFE ZTTNEF ZE—TF ZT—F =ZE—=F
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’000
BT BT BT BT BT T
Total assets BEE 2,477,381 3,765,656 4,833,858 6,927,840 8,351,919
Total liabilities FEN=R (455,404) (836,050) (915,651) (1,631,977) (1,701,670)
Shareholders' funds FEE 2,021,977 2,929,606 3,918,207 5,295,863 6,650,249
Other Financial Information
H th B 7 B 4%
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—EENF —TTNF —FT-FF —T——F =B
Earnings per share, basic ~ FR&AF] - &K
(HK cents) OBAL) 28.13 36.08 43.15 51.01 55.48
Earnings per share, BRER - B
diluted (HK cents) OBL) 27.65 35.62 42.58 50.59 55.31
Aggregated dividend BREFRTEE
per share (HK cents) (P 8.3 10.8 12.78 15.18 16.68
Aggregated special dividend &% 25t 1ERIIR S
per share (HK cents) (B Nil & 3.0 8.3 Nil 4= 5.18
Fiscal year-end share W EEREARE
prices (HKD) (BIT) 6.40 6.38 9.33 11.96 5.05
EBIT ratio EBIT=R 62.7% 61.7% 64.1% 65.6% 62.3%
EBITDA ratio EBITDAXR 67.3% 66.1% 67.1% 68.5% 65.7%
ROE ROE 56.9% 46.3% 40.3% 36.3% 30.8%
Huabao International Holdings Limited FEEEFRZRAERAE ¢ 2011-2012 Annual Report F 3 185



Glossary

Ei

AGM

Xiamen Amber

Aromascape R&D
Centre

Board

Bye-laws

CAFFCI

CAGR
CEO
CFO

CG Code

CG Report

China or Mainland

China Tobacco
Guangdong

China Tobacco
Guangxi

Company or
Huabao

China Tobacco
Anhui

Director(s)

EPS

F&G

FCCA

FCIS

FCPA

FCS

Fejia Chuangye

Huabao Bio. Tech.

Group or
Huabao Group

Annual general meeting

Xiamen Amber Perfumery Co., Ltd

Aromascape Development
Centre GmbH

Board of the Company

Bye-laws of the Company

China Association of Fragrance Flavour
and Cosmetic Industry

Compound annual growth rate

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited

Corporate Governance Report as set
out on pages 56 to 71 of this annual
report

Mainland of the PRC

China Tobacco Guangdong Industrial
Co., Ltd.

China Tobacco Guangxi Industrial
Co., Ltd.

Huabao International Holdings Limited

China Tobacco Anhui Reconstituted
Tobacco Leaves Technology Limited

Director(s) of the Company

Earnings per share

F&G (Botswana) (Proprietary) Limited

Fellow member of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants

Fellow member of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators

Fellow member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants

Fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries

Fejia Chuangye Additive
(Shenzhen) Limited

Shanghai Huabao Biological
Technology Co. Ltd.

the Company and its subsidiaries

RFBFARE
B3R
Aromascape
TEE R L
=g
AR
HEEHE

CAGR
CEO

TEERHRS

A

BERTE

A E

ZEHE
£ S
EPS
F&G
FCCA

FCIS

FCPA

FCS

RERIE

EEEMRER

AEEREEEE

BREFAFRE

EMEHEERERA A

Aromascape Development Centre
GmbH

RRANEES

P /NI AN i
REENEREmIEGE
BEFHERER

B

BT
BRMARXIMERARIES EMRA
KSR 14Pr5 00 EE R TR

EAFRFESCHEFETIHAN
PEERRE

PEARAMESREA
ERTETIXBREMAT

BATETEGRETAA
EETBIRERAR
RRHEEEEENEERAR
AATES

SREH

F&G (Botswana) (Proprietary) Limited
BRSNS ARSHAAGEREE

BERGRTE
BAEBHNELEEREE
RERIZRME ORI BRAF
LREEENRRARAA

ARAREMBERR
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Guangdong Jinke

Guangdong Jinye

Guangdong Jinye
Group

Guangdong
Zhaoging

Guangzhou Huabao

Guangzhou Huafang
HKAS

HKD

HKFRS

HKICPA

HK(IFRIC)-Int

Hong Kong or
HKSAR

Hongta Tobacco
Group

Huabao Hong Kong

Huabao Keji

Huabao Kongque

Huabao Shanghai

Huashun Shanghai
INED(s)

Listing Rules
M&A(s)

mg

Model Code

Owada

PRC
Qingdao Huabao

Guangdong Jinke Reconstitute Tobacco
Leaves Company Limited

Guangdong Province Jinye Reconstituted
Tobacco Leaves Technology
Development Company Limited

Guangdong Jinye and its subsidiaries
and affiliated companies

Guangdong Zhaoging Fragrances
Limited

Guangzhou Huabao Flavours &
Fragrances Co Ltd.

Hua Fang Tobacco Flavors Ltd.

Hong Kong Accounting Standards

Hong Kong dollars

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants

Hong Kong (IFRIC) Interpretations

Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the People's Republic of
China

Hongta Tobacco (Group) Limited
Liability Company

Huabao Flavours & Fragrances (HK) Ltd.

Huabao Xianghua Keji Fazhan
(Shanghai) Co. Ltd.

Shanghai H&K Flavours & Fragrances
Co Ltd.

Huabao Food Flavours & Fragrances
(Shanghai) Co Ltd.

Huashun Flavour (Shanghai) Limited

Independent Non-executive Director(s)
of the Company

Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited

Merger and acquisition

milligram

Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers

Owada Flavours Technology
(Guangzhou) Limited

The People's Republic of China

Qingdao Huabao Flavours &
Fragrances Co Ltd.

Huabao International Holdings Limited FEEEFRZRAERAE ¢ 2011-2012 Annual Report F 3
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Glossary

AR

BREMBERERRAT

BERASEEEFREMARAT

BEREEREMBARRBE QT
EREZERENEARADA
BNEBEEREHARAF
EFERBRBRAA

BB LA

B

BEMBRELER]
BRGNS

7R (ARHERERES) B8

hEARKXMBEEER TR

AEER (£E) ARAF

SRR (BE) BRAR

‘_f"i._’
EFEERCMRER (LB) ARAT

g g

oA T

LEEEILEERENARAA

ZERAEREM (LB) BRAA

EEEF (LF) BRARA
RRRZBUFEATES

BEAMARZAARARIES LMARA

FOTEUEE

Z5

ERBETABESETESFISN
RSl

REZFRER (BMN) BRAR

REARKEME
BEREEEEREMERAT
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Glossary

AR

Qingdao Qingda
RMB
R&D

Scheme Mandate

Limit

SFC
SFO

SGM

Shanghai Yinghua

Shareholder(s)
Share(s)

STMA
Stock Exchange

Taicang Wenhua
usb

Wauxi Fuhua
Wuxi Huahai
Wuxi Huaxin

Wuxi Jiahua
Yingtan Huabao

Qingdao Qingda Product Co., Inc.

Renminbi

Research and development

The maximum number of Shares in
respect of which share options may
be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company

Securities and Futures Commission

Securities and Futures Ordinance of
the Laws of HKSAR

Special general meeting

Shanghai Yinghua Flavours &
Fragrances Ltd.

Shareholder(s) of the Company

Ordinary share(s) of HKD0.10 each of
the Company

State Tobacco Monopoly Administration

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Tai Cang Wen Hua Enterprises Co Ltd.

US dollars

Wuxi Fuhua Flavour & Fragrance Co Ltd.

Wuxi Hua Hai Flavour Co Ltd.

Wuxi Hua Xin Flavour & Fragrance
Co Ltd.

Wauxi Jiahua Flavour & Fragrance Co Ltd.

Ying Tan Huabao Flavours & Fragrances
Co., Ltd.

Yongzhou Shanxiang Yongzhou Shan Xiang Flavour Co., Ltd
Yunnan Huaxiangyuan Yunnan Aroma Source Manufacturing

Yunnan Tianhong

Co., Ltd.
Yunnan Tianhong Flavour & Fragrance
Co Ltd.

BBEEX
AR

S

AR AERE

2K B &

CE

B R B

BRERIRE
EigTRE

BXEEZER

BEBAMERNARAR
ARE - hBZEES

IENE:

BARBRRB RS 8 R AR E
BREGHE TR ZBRERTR IR
& B £R

EFLHMEEBERZES
B LB

BRERAE
LRRERRERNBRAF

KRB ZBRER

RRBRAH FREEEE0.107TH
L imhk

HREEEER

EEBARSARAR

AEXEEXBRRAA
e
BHRETREMNARAH
BHESERENARAA
EHERBRBRENARAA

BORERRENARAA
EREEERENARADA

AINLBEERBRAE
EMERRANBRAR

ERREERERERAR
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